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chosen these assumptions or basis in good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, 
we caution you that these statements might vary from actual results, and the differences between the results implied by the 
statements and actual results can be material, depending on the circumstances.
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At Nitin Spinners, we cultivate growth methodically, 
consciously and with a clarity of purpose. This year, we 
reaffirmed our belief that enduring value is built through a 
dedication to excellence in what we make, how we operate 
and the principles we adhere to. Quality is intricately woven 
in every yarn we spin, every fabric we craft and every market 
we serve. We regard quality not as our differentiator but as 
our foundation.

Even in the face of global headwinds, we advanced with 
determination, guided by the values that define us and 
innovations that propel us. By refining our processes, 
optimising capacities and staying attuned to the emerging 
demand, we continued to create value that is both tangible 
and lasting. We recorded growth not by scaling alone, but by 
strengthening the threads of our operations.

As we step into the future, we remain focussed on spinning 
progress through purposeful investments and weaving 
enduring relationships. The fabric of our growth continues to 
be threaded with our values and textured by quality.

VALUE ACCRETIVE  
GROWTH POWERED  
BY QUALITY
Weaving Values & Spinning Innovation

https://nitinspinners.com


Vision
 To be the most reliable supplier 

across the textile value chain.

 To provide superior quality 
products at competitive prices 
and establish a brand value in the 
international arena.

 To exceed industry standards with 
exceptional customer and technical 
service.

 To maintain our competitive 
strategic position through cutting 
edge technology.

 To promote partnerships with 
government agencies and 
institutions of international 
recognition.

 To Provide a safe, fulfilling and 
rewarding work environment for 
employees.

 To provide training to our 
employees for their future 
development.

Mission
 Become an Integrated Textiles 

manufacturer by Forward and 
Vertical integration.

 Remain at the forefront in 
high-quality textile products 
manufacturing.

 Create value for shareholders 
and allied industries.

 Increase foreign exchange 
earnings by being the preferred 
international supplier.

 Stay effective and proactive in 
developing new markets and 
products.

 Endeavour for the ultimate 
satisfaction of our allied 
partners with:

 The Right Technology

 The Right Raw Material

 The Right People

 Above all The Right Attitude

Our Strategic Advantages
 Well-diversified export presence 

across all continents, supporting 
overseas growth momentum

 Integrated operations spanning 
yarns, knitted fabrics and finished 
woven fabrics enable enhanced 
agility and cost optimisation

 Improved capacity utilisation and 
emphasis on value-added products 
contribute to margin resilience

 Focus on sustainability through 
increased use of sustainable fibres, 
renewable energy and water 
conservation

 Established presence in finished 
fabrics aligns with the nation’s 
intensifying role in global textile 
trade

 Disciplined capex planning 
and prudent working capital 
management ensure financial 
stability and long-term profitability

About the Company

Our presence now encompasses over 55 Countries, supported by an agile well-integrated value chain and 
future-ready manufacturing capabilities. From modest beginnings with open-end spinning, we have expanded 
into ring spinning, knitted fabrics, finished woven fabrics and value-added yarns. This diversification has 
afforded us the ability to strengthen our product depth, improve operational flexibility and serve a wide 
spectrum of clients.

Our facilities are equipped with state-of-the-art technology and governed by stringent quality systems that 
ensure consistency, precision and compliance with global standards. Certified under ISO 9001:2008, we remain 
aligned with the expectations of global customers across sectors. 

Our growth strategy stands on four foundational pillars- technology, quality, agility and customer focus. With 
each expansion, we aspire to enhance our efficiency and deepen our market relevance. As we progress on 
our growth trajectory, we remain resolute on establishing trusted relationships, setting new benchmarks in 
performance and remain perceptive of the shifting demands of the industry.

Nitin Spinners is a quality-focused textile manufacturer with integrated 
capabilities in spinning, knitting ,weaving, finishing and printing. We 
produce high-quality cotton and blended yarns, knitted fabrics and 
finished woven fabrics, driven by innovation, efficiency and long-term 
value creation.

₹ 3,305 Cr

₹ 471.43 Cr

Total Revenue

EBITDA

₹ 175.43 Cr

₹ 1,311.20 Cr

PAT

Net Worth

A legacy Spun with Precision
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Our Journey

Since commencing operations in 1992, our progress has been shaped by 
consistent progress, strategic expansion and an enduring commitment to 
quality. Over the years, we have steadily evolved into an integrated textile 
manufacturer, broadening our capabilities, scaling our infrastructure and 
establishing a strong presence in domestic and overseas markets.

Commenced 
operations 
with Open-
end Spinning 
- installed 384 
Rotors with 
an investment 
of H 3 Cr.

Expansion 
of Open-end 
Spinning by 
installation of 
2,000 Rotors.

Foray into Ring 
Spinning by 
installing 14,112 
Spindles. Ventured 
in forward 
integration of 
Knitted Fabric 
by installing 7 
Knitting machines.

Further expanded 
of facilities by 
adding 72,960 
Spindles, taking 
total capacity to 
223,056 Spindles, 
2,936 Rotors 
and 63 Knitting 
machines.

Listed on 
BSE and 
NSE.

Added 7,296 
spindles in June 
2021.

Continuous 
expansions of rotors. 
Total installed Rotors 
reached 1,464.

Doubled the 
existing Spinning 
and Knitting 
capacity by 
installing 72,480 
Spindles and 18 
Knitting machines 
bringing the 
total to 1,50,096 
spindles and 49 
Knitting Machines.

Doubled the 
existing Ring 
Spinning and 
Knitted Fabric 
Capacity to 27,216 
Spindles and 15 
machines. Further 
added 408 rotors 
as well.

Completed integrated 
textiles complex 
at Begun District, 
Chittorgarh, by setting 
up 76,992 spindles for 
manufacturing cotton 
and blended yarns, 
552 rotors for blended 
open-end yarn, 168 air-
jet weaving machines 
along with facilities for 
dyeing, printing and 
finishing of fabrics.

Undertook expansion 
of spinning and 
knitting division 
by adding 50,400 
spindles, effectively 
tripling the capacity 
to 77,616 spindles 
doubled the knitting 
capacity to 27 
machines.

Completed major 
capex- installed 
1,27,488 spindles, 
264 airjet spinning 
positions, 3,312 
rotors, 14 knitting 
machines, 54 
weaving machines 
and finishing 
capacity of 10 million 
metres per annum

Achieved highest-ever 
revenue of R3,305.65 
Crores, up 14% YoY. 

Sustained shift towards 
eco-friendly fibres and 
ramped up renewable 
energy usage.

Tracing the Fabric of Our Growth

1993

2005

2007

2008 2022

2020 2024

2025

2015

2017
2006

1999

2002
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Financial Highlights

Value in Every Metric

Value in Every Metric

Net sales 

EPS

EBITDA

Net worth

Net Profit Return on Average Equity

Net Fixed asset Debt Equity ratio
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Message from the  
Chairman & Managing Director

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

STRONG FINANCIAL 
OUTCOMES

OPERATIONAL 
EXCELLENCE 

STRATEGIC CAPITAL 
DEPLOYMENT FOR 
FUTURE GROWTH

SUSTAINABILITY 
AND SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

POSITIONED FOR 
VALUE-ACCRETIVE 
GROWTH

A WORD OF 
APPRECIATION

The fiscal year 2025 unfolded against a backdrop of global complexities, 
characterised by persistent geopolitical tensions, evolving international trade 
restrictions and a cautious consumer sentiment. Despite these challenging external 
factors, the Indian textile industry demonstrated remarkable resilience and achieved 
moderate growth. An important driver of this positive performance was the increase 
in demand across both domestic and export markets. Stable cotton prices further 
supported operating conditions. However, the industry did face a constraint on 
margins due to the marginal cost disadvantage of domestic cotton when compared to 
international prices.

Building on its demonstrated resilience, India’s position in global textile trade has 
significantly strengthened. Trade agreements, notably the Free Trade Agreement 
(FTA) with major countries like UK, are expected to build long-term momentum for 
Indian exports.

Amidst this challenging industry 
landscape, Nitin Spinners achieved its 
highest-ever annual revenue of  
H3,305.65 Crores in FY25, marking a 
14% year-on-year growth. This was a 
notable accomplishment, especially 
considering the prevailing lower yarn 
prices. Our export revenue reached an 
all-time high of H2,111 Crores, registering 
a 24% growth over the previous year. 
This reflects our ability to leverage our 
diversified global customer base across, 
while effectively adapting to market-
specific demands.

Our Profit After Tax stood at H175.43 
Crores, reflecting a significant 33% 
growth over the previous year. 
Consequently, our Earnings Per Share 
(EPS) increased to H31.20 from H23.29.

I am pleased to inform that Board of 
Directors have recommended dividend 
of 30% ie H3/per share  on Equity shares. 

A key driver of this performance was 
our high asset utilisation, coupled with 
our uncompromising focus on quality. 
Throughout the year, our spinning 
capacity operated at over 96%, while 
the weaving and finishing divisions 
consistently maintained utilisation rates 
above 90%. This robust throughput 
was a result of disciplined execution, 
sustained order inflows and rising 
demand for our high-quality, value-
added products.

To sustain growth momentum 
and prepare for evolving market 
scenario, the Board has approved a 
substantial capital expenditure plan 
of approximately H1,100 Crores for 
the current year. This investment will 
be allocated across our yarn and 
fabric verticals apart from increasing 
renewable power footprint. The primary 
objectives of this capital expenditure 
are to enhance value addition, 
improve product mix, strengthen cost 
competitiveness and introduce high-
value, specialised products. These 
initiatives are designed to meet the 
growing demand for premium fashion 
products and sustainable textiles from 
both domestic and global brands.

At Nitin Spinners, we have always 
followed discipline of building steadily 
and have grown not by chasing 
trends but by staying committed to 
fundamentals, i.e., Focus on quality, 
integrity in relationships and consistency 
in delivering value. The proposed capital 
expenditure initiatives are also on the 
same principals and will ensure that we 
remain future-ready by incorporating 
efficient and scalable infrastructure that 
supports sustainable and profitable 
growth.

We consistently adopt cleaner 
production methods and implement 
resource-efficient technologies, 
particularly in our energy, water and 
waste management practices. Our focus 
on circularity is expanding, with efforts 
to enhance traceability, significantly 
reduce our environmental footprint and 
ensure responsible sourcing.

Our Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) programmes improve access to 
education, healthcare and livelihood 
opportunities within the communities 
surrounding our operations. Through 
targeted interventions and partnerships, 
we strive to enhance the quality of life 
and build long-term trust with all our 
stakeholders. Further, employee welfare, 
safety and skill development remain 
central to our people-first approach.

The textile industry is poised to 
experience moderate but steady growth, 
driven by improving trade relationships, 
supportive sectorial policies and an 
increasing global demand for Indian 
textiles. This favourable medium to 
long term outlook positions us well; our 
diversified product portfolio and export 
footprint allow us to capitalise on this 
momentum while mitigating risks from 
regional volatility.

For FY26, our strategic priorities will 
focus on optimising operations and 
precisely executing our investment 
plans. Given these favourable sectoral 
trends, our disciplined capital allocation 
and a continued emphasis on value-

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our 
employees for their relentless efforts 
in ensuring the seamless and efficient 
operation of our business as well as 
to our esteemed Board of Directors 
for their sage advice and strategic 
guidance. I also thank our customers, 
vendors and Bankers for their continued 
trust and support and to each of our 
Shareholders for their patience and 
belief in our vision.

Warm Regards,

Dinesh Nolkha 

Our emphasis on rigorous quality 
assurance enabled us to consistently 
meet evolving customer expectations. 
Simultaneously, we continued to 
invest in internal efficiencies and 
prudent resource allocation, which 
helped optimise our cost structures 
and support margin expansion. A 
disciplined approach to working capital 
management ensured strong liquidity, 
even as we scaled our operations.

added products, we are confident in our 
ability to deliver consistent returns for all 
stakeholders.

Annual Report 2024-25
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Geographic Presence

We continue to enhance our international reach by maintaining a 
strategically diversified export base and responding swiftly to shifts in 
the markets. This approach allowed us to deepen our presence in crucial 
geographies while exploring new growth opportunities in Japan and Africa.

In FY2024-25, exports contributed 64% of our total revenue, with our 
products reaching upwards of 55 countries spanning six continents.

Expanding the Circle of Value

55+

36% 64%

Countries Global Presence

Domestic Revenue Revenue from Exports

 ARGENTINA

 AUSTRALIA 

 AUSTRIA 

 BANGLADESH 

 BELGIUM 

 BRAZIL 

 BULGERIA 

 CANADA 

 CHILE 

 CHINA 

 COLOMBIA 

 CROATIA 

 CZECH REPUBLIC 

 DENMARK 

 DJIBOUTI 

 ECUADOR 

 EGYPT 

 EL SALVADOR 

 ETHIOPIA 

 FRANCE

 GERMANY 

 GUATEMALA 

 HONG KONG 

 INDONESIA 

 ISRAEL 

 ITALY 

 JAPAN 

 JORDAN 

 KENYA 

 KOREA 

 LITHUANIA 

 MADAGASCAR 

 MALAYSIA 

 MAURITIUS 

 MOROCCO 

 NETHERLAND 

 PERU 

 POLAND 

 PORTUGAL 

 ROMANIA 

 RUSSIA 

 SAUDI ARABIA 

 SLOVENIA 

 SOUTH AFRICA 

 SOUTH KOREA 

 SPAIN 

 SRI LANAKA 

 SINGAPORE

 TAIWAN 

 THAILAND 

 TUNISIA 

 TURKEY 

 UAE 

 UNITED KINGDOM 

 USA 

 VIETNAM

Annual Report 2024-25

10 11

CORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNITIN SPINNERS LTD



Product Portfolio

Our product range weaves together 
high-quality yarns and superior fabrics 
to cater to the global requirements. 
Each of our offering is a thread to our 
value-accretive growth crafted with 
uncompromising quality.

A Range Rooted in Quality

Yarns Fabrics



Yarns
Our Yarns division serves as the 
bedrock of our product portfolio and 
represents our largest business vertical. 
We offer a versatile range of high-quality 
cotton and blended yarns, designed 
to support diverse spinning and fabric 
needs across global textile markets.

1,10,000 MT 1,07,417

89,769 72.7%
Annual Production Capacity Production in FY25

Sales in FY25 Revenue Contribution in FY25

 100% cotton and blended

 Ring spun combed and carded

 Open end yarns

 Compact yarns

 Slub yarns

 Core spun yarns 

 Multifold yarns

 Yarns made from Supima Giza, 
Organic, BCI cotton etc

 Yarns made from Recycled fibres

 Count range 6 to 100s

 Gassed Yarn

Product Range

End User Application

Woven Apparel Knitted Apparel Furnishing Fabrics DenimsTerry Towel Tea bags Medical Fabrics

Vision Ahead
 Focus on high-value yarns 

including cotton-linen, 
modal, viscose and dyed 
blends

 Entry into volume-driven 
markets with differentiated, 
quality-led products

 Ongoing new product 
development and re-
engineering to meet 
evolving demand

 Growing use of sustainable 
fibres like organic, BCI and 
recycled cotton

Annual Report 2024-25
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Fabrics
We manufacture a comprehensive suite of dyed, printed and knitted fabrics tailored for applications in fashion, apparel and 
workwear. Our fabric offerings are developed with a strong focus on quality, performance and customisation.

31.8540 Mn Mtr 33.82

22.1%

Finished Fabric Production 
(Mn Mtrs)

Finished Woven Fabric Finished Woven Fabrics 
(Mn Mtrs)

Revenue Contribution in FY25

6,022
Knitted Fabric (MT)

11,000 Tons

Knitted Fabric

6,027
Knitted Fabric (MT)

 100% Cotton, Cotton Spandex 
Fabrics 

 Poly/Cotton, Poly/Cotton Spandex 
Fabrics

 RFD, Bleached, Dyed, Print and Yarn 
Dyed Fabrics

 Special Finishes - Water Repellant, 
Nano Care, Soil Release, Anti 
Bacteria Finish, Aero Finish, Bio 
Polish

 Various Weaves -Twills, Gabardines, 
Broken Twill, Ripstop, Canvas, 
Mattie’s, Ducks,

 Health & Eco – Friendly Fabrics 
made from BCI/Organic Cotton

 Single Jersey

 Open width with Elastene

 3 t fleece

 Interlock

Product Range

Finished Woven Fabric

Knitted Fabric

Annual Production Capacity Production in FY25 Sales in FY25

End User Application

End User Application

Fashion and 
Image Wear

Sports Wear

Uniform

Winter Wear Inner Wear

Industrial and 
Protective Wear

Comfort Wear

Defence 
Wear

Heath Care 
Apparel

Baby Wear

Hotel 
Apparel

Vision Ahead
 Focus on finished woven fabrics with 35 

Mn metres of new capacity

 60% of additional production of yarn to 
be used in-house for fabrics to improve 
margin profile

 Expand fabric range from formalwear 
to casualwear, including menswear, 
womenswear and kids wear, with 
enhanced multi-fibre options for women’s 
apparel and multi-wear categories

 Tap into new segments like furnishings 
and flame-retardant fabrics

 Prioritise ESG-aligned growth with ZLD, 
recycled fibres and renewable power

Annual Report 2024-25
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Value Creation Model

Crafting Value, Thread by Thread

Financial Capital Financial Capital

 Equity: INR 56.22 crores

 Net Worth: INR 1,311.20 crores

 Cumulative capex: INR 2500.89 crores

 Revenue: INR 3,305 Crores

 EBITDA: INR 471 Crores

 PAT: INR 175 Crores

 EPS: INR 31.20

Manufacturing Capital

Manufacturing plants: 2

Annual Capacity:

 Yarn: 1,10,000 MT

 Knitted fabric: 11,000 MT

 Finished woven fabric: 40 million mtrs

Intellectual Capital

 R&D Units: 8

 R&D Team Strength: 168

 Total R&D spend: INR 7.10  Crores

Intellectual Capital
Introduced innovative product lines and advanced fabric 
finishes while strengthening quality control systems across 
raw materials, in-process checks and final output to ensure 
performance, consistency and global compliance.

Human Capital

 Number of employees: 6736

 Women in workforce: 141

Welfare measures:

 Healthcare

 Health and accidental insurance

 Residential accommodation

 Transport facility

Social and Relationship Capital

 CSR spend: INR 5.72 Crores

Areas of spend:

 Education

 Education support for differently-abled 
children and improving vocal skills

 Rural roads, drainage and water harvesting

 Cotton development and research

 Community welfare and health initiatives

Natural Capital
 Rooftop Solar Power Plant: 18.8 MW (AC)

 Water treatment and zero liquid  
discharge system

 Rainwater harvesting systems

 Use of sustainable fibres

Human Capital

 100% Employees covered under 
health /personal Accidental Insurance

 100% Training provided to all 
employees and workers 

Social and Relationship Capital

CSR Beneficiaries 

 Girls seeking higher education from rural areas

 Nearby villages  and rural population

 Cotton Farmers of State 

 Students seeking higher education

Natural Capital

 Use of sustainable raw material: 43%

 Solar power generation: 275 Lakhs KWH

 Reduced reliance on coal-based energy 
across operations

 Water recycled: 98%

Manufacturing Capital

Total Production:
 Yarn: 1,07,417 MT
 Knitted fabrics: 6,022 MT
 Griege woven fabric production:  
35.22 million mtrs

 Finished fabric production: 31.85 million mtrs

Business Segment-wise 
sales volume:

 Yarn: 89,769 MT
 Knitted fabrics: 6,027 MT
 Woven fabric sales: 
33.82 million mtrs

Our StakeholdersInputs Value Creation Process Output

Shareholders

Customers

Employees

Communities

Business 
Associates

Environment

Quality raw material 
procurement

Raw-material 
quality check

Product 
development and 

manufacturing  
across three 

segments

Product 
quality Check

Product sorting 
and packing

Logistics 
management

Marketing and 
distribution

Integrated 
manufacturing from 
yarn to finished fabric

Sustainable 
practices

Advanced infrastructure 
and automated 
production systems

Customer-focused 
product development

Strong in-house R&D 
and design studio

Strategic plant 
location

Skilled and stable 
workforce

Prudent capex 
planning

Key Enablers
End-User 
Industries

 Apparel

 Home Textiles

 Healthcare

 Industrial Textiles

 Protective 
Clothing

 Retail and Export 
House

Annual Report 2024-25
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Manufacturing Excellence

The essence of our craft at Nitin Spinners lies in a finely tuned 
manufacturing ecosystem where integration meets innovation. 
Our technologically sophisticated production setup affords us 
the ability to deliver high-quality output, cost efficiency and 
operational flexibility across the textile value chain.

Spinning Excellence into Every Stage

Our facilities at Bhilwara and Chittorgarh 
house modern spinning, knitting, 
weaving and finishing lines, designed 
to accommodate a wide range of cotton 
and blended textile applications. Over 
the past fiscal, we successfully achieved 
optimal utilisation across the majority of 
our divisions, aided by seamless ramp-
up of our expanded capacities. This 
operational momentum translated into 
augmented output, enhanced margins 
and a transition towards value-added 
offerings aligned with shifting market 
preferences.

We continue to channel our capital into 
modernisation, automation and resource 
efficiency to sharpen our competitive 
edge and support our shift towards 
more sustainable operations. Our 
manufacturing is governed by rigorous 
quality control and strong process 
discipline, enabling us to consistently 
deliver reliable and high-performance 
textile solutions at scale.

4,34,832 77

5,864 222
Spindles Circular Knitting Machine

Rotors Airjet Weaving Machines

264
Airjet Spinning Positions

Our Capabilities

Our Facilities

Chittorgarh Facility

Our Cost-Efficient Operating Model

Best-in-class technology 
and state-of-the-art 

machinery enhance cost 
efficiency, ensure faster 
turnaround and improve 

operational effectiveness.

Captive solar power 
plants contribute to 
lower power costs 

and support our clean 
energy transition.

Strategic plant location 
streamlines logistics, 

supports quicker 
turnaround times (TAT) 

and reduces freight costs.

Reprocessing of waste 
materials enhances 

cost-savings and 
supports circular 

manufacturing practices.

Focused efforts in R&D 
and value enhancement 

have enabled us to 
successfully enter multiple 

international markets.

Easy access to raw material, 
with nearly  

10 Lakhs bales of cotton 
available within a 250 km 

radius, strengthens sourcing 
reliability and cost control.

1
2

3
4

5
6
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Quality Focus

Research & Development

Certifications

Sustainability At Core

For us, sustainability is integral to how we create long-term 
value. We direct our focus on resource conservation, reducing 
environmental footprint and building a responsible value 
chain that supports growth rooted in responsibility.

Sustainability in Every Seam

Energy Management
We have embraced a structured 
method to manage and reduce energy 
consumption across our facilities. By 
deploying energy-efficient equipment 
and appliances powered by renewable 
sources, we have markedly reduced 
our dependence on conventional 
power. Smart systems enable real-time 
monitoring, while measures such as 
proper insulation, efficient lighting and 
process optimisation help curb the loss 
of energy and augment operational 
efficiency in a sustainable manner. 

Use of Renewable Energy

To reduce our dependence on 
conventional power, we have steadily 
scaled our renewable energy footprint. 
With an installed solar capacity of 18.8 
MW, a meaningful portion of our energy 
demands are now met by cleaner 
alternatives. These investments have 
helped us lower energy costs and 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
while supporting our transition towards 
cleaner operations.

Water Conservation
We continue to prioritise water efficiency 
across our manufacturing units. Our 
facilities are equipped with advanced 
systems for water recycling and reuse, 
considerably curbing freshwater 
consumption.  The adoption of zero 
liquid discharge systems ensures that 
all effluents are treated and reintegrated 
into the process cycle. Through 
disciplined monitoring and process 
improvements, we are consistently 
lowering our water footprint.

We regard R&D as a strategic catalyst 
of long-term competitiveness, allowing 
us to stay attuned to evolving customer 
expectations and nurture product 
innovation across the textile value 
chain. Our R&D efforts are directed 
towards the development new blends, 
enhancing quality benchmarks and 
expediting turnaround times on 
customised requirements. Close 
engagement with customers helps us 
comprehend end-use needs and tailor 
our yarns and fabrics accordingly.

We have strengthened our capabilities 
by establishing a modern design studio. 
The studio is equipped with advanced 
infrastructure including a pilot plant 
from Mathis, a fabric printing studio 
and spectrophotometers and colour 
computers from DataColor. These tools 
enable us to craft trend-attuned fabric 
samples and deliver precise colour 
matching for our global clientele. Our 
R&D team continues to explore new 
frontiers to elevate value addition, 
develop functional textiles and bolster 
our market relevance.

Every thread of our textile journey is 
woven with uncompromising approach 
to quality. It begins with sourcing raw 
materials and continues through each 
step of production to final dispatch. 
Our systems are designed to ensure 

Utilising Sustainable Cotton and Fibres
We are gradually augmenting the share of sustainable and recycled fibres in our 
product portfolio to meet the growing demand for responsible textiles. Our sourcing 
and product development teams collaborate with suppliers and customers to deliver 
eco-conscious solutions that align with global sustainability benchmarks. This 
approach broadens our product offerings while contributing to the industry’s shift 
towards ecologically responsible consumption.

consistency, traceability and adherence 
to global textile standards. We are 
certified under ISO 9001:2008 and our 
products are tested for compliance with 
international benchmarks, including 
OEKO-TEX Standard 100. Equipped 

with advanced laboratories and 
automated process monitoring and 
real-time quality checks, we ensure 
that every product meets the help us 
deliver products that meet the dynamic 
expectations of global brands.

Manufacturing Excellence Contd...
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Empowering Communities Awards and Recognitions

We are deeply invested in the well-being of communities surrounding our 
operations. Our CSR efforts are centred around nurturing inclusive growth. 
Through targeted interventions in education, healthcare, infrastructure 
and livelihood generation, we aim to uplift marginalised communities by 
addressing pressing issues and long-term aspirations

Progress Woven with Responsibility

₹ 5.72 Cr

CSR Spend

A dedicated 
women’s hostel 
was built in 
Bhilwara to offer 
safe and secure 
living facilities for 
female students 
and workers.

Promoted 
inclusive 
education by 
supporting 
differently-
abled children, 
enhancing 
vocal skills and 
constructed 
additional 
classrooms in 
government 
schools.

Contributed 
towards cotton 
development 
and research 
to support 
agricultural 
innovation and 
strengthen the 
cotton value 
chain.

We enabled 
access to higher 
education by 
contributing to 
the construction 
of hostel facilities 
for students from 
remote areas.

Infrastructure 
upgrades were 
carried out in 
rural areas, 
including road 
construction, 
drainage 
development and 
water harvesting 
systems.

Initiated a 
project for the 
construction of a 
school building 
in a rural area.

Implemented 
initiatives to 
promote health 
and preventive 
healthcare.

Key CSR Initiatives 

The Cotton Textiles Export Promotion Council  
(Texprocil) Awards

State  
Export  
Awards

Energy  
Conservation  
Awards

Safety Award

Gold Trophy for 
Highest Exports 
of Cotton Yarn 
of Counts 50s 
and below in 
Category III for 
the year 2022-
2023.

Gold Trophy 
for the 
highest export 
performance 
in Grey 
fabrics- under 
Category II 
for the year 
2020-21.

Gold Plaque 
for Highest 
Exports of 
Cotton Yarn 
of Counts 51s 
and above 
in Category 
I for the year 
2022-2023.

Gold Trophy 
for Highest 
Employment 
Generation 
(Overall) for the 
year 2022-23  

Gold Trophy 
for the 
highest export 
performance in 
Cotton Yarn-
Counts 51s and 
above under 
Category I for 
the year 2020-
21.

Silver Trophy 
for Second 
Highest Exports 
of Cotton Yarn 
of Counts 50’s 
and below in 
Category III for 
the year 2021-22 
and 2019-20 and 
bronze trophy 
under category 
II for the year 
2015-16

Silver Trophy for 
Second Highest 
Exports in the 
category of Grey 
Fabrics for the 
years 2006-07, 
2007-08 and 
2017-18 and 
Bronze Trophy 
for the years 
2010-11, 2014-15 
and 2015-16

State Award for 
“Excellence in 
Exports” for the 
years 2020-21, 
2016-17, 2013-
14, 2010-11 and 
2007-08 by the 
Government of 
Rajasthan

Rajasthan 
Energy 
Conservation 
Award- first 
prize in large 
scale spinning 
for the years 
2021-22, 2015-
16 and 2014-15 
and second 
prize in the year 
2017-18 and 
2018-19

Safety Award for 
2025 & 2022 
under Rajasthan 
Factory Safety 
Award Scheme
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Board’s Report
To

The Members

Your Directors have pleasure to present the 33rd Annual Report on the business and operations of your Company along with the 

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial Results of the Company’s performance for the year under review and those of the previous year are as follows: -

(H in Crores) 

Particulars
Current Year  

2024-25

Previous Year 

2023-24

Revenue From Operations 3305.65 2905.65
Gross Profit Before Finance Cost, Depreciation & Exceptional item 475.02 379.30
Finance Cost 90.38 83.30
Profit before Depreciation, Exceptional items and Tax 384.64 296.00
Depreciation 147.70 118.47
Exceptional items - -
Profit before Taxation 236.94 177.53
Provision for Taxation - Current Tax 54.97 27.34
 - Earlier Year (1.00) -
 - Deferred Tax 7.54 18.67
Profit after Tax 175.43 131.52
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) net of Income Tax 3.50 (0.04)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 178.93 131.48

Earnings Per Share (J) 31.20 23.39

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

(i) REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 Your Company has registered highest ever Revenue during 

the year under review as the Revenue from Operations has 

increased to H 3305.65 Crores from H 2905.65 Crores in 

the previous year registering an increase of 13.76%. The 

revenue of Yarn increased by 18.92% during current year 

from H 2019.76 Crores to H 2402.00 Crores and revenue of 

Fabric has increased from H 716.67 Crores in the previous 

year to H 730.19 Crores during year under review. The 

optimum utilization of expanded capacities resulted in 

increased revenue.

(ii) EXPORTS 

 There is significant increase in Exports of the Company 

as it has increase to H 2111.07 Crores in the current year 

from H 1704.29 Crores in the previous year registering an 

increase of 23.86%. The Exports constituted 63.86% of the 

total revenue during the year. 

(iii) PROFITABILITY 

 The Operating Profit (EBIDTA) of your Company has 

increased by 25.23%, from H 379.30 Crores in the previous 

year to H 475.02 Crores in current year. As percentage to 

revenue from operations, the Operating Profits (EBIDTA) 

increased from 13.05% in previous year to 14.37%. The 

company has been able to increase profitability despite 

global challenges, due to increased operations, 

cost efficiencies, more focus on value added products and 

stable raw material prices. The Company has reported 

Net Profit of H 175.43 Crores in the current year against  

H 131.52 Crores in the previous year and Earning Per Share of  

H 31.20 in the current year against H 23.39 in the previous year. 

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend final Dividend of 30% 

i.e. H 3.00 per Equity Shares on the fully paid-up Equity Share 

of H 10/- each for the financial year 2024-25, against 25% i.e.  

H 2.50 per Equity Shares in the previous year, subject to approval 

of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Accordingly, total outflow towards dividend on Equity Shares 

for the year under review would be H 16.86 crores. In terms of 

provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, payment of Dividend shall be 

subject to deduction of Tax at source. 

The Board continues to support a steady dividend policy and 

recommended dividend in accordance with the Dividend 

Distribution Policy of the Company which is available on 

website of the Company at https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/

uploads/2024/02/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount 

of profits for FY 2024-25 in the profit and loss account and no 

amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves.
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Board’s Report (Contd..)

EXPANSION PROJECTS

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 27.01.2025 approved 

expansion project at an estimated project cost of H 1120 Crores 

for installation of approx. 66000 Spindles, 240 Airjet/Rapier 

Looms along with Dyeing & Finishing capacity, at Bhanwaria 

Kalan (Chittorgarh District) Plant, debottlenecking equipment at 

Hamirgarh Plant (Bhilwara District) and Renewal Power Project 

at both the Plants. The project shall be funded through internal 

accruals and Terms Loans from banks. The project is expected to 

commence commercial production in next financial year

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR)

The Company’s vision on CSR is that the Company being a 

responsible Corporate Citizen would continue to make a serious 

endeavor for improvement in quality of life and betterment of 

society through its CSR related initiatives in the local areas 

where it operate. The CSR policy is available at the website 

of the Company under the link https://nitinspinners.com/wp-

content/uploads/2024/09/CSR-Policy.pdf

During the current year, the Company has incurred expenditure 

of H 272.02 Lakhs on CSR activities against obligation of H 572.26 

Lakhs. The unspent amount of H 300.24 lakhs towards CSR 

obligation for the F.Y. 2024-25 was transferred to “Nitin Spinners 

Limited - Unspent CSR Account 2024-25” on 28.04.2025 with 

Union Bank of India, Bhilwara towards ongoing project for 

construction of school. The Annual Report on CSR Activities 

pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 8 of The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure – I hereto and form 

part of this report. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL

Following appointment/re-appointment of following Directors 

were made at the 32nd Annual General Meeting held 

on 16.09.2024 :-

Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00054658), 

retired by rotation & re-appointed and his designation was changed 

from Managing Director to Chairman & Managing Director with 

effect from 01.10.2024. 

Shri Nitin Nolakha (DIN 00054707) was appointed as Managing 

Director for five years with effect from 01.10.2024. 

Sh. Pratyush Nolakha (DIN : 10704970) was appointed as 

an Additional Director (Executive) at the Board Meeting held 

on 22.07.2024 with immediate effect and was appointed as 

Executive Director up to 30.09.2027.

Smt. Vibha Aren (DIN : 07028020), who was appointed as 

an Additional Director (Independent) at the Board Meeting 

held on 22.07.2024 with immediate effect was appointed as  

Non- Executive Independent Director for first consecutive term 

of five years w.e.f. 22.07.2024. She has the required integrity, 

expertise, experience and proficiency for appointment as a  

Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. 

No other changes have taken place in composition of Board of 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during 

the year under review.

Further, Shri Pratyush Nolakha (DIN 10704970), Executive 

Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself 

for re-appointment. On recommendation of Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee, the Board recommends his  

re-appointment for consideration of members of the Company at 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent 

Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulations 25(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’) confirming 

that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1)

(b) of the Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have 

complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed 

under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing 

Regulations. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent 

Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, 

experience (including proficiency) and expertise and they hold 

highest standards of integrity. Further, Independent Directors 

fulfill the conditions of appointment as specified in the Listing 

Regulations and in the Companies Act, 2013 and are Independent 

of the Management. The names of Independent Directors are 

included in Independent Director’s data bank maintained 

with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘IICA’) in terms of 

Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the 

Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014 and also passed the online proficiency test conducted by 

the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, wherever required. 

None of the Directors are disqualified for being appointed 

as Director as specified in Section 164(1) & (2) of the Act and 

Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 and disqualified or debarred from being 

appointed or continuing Director of the Company by virtue of 

any SEBI order or any other authority.

All the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management Personnel have confirmed compliance of “Code 

of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel”. A 

declaration by the Managing Director in this regard is enclosed 

to this Report.
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AUDITORS 

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Kalani & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 

No. 000722C/C400390) (Name changed from M/s Kalani & 

Co. w.e.f. 30.04.2025) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors 

at the 30th Annual General Meeting held on 15th September, 

2022 for second term of consecutive five years from conclusion 

of 30th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 35th 

Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2027. 

Accordingly, they have conducted Statutory Audit for the  

F.Y. 2024-25 and shall continue to be Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2025-26. They have confirmed 

their eligibility to continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company 

for the F.Y. 2025-26 under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rules framed there under. 

The Audit Report on the Financial Statements for the Financial 

Year ended on 31st March, 2025, issued by M/s Kalani & Co LLP, 

Chartered Accountants, is unmodified and do not contain any 

qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. The information 

referred in Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and hence do 

not require any further clarification. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. V. M. & Associates, 

Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No. P1984RJ039200), 

to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25 

under the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Accordingly, they have conducted Secretarial Audit for the 

Financial Year 2024-25 and Secretarial Audit Report in Form 

MR-3 is enclosed herewith. Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 

24A of Listing Regulations the Secretarial Auditors have also 

issued Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the F.Y. 2024-

25. Both the reports do not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remark. 

Pursuant to Provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations the Board 

of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee, at their 

meeting held on 13.05.2025 has recommended appointment of 

M/s V. M. & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration 

No. P1984RJ039200) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for 

first term of consecutive five years commencing from the Financial 

Year 2025-26 to Financial Year 2029-30 subject to approval of 

shareholders at the ensuing AGM. They have given their consent 

and confirmed their eligibility for the said appointment. 

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS 

The Company is required to maintain cost records, as specified 

by the Central Government, in terms of Section 148(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, 

accordingly, the Company has maintained such cost records.

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee, 

has appointed M/s. Vivek Laddha & Associates, Cost Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. 103465) to conduct Cost Audit of the Cost 

Records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 

2024-25. Accordingly, they have conducted Cost Audit for the 

Financial Year 2024-25 and their report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 

of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee, at their 

Meeting held on 13.05.2025 have re-appointed M/s. Vivek 

Laddha & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 

103465) as Cost Auditors to conduct Cost Audit of the Cost 

Records of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-2026. 

They have given their consent and confirmed their eligibility 

for the said re-appointment. The remuneration of Cost Auditors 

is proposed to be ratified by the Shareholders at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, M/s K.G. 

Somani & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (Regd. No. 

006591N/N500377) have been appointed as Internal Auditors of 

the Company with effect from 27.01.2025. 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 

During the year under review, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors, 

Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of the Company 

have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the 

Company by its officers or employees under Section 143(12) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the high standards of 

Corporate Governance and adhere to the requirements set 

out in Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. Pursuant 

to regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, the Reports on 

Corporate Governance and Management Discussions & Analysis 

have been incorporated in the Annual Report and form an 

integral part of the Board’s Report. A Certificate from Statutory 

Auditors confirming compliance to conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated under Listing Regulations forms part 

of this Annual Report.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION 

Your Company has been conferred with the following awards 

and recognition during the year under review:-

(A) The Cotton Textiles Export Promotion Council (TEXPROCIL) 

has conferred following awards to the Company for the 

year 2022-23 :- 

 (a) Gold Trophy for Highest Exports of Cotton Yarn of 

Counts 50s and below in Category – III
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 (b) Gold Plaque for Highest Exports of Cotton Yarn of 

Counts 51s and above in Category – I

 (c) Gold Trophy for Highest Employment 

Generation (Overall) 

(B) Safety Award by Government of Rajasthan: First position 

for Hamirgarh Unit and Second Position for Bhanwaria 

Kalan unit for safety, health & welfare of workers in the 

category of Large Industries for the State of Rajasthan.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

Industrial relations continued to be cordial during the period 

under review. Your Company firmly believes that a dedicated 

work force constitutes the primary source of sustainable 

competitive advantage. Accordingly, human resource 

development received focused attention. The Company has in 

house skill training centre and imparts on the job training to its 

manpower on continuous basis. 

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for 

the dedicated services rendered by the work force during the 

year under review. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

Your Directors inform the members that the Company continuously 

looks out for energy conservation measures in all areas of operations 

across its both the Units. Similarly, your Company endeavors 

to lookout for up-gradation and absorption of technology. Your 

Company also spends continuously on research and development. 

Your Directors are glad to inform the members that your Company 

is a net foreign exchange earner. The relevant details as required 

to be disclosed with respect to Energy Conservation, Technology 

Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo pursuant to 

Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8(3) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure – II 

and forms integral part of this Report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met four 

times on 09.05.2024, 22.07.2024, 07.11.2024 and 27.01.2025. 

The details of number of Board Meetings and the attendance 

of the Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance 

Report forming part of the Board’s Report. The frequency and 

intervening gap between the meetings was within the period 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations 

and Secretarial Standards-1 issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI).

COMMITTEES 

The Company has constituted Audit Committee, Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee, Risk Management Committee and Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. The details of the committees have 

been given in the Corporate Governance Report which is integral 

part of the Board’s Report. All the recommendations of the Audit 

Committee were accepted by the Board. No employee was 

denied access to the Chairperson of Audit Committee. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The details of Related Party Transactions during the financial 

year are provided in note no. 32 of financial statements. All the 

related party transactions entered during the year are entered 

on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. 

During the period under review, the Company had not entered 

into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties 

which could be considered material in accordance with the Policy 

on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions. 

The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations in this regard. 

There were no transactions requiring disclosure under Section 

134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC–2 does not 

form a part of this Annual Report.

The Policy on Related Party transactions is available 

at the website of the Company under the link https://

nitinspinners.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/Related-Party-

Transaction-Policy.pdf.pdf

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

During the year under review, the Company has neither given 

any Loan, Guarantee or provided security in connection with a 

loan nor has made any Investments under Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

During the period under review, your Company has not accepted 

any public deposit within the meaning of provisions of section 73 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance 

of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and there is no outstanding deposit due 

for re-payment. Further, no amount has been borrowed from the 

Directors of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

In pursuance of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and with the 

objective of pursuing the business in a fair and transparent 

manner by adopting the highest standards of professionalism, 

honesty, integrity and ethical behavior and to encourage 

and protect the employees who wish to raise and report their 

genuine concerns about any unethical behavior, actual or 

suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct, the 

Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy has 

been disclosed on the website of the Company under the link 

https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Vigil-

Mechanism-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf
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Board’s Report (Contd..)

During the year under review, there was no instance of fraud and 

no whistle blower event was reported. 

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION & EVALUATION 
POLICY AND EVALUATION 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regulation 19 read with Schedule II Part D of the Listing 

Regulations the Board of Directors have approved Nomination, 

Remuneration & Evaluation Policy inter-alia containing the 

criteria for appointment, remuneration & evaluation of the 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & Senior Management 

Personnel. During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee reviewed the performance of Individual Directors. 

The Board reviewed the performance of Individual Directors, 

Committees and Board itself and expressed its satisfaction on 

the same. The Independent Directors in their separate meeting 

have reviewed the performance of non-independent directors, 

Chairperson and Board as a whole along with review of quality, 

quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Board 

and management and expressed their satisfaction over the 

same. The manner in which evaluation has been carried out 

is explained in the Corporate Governance Report which is 

integral part of this report. The Nomination, Remuneration & 

Evaluation Policy is available under the link https://nitinspinners.

com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Nomination-Remuneration-

and-Evaluation-Policy.pdf During the year no amendment was 

made in the Policy.

In terms of provisions of section 178(4) of the Companies Act, 

2013 the Salient features of the Policy are given in Corporate 

Governance Report which is integral part of the Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy with 

the objective of ensuring sustainable business growth with 

stability and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, 

evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. 

The detailed Risk Management framework has been provided 

in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report of the 

Company which is integral part of the Annual Report. The Policy 

is available under the link https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/

uploads/2024/09/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & ANALYSIS OF 
REMUNERATION

The information about employees and analysis of remuneration 

as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are enclosed as Annexure - III 

ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, 

the Annual Return as on March 31, 2025 is available on the 

Company’s website under the link https://nitinspinners.com/wp-

content/uploads/2025/07/Annual-Return-MGT-7-2024-25.pdf

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company has laid down Internal Financial Controls that 

include a risk-based framework to ensure orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, safeguarding of its assets, accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records and assurance 

on reliability of financial information. The Company maintains 

adequate and effective internal control systems commensurate 

with its size and complexity. An independent internal audit function 

is an important element of the Company’s internal control systems. 

This is executed through an extensive internal audit programme 

and periodic review by the management and the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has satisfied itself on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the internal financial control systems laid down by the 

management. The Statutory Auditors have confirmed the adequacy 

of the internal financial control systems over financial reporting.

Further, details of internal control systems are given in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis which forms part of 

this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013

In line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013,the Company has in place a Policy and constituted an 

internal complaints committee to redress complaints regarding 

sexual harassment of women at workplace. The committee has 

informed following status of complaints during the year:- 

(a) Number of complaints of sexual harassment received 

during the year : Nil 

(b) Number of complaints disposed-off during the year : Nil

(c) Number of complaints pending for more than 90 days : Nil

(d) Number of complaints pending at the end of the year : Nil

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY 
REPORT 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Listing Regulations the Business 

Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2025 is attached herewith and forms part of the report.

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the Company which has occurred between 

the end of the financial year and the date of the report.
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Board’s Report (Contd..)

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company 

during the year under review. 

The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial 

standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture & 

associate company. 

No significant and material order has been passed during the 

year by the regulators or courts or tribunals which can impact 

the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

No unclaimed dividend or shares are overdue for transfer to 

Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) in terms of provisions 

of Companies Act, 2013. The year wise details of Unclaimed/

Unpaid Dividend are available at the website of the Company 

under link https://nitinspinners.com/investor-relations/company-

announcements/unclaimed-dividends/

The authorized share capital of the Company is H 60 Crores and 

the issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 

March 31, 2025 was H 56.22 crore and there was no change in the 

Share Capital of the Company during the Financial Year 2024-25.

The detail of Credit Rating and Familiarization Programs has 

been given in Corporate Governance Report which is integral 

part of the Board’s Report.

No application is made and no proceeding is pending against 

the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

(IBC Code) and there is no instance of one-time settlement of the 

Company with any bank or financial institution.

The Company is compliant with the provisions of Maternity 

Benefits Act, 1961.

Certain disclosures are common under Companies Act, 2013 and 

Listing Regulations and the same are disclosed in the Corporate 

Governance Report forming part of this Report. 

The disclosures other than made above are either nil or not 

applicable on the Company. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to sub-section 3 (c) of Section 134 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby state 

and confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied 

them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 

year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities, 

(iv) they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going 

concern basis; 

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be 

followed by the Company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance 

with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all stakeholders 

including Members, Bankers, Business Partners/Associates, 

Central and State Governments for their consistent support and 

co-operation extended to the Company and for trust reposed 

on us. We also acknowledge the significant contribution made 

by the employees by their dedication and hard work. We look 

forward to have the same support in our endeavor to help the 

Company to grow faster.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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Annexure - I
Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

 CSR is strongly connected with the principles of sustainability; an organization should make decisions based not only on financial 

factors but also on the social and environmental consequences. Hence, it is core responsibility of the Company to practice its 

corporate values through its commitment to grow in a socially and environmentally responsible way, while meeting interests of 

stakeholders. The Company recognizes that its business activities have wide impact on the societies in which it operates, and 

therefore an effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including shareholders, 

customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and other organizations. The company constantly strives 

to ensure strong corporate culture which emphasizes on integrating CSR values with business objectives.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S. 

No.
Name of Director

Designation/Nature of  

Directorship

Number of meetings of 

CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of meetings of 

CSR Committee attended 

during the year

1. Sh. Dinesh Nolkha Chairman - Executive Director 1 1
2. Sh. Nitin Nolakha Member- Executive Director 1 1
3. Sh. Rohit Mehta Member - Independent Director 1 1

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

 Composition of CSR Committee - https://nitinspinners.com/investor-relations/company-information/committee-of-directors

 CSR Policy - https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/CSR-Policy.pdf

 CSR Projects - https://nitinspinners.com/csr-environment

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in 
pursuance of sub-rule(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, 
if applicable. Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - H 28613.16 Lakhs

 (b) Two per cent of average net profit of the company As per section 135(5) - H 572.26 Lakhs

 (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Activities of the 
previous financial years.

- Nil 

 (d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Nil

 (e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] - H 572.26 Lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects

  Ongoing Project - H 21.60 Lakhs

  Other than Ongoing Project - H 250.42 Lakhs

 (b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - Nil

 (c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - N.A.

 (d) Total amount spent for Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] - H 272.02 Lakhs 
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Annexure - I (Contd..)

 (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year :

 (f) Excess amount for set off, if any - 

Total Amount Spent for the 

Financial Year. (J in Lakhs)

Amount Unspent (J in Lakhs) – 300.24

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second provision to section 135(5).

Amount.
Date of 

transfer.

Name of  

the Fund
Amount.

Date of 

transfer.

H 272.02 300.24 28.04.2025 Not Applicable

S. 

No.
Particulars Amount (J In Lakhs)

(I) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 572.26
(II) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 272.02
(III) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
(IV) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any

Nil

(V) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years :

Sl 

No.

Preceding 

Financial Year

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

sub section (6) of 

section 135 (in J)

Balance 

amount in 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

sub section (6) 

of section 135 

(in J)

Amount 

Spent in the 

Financial 

Year (in J)

Amount transferred 

to a Fund as specified 

under Schedule VII 

as per second proviso 

to subsection (5) of 

section 135, if any

Amount 

remaining to 

be spent in 

succeeding 

Financial 

Years (in J)

Deficiency, 

if any

Amount 

(in J)

Date of 

Transfer

1. 2023-24 28490441.00 19505441.00 8985000.00 Nil N.A 19505441.00 Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year : 

Yes No

 If, Yes, enter the number of Capital assets acquired - 2

S. 

No.

Short particulars of the Property 

or assets including complete 

address and location of  

the property

Pin code 

of the 

Property 

or assets

Date of 

Creation

Amount 

of CSR 

amount 

Spent (J)

Details of Entity beneficiary of the  

registered owner

CSR Regd. No. Name
Registered 

Address

1 Purchase of Land for ongoing 

Project at village Bhanwaria 

Kalan Patwar Halka Tukrai 

Tehsil Begun Distt. Chittorgarh 

(Khata No. 108 Khsra No. 

299/149)

312023 03.02.2025 57,58,600 CSR00012936 Shri Sojiram 

Ratan Lal 

Nolakha 

Charitable 

Trust

B-86 Shastri 

Nagar, 

Bhilwara-311001
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9. Specify the reason (s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per section 135(5) - The 

Company has undertaken ongoing project for construction of School and therefore unspent amount of H 300.24 Lakhs have been 

transferred to “Nitin Spinners Limited - Unspent CSR Account 2024-25”. There was no amount remaining unspent in respect of 

CSR for the F.Y. 2024-25, other than ongoing project.

S. 

No.

Short particulars of the Property 

or assets including complete 

address and location of  

the property

Pin code 

of the 

Property 

or assets

Date of 

Creation

Amount 

of CSR 

amount 

Spent (J)

Details of Entity beneficiary of the  

registered owner

CSR Regd. No. Name
Registered 

Address

2 Purchase of Land for ongoing 

Project at village Bhanwaria 

Kalan Patwar Halka Tukrai 

Tehsil Begun Distt. Chittorgarh 

(Khata No. 113 Khsra No. 

296/149)

312023 03.02.2025 53,86,400 CSR00012936 Shri Sojiram 

Ratan Lal 

Nolakha 

Charitable 

Trust

B-86 Shastri 

Nagar, 

Bhilwara-311001

Annexure - I (Contd..)

 For and on behalf of Board of Director

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

 (Chairman & Managing (Managing Director &

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Director and Chairman of CSR Committee) Member of CSR Committee)

Date : 13th May, 2025 DIN : 00054658 DIN : 00054707
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Annexure-II
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

forming part of Board’s Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

A. Conservation of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on Conservation of Energy - The 

Company gives high priority for conservation of energy in 

all fields. The Company has taken following measures for 

energy savings in the previous year :

 a) Replacement of Old type motors with Energy 

efficient Motors.

 b) Installation of device to reduce compressed Air 

Pressure from 7.1 bar to 6.50 bar

 c) Installation of high efficient washer box and new 

inverter motors of SA Fan.

 d) Installation of Inverters on Main Air Fan of Blow Room. 

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy -

 As renewable/green energy initiatives, the Company has 

installed total 18.80 MW Roof Top Solar Power Plant for 

captive consumption of Solar Power at Hamirgarh & Begun 

Units. Further, 4.65 MW of Roof Top Solar Power Plant at 

Hamirgarh unit is under implementation.

(iii) Capital Investments on energy conservation equipments 

 During the year expenditure on energy conservation 

equipment is approx. H 25.00 lakhs. 

B. Technology Absorption

(1) The efforts made towards technology absorption :- 

 The technology is being used for development of new 

products and for improvement in the production process 

and quality of products. 

(2) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 

product development or import substitute:-

 The Company has been continuously improving the quality 

of its existing products at reduced cost and developed new 

products from time to time.

(3) No technology has been imported during the last three 

years. Hence, other disclosures are not applicable.

(4) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development during 

the year is as follows :

[H In Lakhs]

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(a) Capital  - 788.37
(b) Recurring 710.23 926.79
Total (a+b) 710.23 1715.16
% to total turnover 0.21% 0.59%

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
[H In Lakhs]

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(a) Earnings (Exports on FOB Value) 197741.94 160808.51 
(b) Outgo - Capital Goods  152.65 10887.62
 - Recurring :-
 - Components, Spares Parts 1764.20 1264.77
 - Raw Materials 33710.05 17809.68
 - Sales Commission, Overseas  Freight & Others 3605.86  1579.01
 - Travelling 7.03 4.43

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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Annexure - III
Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Details of Top Ten Employees in terms of Remuneration drawn 

Name of 

Employee
Designation

Remuneration 

(J Lakhs)
Qualifications

Experience 

Years

Commencement 

of employment

Whether 

Permanent/

Contractual

Age 

Years

Last 

Employment

Sh. Dinesh 

Nolkha

Chairman & 

Managing 

Director

315.67 FCA, FCMA 30 01.01.1996 Contractual 54 -

Sh. Nitin 

Nolakha

Managing  

Director

298.14 B.Com., 

MBA

25 01.10.1998 Contractual 49 -

Sh. Sandeep 

Kumar

President & 

COO

65.87 B. Tech 33 01.04.2007 Permanent 54 ST Cotex

Sh. Umesh 

Toshniwal

Jt. President 

(Mktg.)

50.78 B.Com 31 01.04.1993 Permanent 53 -

Sh. Ramesh 

Chand Mishra

Vice President 

(Processing)

49.19 M. Tech 38 01.11.2021 Permanent 61 Morarjee  

Textiles
Sh. 

Purushottam  

Maheshwari

President & 

CFO

48.93 B.Com, FCA 40 01.08.2006 Permanent 63 BSL Ltd.

Sh. Anil Kumar 

Jain

Jt. President 

(Commercial)

46.25 B.Sc, 

CMA,CS

35 03.03.2018 Permanent 59 Sutlej 

Textiles
Sh. Ram Ji 

Shah

G M (Finish 

Fabric)

37.05 Diploma 

in Textile 

Chemistry 

25 03.11.2023 Permanent 45 Bombay 

Rayon

Sh. Inderjeet 

Singh

G M (Spinning) 37.02 B. Tech. 

(Tex.)

28 29.06.2018 Permanent 52 Welspun 

India
Sh. Arvind 

Singh Rathore

GM  (Engg.) 36.39 B.E. 

(Electrical)

34 22.01.2018 Permanent 55 RSWM Ltd.

Sh. Dinesh Nolkha and Sh. Nitin Nolakha are related to each other and none of the other employees are related to any Director or 

manager of the Company.

Notes: 

1. None of the employees of the Company are covered under Rule 5 (2) (iii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as none of the employee is in receipt of remuneration in excess of remuneration drawn by 

Managing Director & Whole Time Directors and holding whether by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, 

equal to or more than 2% of the paid-up capital of the Company.

2. Except above, none of the person was employed for the full year and was in receipt of remuneration of H 102.00 Lakhs or more per 

annum and employed for part of the year and was in receipt of remuneration aggregating to H 8.50 Lakhs or more per month.

Analysis of Managerial Remuneration

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 the statistical analysis of the remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as against 

other employees of the company and with respect to the performance of the company (PAT) is given below:-

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial 

year 2024-25 :-

Name of Directors Ratio

Executive Directors :-
Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman & Managing Director 124.55:1
Sh. Nitin Nolakha,  Managing Director 117.64:1
Sh. Pratyush Nolakha, Executive Director (w.e.f. 22.07.2024) 88.26:1
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Annexure - III (Contd..)

Name of Directors Ratio

Non Executive Independent Directors :-
Smt. Aditi Mehta (upto 27.07.2024) 0.89:1
Dr. Rabisankar  Chattopadhyay (upto 27.07.2024) 0.79:1
Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha 1.18:1
Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta 1.48:1
Smt. Vibha Aren (w.e.f. 22.07.2024) 0.89:1

 Non-Executive Independent Directors are being paid only Sitting Fee.

2. The percentage increase/(Decrease) in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 

Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2024-25:-

Name of Directors & KMP

% increase/

(Decrease) in 

remuneration

Executive Directors :-
Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman & Managing Director 27.34
Sh. Nitin Nolakha, Managing Director 27.16
Sh. Pratyush Nolakha (w.e.f. 22.07.2024) N.A.
Non Executive Independent Directors :-
Smt. Aditi Mehta (upto 27.07.2024) (30.77)
Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha 200
Dr. Rabisankar  Chattopadhyay (upto 27.07.2024) (50.00)
Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta  (6.25)
Smt. Vibha Aren (w.e.f. 22.07.2024) N.A.
CFO & Company Secretary :-
Sh. P. Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer 10.99
Sh. Sudhir Garg, Company Secretary & VP (Legal) 12.98

3. The percentage  increase in  the  median  remuneration  of employees in  the  financial year 2024-25 :- 5.77

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:- 6736

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 

year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if 

there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration :-

 Average % increase in the salary of employees other than Managerial Personnel: - 7.48

 Average % increase/(Decrease) in the Salary of the Managerial Personnel :- 30.42

 The variable component of Salary i.e. Commission of Executive Directors increased due to increase in percentage of profit of 

Company by 33.39% during the year. This resulted higher increase in the salary of Managerial Personnel in comparison to 

other employees. 

6. The Company affirms that the remuneration paid to Directors and employees are as per the remuneration policy of the company.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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Business Responsibility and 
Sustainability Report
Overview

Our Purpose

To be a leading textile manufacturer committed to 

delivering high-quality, innovative and sustainable 

products that enrich lives and foster responsible 

business practices across the globe.

Our Vision

To be the most reliable supplier across the textile value 

chain by leading with quality, innovation, and sustainability. 

We aim to establish ourselves as an integrated textiles 

manufacturer through forward and vertical integration, 

providing superior quality products at competitive prices. 

Nitin Spinners is committed to remaining at the forefront 

of high-quality textile production, exceeding industry 

standards, enhancing shareholder value, and promoting 

strong partnerships. By focusing on innovation and 

customer-centric solutions, we strive to expand our global 

presence and contribute positively to our communities and 

the environment

Our Values

At Nitin Spinners, our values are the cornerstone of our 

success. They guide our decisions, shape our culture, 

and inspire our people to achieve excellence every day.

Innovation: We are committed to adopting cutting-edge 

technology and continuously improving our processes 

to stay competitive and meet customer expectations. 

Innovation drives our pursuit of excellence in product 

quality and operational efficiency.

Agility: Agility is central to our operations, allowing 

us to adapt swiftly to changing market demands and 

environmental needs. This flexibility helps us maintain a 

competitive edge and capitalize on new opportunities.
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Sustainability: We prioritize eco-friendly practices, such as using organic cotton, recycled fibres, installation of ZLD and renewable 

energy sources, which contribute to resource conservation and minimize our environmental footprint.

Integrity: Our business is built on a foundation of transparency, accountability, and ethical practices. We are dedicated to maintaining 

high standards in corporate governance and stakeholder engagement.

Community Engagement: We are deeply committed to social responsibility, supporting local communities through education, 

healthcare, and infrastructure development. Our CSR initiatives are an integral part of our corporate culture, aimed at fostering 

equitable growth and development.

Sustainable Development

Nitin Spinners is dedicated to promoting sustainable development across all facets of its operations. We have implemented a 

Zero Liquid Discharge system, water recycling, and rainwater harvesting facilities to reduce our water footprint. We actively 

utilize solar energy, resulting in a reduction in carbon emissions, and ensure that over 43% of our raw materials are sourced 

sustainably, including organic, regenagri and BCI cotton. Additionally, our community-focused CSR initiatives support 

education, health and environmental conservation efforts. 

Principle 1
Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

We adhere to strong corporate governance practices, reinforced by our Code of Conduct for all employees and a Vigil 

Mechanism for reporting grievances. Our policies are designed to ensure ethical, transparent, and accountable business 

operations. We regularly review compliance with statutory requirements and maintain a zero-tolerance approach toward 

bribery and corruption.

Principle 2
Product Life Cycle Sustainability

Our commitment to producing sustainable and safe textile products is reflected in our sourcing of certified raw materials, 

including BCI-certified cotton and recycled fibers. We minimize waste through recycling initiatives and have adopted a 

Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) system for wastewater management. Additionally, we have made significant investments in 

renewable energy, such as solar power installations, to reduce our carbon footprint.

Principle 3
Employee Well-being

We prioritize the well-being of our employees by providing health and safety initiatives, including health insurance, 

regular safety training, and workplace hazard assessments. Our employee policies adhere to SA 8000 standards for 

social accountability, covering non-discrimination, safe working conditions, and fair labor practices.
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Principle 4
Stakeholder Engagement

We actively engage with our stakeholders, including employees, local communities, and shareholders. Stakeholder 

grievances are addressed through dedicated committees, and we maintain regular engagement with the community 

through our CSR initiatives, which focus on healthcare, education, and infrastructure development.

Principle 6
Environmental Responsibility

We emphasize environmental sustainability by reducing water usage, recycling waste, and investing in renewable energy. 

Our Zero Waste to Landfill policy ensures that no waste is sent to landfills, with all by-products either recycled internally or 

repurposed for other industries. These efforts reflect our broader commitment to responsible environmental stewardship.

Principle 8
Inclusive Growth and Equitable Development

Through our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programs, we support inclusive growth by focusing on education, 

healthcare, and infrastructure development in the communities where we operate. Our CSR committee oversees the 

progress of these projects, ensuring they align with our commitment to equitable development.

PrinciPle 5
Human Rights

We believe that human rights are fundamental to our operations. We train our employees on fair labor practices, prevent 

child labor, and ensure workplace safety. Our policies are designed to respect human rights throughout our operations 

and value chain, promoting a culture of respect and dignity.

Principle 7
Responsible Policy Advocacy

We participate in various industry associations and advocacy groups, including the Confederation of Indian Textile 

Industry and the Cotton Textiles Export Promotion Council. Through these platforms, we advocate for policies that 

promote sustainable practices within the textile industry and engage responsibly in public policy discussions.

Principle 9
Consumer Value

We place a high value on customer satisfaction and have established mechanisms for handling complaints and 

feedback. We consistently achieve high levels of customer satisfaction through our commitment to innovation, quality, 

and responsible business practices. Additionally, our data privacy and cybersecurity policies are designed to protect 

customer information and maintain trust.
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At Nitin Spinners Limited, sustainability is an integral part 

of our business strategy. This Business Responsibility and 

Sustainability Report (BRSR) for the financial year 2024-25 

outlines our ongoing efforts to align with the National Guidelines 

on Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBC) and our continued 

dedication to creating long-term value for all stakeholders.

Our journey towards sustainability is driven by a deep 

understanding of the challenges and opportunities presented 

by our industry. We recognize the importance of reducing our 

environmental footprint and enhancing our resource efficiency, 

which is why we have focused on energy conservation, waste 

management and sustainable sourcing. The installation of 

rooftop solar power plants and our Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) 

system are key milestones in our efforts to reduce energy 

consumption and ensure responsible water usage.

People are at the heart of our business, and we are committed 

to ensuring the well-being of our employees and workers. 

Through our health and safety initiatives, we have successfully 

implemented ISO 45001 certifications, providing a safe and 

healthy workplace for everyone at Nitin Spinners. Furthermore, 

we have continuously invested in skill development and 

training programs to empower our workforce, ensuring they are 

equipped with the knowledge and tools to thrive in a rapidly 

changing world.

Dinesh Nolkha

Chairman & Managing Director

Nitin Spinners Limited

Message from the Chairman & Managing Director

As we expand our global footprint, serving customers in more 

than 55 countries, we continue to prioritize the highest standards 

of quality and sustainability in our products. Our sustainable 

sourcing efforts, including the use of Organic and Better Cotton 

Initiative (BCI), GOTS OCS certified cotton, regenagri and recycled 

materials; demonstrate our commitment to minimizing our impact 

on the environment while delivering value to our customers.

I would like to extend my appreciation to all our stakeholders 

employees, customers, suppliers, investors and the communities 

in which we operate. It is through our collective efforts that 

we are able to make meaningful progress towards a more 

sustainable future.

As we look ahead, we remain focused on driving continuous 

improvement in our sustainability performance. We are 

committed to being a responsible corporate citizen, contributing 

to the socio-economic development of the communities we 

serve, and promoting a circular economy that benefits all.
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Pursuant to Regulation 34(2) (f) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)

Business Responsibility  
and Sustainability Reporting 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

I. Details of the listed entity

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity L17111RJ1992PLC006987
2. Name of the Listed Entity NITIN SPINNERS LIMITED
3. Year of Incorporation 1992
4. Registered Office Address 16-17 Km. Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh, Bhilwara 

-311025, Rajasthan
5. Corporate Address 16-17 Km. Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh, Bhilwara 

-311025, Rajasthan
6. E-mail id nsl@nitinspinners.com
7. Telephone 01482-286110-113
8. Website www.nitinspinners.com
9. Financial year for which reporting is being Done FY2025 (1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025)
10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are Listed BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

(NSE)
11. Paid up Capital (INR) H 5622.00 Lakhs
12. Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the 

person who may be contacted in case of any queries on the 

BRSR report

Mr. Sudhir Garg  

Company Secretary & VP (Legal) 01482 - 286110 - 113 

sudhirgarg@nitinspinners.com
13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report 

made on a standalone basis (i.e., only for the entity) or on 

a consolidated basis (i.e., for the entity and all the entities 

which form a part of its consolidated financial statements, 

taken together)

The Company has no subsidiary.

14. Name of assessment or assurance provider Not Applicable
15. Type of assessment or assurance provider Not Applicable

II. Products / Services

16. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the Turnover):

S. 

No.
Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of the entity

1. Manufacturing of Yarn & Fabric The company is in the business of making 

cotton and blended yarn and fabric for both 

exports and domestic market.

100%

S. 

No.
Product/Service NIC Code % of total contributed Turnover

1. Yarn 13111 73%
2. Knitted Fabric 13911 5%
3. Woven Fabric 13121 17%

17. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

mailto:nsl@nitinspinners.com
http://www.nitinspinners.com
mailto:sudhirgarg@nitinspinners.com
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III. Operations

18. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of Plants Number of offices Total

National 2 1 (Office is at plant premises) 2
International* Nil Nil Nil

Locations Number

National (No. of States) All states of India
International (No. of Countries) More than 55

19. Markets served by the entity:

 a. Number of locations

 b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?

  Export contribution of Nitin Spinners Limited is around 63.86% of the total turnover of the entity.

Glimpse of Fibers & Yarns fair 2025 held in Mumbai.

 c. A brief on types of customers

  We provide a comprehensive range of high-quality textile products (from yarn to knitted and woven fabrics) of international 

standards that are innovative, sustainable and available at a competitive price to its customers across different segments 

in the national and international market.



47

CORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S. 

No.
Particulars Total (A)

Male Female

No. (B) % (B / A) No. (C) % (C / A)

EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 732 731 99.86% 1 0.14%
2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0% 0 0%
3. Total employees (D + E) 732 731 99.86% 1 0.14%

WORKERS
4. Permanent (D) 6004 5864 97.67% 140 2.33%
5. Other than Permanent (E) 56 56 100% 0 0%
6. Total workers (D+E) 6060 5920 97.69% 140 2.31%

IV. Employees

20. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

 a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

 b. Differently abled Employees and workers:

S. 

No.
Particulars Total (A)

Male Female

No. (B) % (B / A) No. (C) % (C / A)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 1 1 100% 0 0%
2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0% 0 0%
3. Total employees (D + E) 1 1 100% 0 0%

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4. Permanent (D) 10 10 100% 0 0%
5. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0% 0 0%
6. Total employees (D+E) 10 10 100% 0 0%

21. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women

Total (A)
No. and percentage of Females

No. (B) % (B/A)

Board of Directors 6 1 16.67%
Key Management Personnel 2 0 0%

Total Worker + Employee
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22. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

Turnover rate FY 2024-25 Turnover rate FY 2023-24 Turnover rate FY 2022-23

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total

Permanent Employees 5.70% 0.00% 5.70% 4.40% 0 4.40% 4.1% NA 4.1%
Permanent Workers 28% 6% 27.60% 21.00% 6%  23.69% 18% 0% 18%

Stakeholder group 

from whom complaint 

is received

Grievance Redressal 

Mechanism in Place 

(Yes/No)  

(If yes, then provide 

web- link for 

grievance redress 

policy)

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Number of 

complaints 

filed during 

the year

Number of 

complaints 

pending 

resolution 

at close of 

the year

Remarks

Number of 

complaints 

filed during 

the year

Number of 

complaints 

pending 

resolution 

at close of 

the year

Remarks

Communities Y* - - - - - -
Investors 

(Shareholder)

Y** - - - - - -

Shareholders Y** - - - - - -
Employees and 

workers

Y*** - - - - - -

Customers Y**** - - - - - -
Value Chain Partners Y***** - - - - - -

IV. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

23. a. Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

  Not Applicable as the company does not have a holding, subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.

V. CSR Details

24. (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: (Yes/No) - Yes

  a. Turnover (in H) - H 330565.42 lakhs (FY 2024-25)

  b. Net worth (in H)- H 131119.94 lakhs (As on 31st March’25)

VI. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

25. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on Responsible Business 

Conduct:

 No complaints have been received from communities, value chain partners and employees during the FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.

 *Complaints/Grievances from Communities and Value Chain Partners are addressed by relevant departments on a case-to-case basis.

 **The Company has appointed Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. to look into the grievances/complaints of the shareholders. 

In addition to it the Company has designated email ID investorrelations@nitinspinners.com, where the shareholders can send their grievances/complaints. 

Board has constituted several Committees of Directors with adequate delegation of powers to focus effectively on issues and ensure expedient resolution 

of diverse matters. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee deals with all the grievances and complaints of the Investors and Shareholders.

 ***The details of grievance redressal mechanism for employees and workers are provided in Principle 3, point No. 6.

 **** The various mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback are provided in Principle 9, point No. 1.

 Policies & grievance redressal mechanism are accessible on https://nitinspinners.com/policies/.

mailto:investorrelations@nitinspinners.com
https://nitinspinners.com/policies/
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26. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues 

 Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and social 

matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate 

the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format.

S. 

No.
Material issue identified

Indicate 

whether risk 

or opportunity 

(R/O)

Rationale for 

identifying The risk / 

opportunity

In case of risk, approach 

to adapt or mitigate

Financial implications 

of the risk or 

opportunity (Indicate 

positive or negative 

implications)

1 Market Shift towards 

Sustainable Textiles

O Increasing global and 

domestic demand 

for sustainable and 

traceable textile 

products presents 

a strong growth 

opportunity.

We are expanding 

our sustainable 

product portfolio by 

using organic, BCI, 

and recycled cotton, 

and enhancing our 

traceability systems.

Positive

2 Energy Consumption and 

Cost Efficiency

R Energy is a major 

component of 

our operational 

expenditure. 

Rising tariffs and 

environmental 

concerns over fossil 

fuel use demand a 

more efficient and 

cleaner energy 

approach.

We have undertaken 

multiple energy 

efficiency initiatives, 

including switching to 

biomass pellets for boiler 

fuel, expanding our solar 

PV installations, and 

modernizing equipment 

to exceed the energy 

performance benchmarks 

set by BEE.

Negative

3 Climate Change Impact 

on Cotton Yield

R Cotton yields 

are increasingly 

threatened by erratic 

weather patterns 

and droughts in key 

sourcing regions.

We are working with 

cotton farmers, promoting 

climate-resilient 

farming practices, and 

strengthening supplier 

diversification.

Negative

4 Water Consumption in 

Operations

R Water scarcity 

and operational 

dependency on water 

pose regulatory and 

reputational risks, 

especially in water-

stressed regions.

We have achieved 98% 

water recycling at our 

fabric plant, adopted 

Zero Liquid Discharge, 

and strengthened 

rainwater harvesting 

and sewage treatment 

capacities.

Negative

5 ESG and Compliance 

Requirements

O Strengthening ESG 

regulations from 

global brands 

and investors 

drive demand for 

compliance-ready 

suppliers.

We have adopted ISO 

14001, Higg Index, and 

other third-party verified 

standards. Sustainability 

disclosures aligned with 

global frameworks are 

being enhanced.

Positive

6 Circularity and Waste 

Management

O Rising demand 

for circularity in 

textiles can create 

a competitive 

advantage for early 

movers.

We are piloting initiatives 

to reuse post-industrial 

waste, exploring 

partnerships for textile-

to-textile recycling.

Positive
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards adopting the 

NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

We have implemented following policies towards adopting National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBC):

Principle 1: 
Transparency & Accountability

 Code of Conduct for Directors and 

Senior Management Personnel

 Code of Conduct for Employees

 Policy on Board diversity

 Risk Management Policy

 Vigil Mechanism Policy

 Succession Policy

 Insider Trading Policy

 Related Party Transaction Policy

Principle 4: 
Stakeholder Engagement

 Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) Policy

 Dividend Distribution Policy

 Archival Policy

Principle 7: 
Policy Advocacy

 Public and Regulatory Policy

Principle 2: 
Product Responsibility

 Integrated Management 

Systems Policy ISO 9001, 

14001, 45001 & 50001

Principle 5: 
Human Rights

 Human Rights Policy

 Policy on Prevention of 

Sexual Harassment of 

women at workplace

Principle 8: 
Inclusive Growth

 Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) Policy

Principle 3: 
Employee Development

 Equal Opportunity 

Employer Policy

 Policy on Prevention of Sexual  

Harassment of Women  

at workplace

 SA 8000 Assessment

Principle 6: 
Environment

 Integrated Management 

Systems Policy ISO 9001, 

14001, 45001 & 50001

Principle 9: 
Customer Value

 Customer Centricity Policy

 Data Privacy and Cyber 

Security Policy
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Disclosure Questions P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

Policy and management processes
1. a. Whether your entity’s policy/policies cover each 

principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

 b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No) Yes
 c. Web Link* of the Policies, if available https://nitinspinners.com/policies/
2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into 

procedures. (Yes /No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain 

partners? (Yes/No)

N N N N N N N N N

4. Name of the national and international codes/

certifications/labels/ standards (e.g., Forest Stewardship 

Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustea) standards 

(e.g., SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by your entity 

and mapped to each principle.

All the Policies has been made as per the National 

Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct, 2019 released 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO 

45001, ISO 50001, SA 8000 (Social Accountability)

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the entity 

with defined timelines, if any.

Our strategies, business model and operations are based on 

environment protection, employee, and customer safety.
6. Performance of the entity against the specific 

commitments, goals and targets along-with reasons in 

case the same are not met.

NA

Governance, leadership, and oversight
7. Statement by director responsible for the business 

responsibility report, highlighting ESG related challenges, 

targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility 

regarding the placement of this disclosure)

The message from CMD has been included at the beginning 

of this report.

8. Details of the highest authority responsible for 

implementation and oversight of the Business 

Responsibility policy (ies).

Mr. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman & Managing Director

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/ 

Director responsible for decision making on sustainability 

related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide details.

Yes, Implementation and oversight of the Business 

Responsibility Policies and the decision making on 

sustainability related issues is the responsibility of  

Mr. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman of the Risk Management 

Committee of the Company, which comprises of following 

members as on March 31, 2025:

Mr. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman

Mr. Rishabh Chand Lodha, NEID

Mr. Purushottam Maheshwari, CFO

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Subject for Review

Indicate whether review was undertaken by 

Director / Committee of the Board/ Any  

other Committee

Frequency (Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ 

Any other – please specify)

P 

1

P 

2

P 

3

P 

4

P 

5

P 

6

P 

7

P 

8

P 

9

P 

1

P 

2

P 

3

P 

4

P 

5

P 

6

P 

7

P 

8

P 

9

Performance against above 

policies and follow up action

The review has been done by CMD and the 

Risk Management Committee.

The frequency of the review is Annual with 

Risk Management Committee and Quarterly 

with the CMD.
Compliance with statutory 

requirements of relevance to 

the principles, and, rectification 

of any non- compliances

Compliance with the laws of the land is the first step in responsible business conduct.  

The compliance review with all the statutory requirements of relevance to the principles 

of National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct has been done by the respective 

committees of the Board.

https://nitinspinners.com/policies/
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11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ evaluation of the working of its policies by an external agency? 
(Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the agency.

 No, the assessment / evaluation of the working of its policies is being done internally as part of the business operating policies 

and procedures.

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e., not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

 Not Applicable

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements with key 

processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership.” While the essential indicators are 

expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be voluntarily disclosed by 

entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially, environmentally, and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical, 
Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators:

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the principles during the financial year:

 We have introduced an online Learning Management System (LMS), by mapping the learning curve of every individual to 

inculcate the culture of continuous learning and growth in our people.

Segment

Total number of 

Training and awareness 

programmes held

Topics/principles covered under 

the training and its impact

% age of persons in 

respective category 

Covered by the 

awareness programmes

Board of Directors 1 All Principles 100%
Key Managerial Personnel 1 All Principles 100%
Employees other than BoD and KMPs Multiple Training 

Programs

Employees have been given 

training on Principle 1 and other 

Principle as applicable to their 

respective functional area

100%

Workers Multiple Training 

Programs

Principle as applicable to their 

respective functional Area.

100%

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ 
compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in 
proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) 
with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial 
institutions, in the financial year, in the following format. 
(Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of 
materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 
2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s website):

 No such fines/ penalties/ punishment/ award/ compounding 

fees /settlement amount paid in proceedings either by the 

entity or by directors or KMPs.

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details 
of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where 
monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

 Not applicable as no fines/ penalties/ punishment/ award/ 

compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings 

either by the entity or by directors or KMPs.

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery 
policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, 
provide a web-link to the policy.

 The Code of Conduct Policy, Code of Conduct for Directors 

and Senior Management Personnel and Vigil Mechanism 
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covers the concerns regarding anti-corruption or anti-

bribery policy. All the policies are accessible at https://

nitinspinners.com/policies/ .

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers 
against whom disciplinary action was taken by any 
law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ 
corruption:

 No disciplinary action was taken by any law enforcement 

agency for the charges of bribery/corruption against any of 

the Directors/KMPs/employees.

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

 No complaint was received with regard to conflict of 

interest of the Directors, KMPs or any other employee.

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or 
underway on issues related to fines /penalties /action 
taken by regulators / law enforcement agencies 
/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and 
conflicts of interest.

 Not applicable as no fines / penalties / punishment / 

award / compounding fees / settlement amount paid in 

proceedings either by the entity or by directors or KMPs.

8. Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods/services procured) in the  
following format:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Number of days of accounts payables 12.37 days 11.5 days

Parameter Metrics FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Concentration of purchases a. Purchases from trading houses as % of  

total purchases

11.27% 10.94%

b. Number of trading houses where purchases 

are made from

12 20

c. Purchases from top 10 trading houses as% of 

total purchases from trading houses

98.50%  81.30%

Concentration of Sales a. Sales to dealer /distributors as % of  

total sales

16.58% 21.54%

b. Number of dealers/distributors to whom 

sales are made

225  226

c. Sales to top 10 dealers/ distributors as % of 

total sales to dealers / distributors

38.87% 38.44%

Share of RPTs in a. Purchases (Purchases with related parties / 

Total Purchases)

- -

b. Sales (Sales to related parties / Total Sales) - -
c. Loans & advances (Loans & advances given 

to related parties / Total loans & advances)

- -

d. Investments (Investments in related parties/ 

Total Investments made)

- -

9. Open-ness of business

 Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties along-with loans and 

advances & investments, with related parties, in the following format:

https://nitinspinners.com/policies/
https://nitinspinners.com/policies/
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PRINCIPLE 2

Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental 
and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

Current Financial 

Year 2024-25

Previous Financial 

Year 2023-24

Details of improvements 

in environmental and 

social impacts

R & D Not Applicable Not Applicable
Capex Not Applicable Not Applicable

 The steps taken or impact on Conservation of Energy - The 

Company gives high priority for conservation of energy in 

all fields. The Company has taken following measures for 

energy savings in the previous year:

 i. Replacement of Old type motors with Energy 

efficient Motors. 

 ii. Installation of device to reduce compressed Air 

Pressure from 7.1 bar to 6.50 bar 

 iii. Installation of high efficient washer box and new 

inverter motors of SA Fan. 

 iv. Installation of Inverters on Main Air Fan of Blow Room. 

  As renewable/green energy initiatives, the Company 

has installed total 18.80 MW Roof Top Solar Power 

Plant for captive consumption of Solar Power at 

Hamirgarh & Begun Units. Further, 4.65 MW of Roof 

Top Solar Power Plant at Hamirgarh unit is under 

implementation.

2. a. Does the entity have procedures in place for 

sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)

  Yes

 b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced 

sustainably?

  The Company has a policy to encourage a purchase 

of Organic Cotton, BCI (Better Cotton Initiative) 

certified cotton, regenerative cotton and recycled 

Polyester Fiber. We also use recycled cotton fiber 

in our manufacturing. For the FY we have procured 

43.08% of the raw material from responsible sources 

which include BCI Certified, Organic and Recycled 

Cotton and Recycled Polyester Fiber.

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your 
products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the 
end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) 
E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

 All our natural fiber products are compostable waste 

is disposed to authorized vendors. Hazardous waste is 

disposed as per norms to authorized Industries or deposited 

in authorized collectors.

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is 
applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No). If yes, 
whether the waste collection plan is in line with 
the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan 
submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide 
steps taken to address the same.

 Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 3

Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their  
value chains.

Essential Indicators

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Category

% of employees covered by

Total (A)

Health  

insurance
Accident insurance

Maternity 

benefits

Paternity 

Benefits

Day Care 

facilities

Number 

(B)
% (B/A)

Number 

(C)
% (C/A)

Number 

(D)

% 

(D/A)

Number 

(E)

% 

(E/A)

Number 

(F)

% 

(F/A)

Permanent employees
Male 731 139 19.02% 709 96.99% - - - - - -
Female 1 1 100% 1 100% 1 100% - - - -
Total 732 140 19.13% 710 96.99% 1 100% - - - -

Other than Permanent employees
Male - - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - - -

Category

% of workers covered by

Total (A)

Health  

insurance

Accident 

insurance

Maternity 

benefits

Paternity 

Benefits

Day Care 

facilities

Number 

(B)
% (B/A)

Number 

(C)

% 

(C/A)

Number 

(D)

% 

(D/A)

Number 

(E)

% 

(E/A)

Number 

(F)

% 

(F/A)

Permanent workers
Male 5864 5864 100% 5864 100% NA NA - - - -
Female 140 140 100% 140 100% 140 100% - - - -
Total 6004 6004 100% 6004 100% 140 100% - - - -

Other than Permanent workers
Male 56 56 100% 56 100% NA NA - - - -
Female 0 0 NA 0 NA NA NA - - - -
Total 56 56 100% 56 100% NA NA - - - -

 b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

 c. Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and other than permanent) 

in the following format:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Cost incurred on well-being measures as a % of total revenue of  

the company

0.32% 0.34%
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2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year

Benefits

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

No. of 

employees 

covered as 

a % of total 

employees

No. of workers 

covered as a % 

of total workers

Deducted and 

deposited with 

the authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)

No. of 

employees 

covered as 

a % of total 

Employees

No. of workers 

covered as a % 

of total workers

Deducted and 

deposited with 

the authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)

PF 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
Gratuity 100% 100% NA 100% 100% NA
ESI* 22% 100% Y 21% 100% Y
Others- please specify

 *All eligible employees are covered under ESI

3. Accessibility of workplaces 

  Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the requirements of the 

Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard.

 Yes, the corporate office of the entity is accessible to differently abled employees and workers.

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If so, provide 
a web-link to the policy.

 Yes, the entity does have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 and is a part of 

SA8000 (Social Accountability) Assessment. Policies of the company are accessible on https://nitinspinners.com/policies/.

5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

 Not applicable as no employee worker has taken any Parental leave during the financial year.

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and 
worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Workers The company has a grievance redressal committee comprising of management 

representatives and worker representative and have their regular meetings. In the 

grievance redressal committee both the grievances and the suggestions from the 

employees are taken, discussed and the complaints are resolved.

In every department also has separate grievance committee, presided by the 

departmental head, where all the complaints are resolved by mutual discussion. 

Company also has a suggestion/grievance box where worker can give their 

suggestion/grievance anonymously.

Other than Permanent Workers
Permanent Employees
Other than Permanent Employees

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:

 There are no employee association(s) or unions recognized by the company.

8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

Category

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total (A)

On Health and 

safety measures

On Skill 

upgradation Total (D)

On Health and 

safety measures

On Skill 

upgradation

No. (B) % (B/ A) No. (C) % (C/ A) No. (E) %(E/D) No. (F)  %(F/D)

Employees
Male 731 731 100% 731 100% 684 684 100% 684 100%
Female 1 1 100% 1 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total 732 732 100% 732 100% 684 684 100% 684 100%

https://nitinspinners.com/policies/
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Category

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total (A)

On Health and 

safety measures

On Skill 

upgradation Total (D)

On Health and 

safety measures

On Skill 

upgradation

No. (B) % (B/ A) No. (C) % (C/ A) No. (E) %(E/D) No. (F)  %(F/D)

Workers
Male 5864 5864 100% 5864 100% 6458 6458 100% 6458 100%
Female 140 140 100% 140 100% 144 144 100% 144 100%
Total 6004 6004  100% 6004 100% 6602 6602 100% 6602 100%

9. Details of performance and Career development reviews of employees:

Category
FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total (A) No. (B) % (B / A) Total (C) No. (D) % (D / C)

Employees
Male 731 731 100% 684 684 100%
Female 1 1  100% 0 NA NA
Total 732 732 100% 684 684 100%

Workers
Male 5864 5864 100% 6458 6458 100%
Female 140 140 100% 144 144 100%
Total 6004 6004 100% 6602 6602 100%

10. Health and safety management system:

 a. Whether an occupational health and safety 

management system has been implemented by the 

entity? (Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage of such system?

  The plants are covered under ISO 45001 – 

Occupational Health and Safety Management 

Systems. The company is also certified under SA 

8000 (Social Accountability) Policy.

 b. What are the processes used to identify work-related 

hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-

routine basis by the entity?

  Hazard identification and risk assessment process is 

carried out to identify the work-related hazards and 

risks. This assessment process helps to identify the 

hazards pertaining to each activity and allows us to 

implement control measures against each hazard to 

bring them to a tolerable risk level.

 c. Whether you have processes for workers to report 

the work-related hazards and to remove themselves 

from such risks. (Y/N)

  Yes, the employees can report the work-related 

hazards to the Business Manager and they are 

trained to remove themselves from risks.

 d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have 

access to non-occupational medical and healthcare 

services? (Yes/ No)

  Yes, the employees and workers have a access to 

medical consultation on the plant premises for any 

occupational or non-occupational medical issues.

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following 
format:

 No Safety related recordable incident has occurred during 

the FY 23-24 and FY 24-25.

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a 
safe and healthy workplace.

 Health & safety is a consistent practice at our facilities. 

We have installed fire protection equipment’s, conducted 

fire safety training, and always ensured factory hygiene. 

Moreover, fire evacuation drills are conducted once a 

month to raise awareness amongst workers to ensure the 

safety of people, plants, and products. Health and Safety 

management system implemented by the company are 

certified under ISO 45001: 2018 and SA 8000 policies. 

Some of the activities undertaken are:

	 Allocate light work, freedom of rest, baby feeding 

and leave the place of work at will for the care of 

expectant and nursing mother.

	 Sufficient and appropriate free PPE kits to all exposed 

to hazardous work.

	 Provide effective training on health & Safety.

	 Sufficient no. of fire extinguishers, hose box, hose 

reels & Fire Tender.

	 Provision of adequate fire safety tools.

	 Formation of Works committee

	 Provision of first aid tools, fire and first aid training, 

Annual health check-up
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13. Number of Complaints on the following made by 
employees and workers:

 No complaints have been made by employees / workers 

during current financial year or the previous financial year.

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices 

that were assessed (by entity or 

statutory authorities or third parties)

Health and safety 

practices

100%

Working Conditions 100%

 The operations are assessed for ISO 45001 certifications 

and SA 8000 (Social Accountability) Assessment.

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or 
underway to address safety-related incidents (if 
any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from 
assessments of health & safety practices and working 
conditions.

 Not applicable as no recordable safety related incident 

has happened and no on significant risks / concerns has 

arisen from assessments of health & safety practices and 

working conditions.

PRINCIPLE 4

Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

 Nitin Spinners believes in forging a strong relationship with its stakeholders based on trust and delivery, The Stakeholders 

expectations and concerns offer critical inputs to the management of business and its growth. The key stakeholders include 

employees, customers, suppliers, investors, analysts, shareholders, regulatory bodies and community around our plants.

2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder 
group.

Stakeholder Group

Whether identified 

as Vulnerable & 

Marginalized Group 

(Yes/No)

Channels of communication 

(Email, SMS, Newspaper, 

Pamphlets, Advertisement, 

Community Meetings, 

Notice Board, Website), 

Other

Frequency of 

engagement 

(Annually/Half 

yearly/ Quarterly/

others – please 

specify)

Purpose and scope of 

engagement including 

key topics and 

concerns raised during 

such engagement

Customers No Customer Meetings, 

Customer Feedback, 

Website, Product 

Catalogues.

Ongoing Customer Satisfaction, 

Product Quality

Employees No Notice Boards, Website, 

Employee Survey 

Feedback, Annual 

Performance Review, 

Meetings, Trainings.

Ongoing Working Condition, 

Employee 

performance, 

Employee Satisfaction
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Stakeholder Group

Whether identified 

as Vulnerable & 

Marginalized Group 

(Yes/No)

Channels of communication 

(Email, SMS, Newspaper, 

Pamphlets, Advertisement, 

Community Meetings, 

Notice Board, Website), 

Other

Frequency of 

engagement 

(Annually/Half 

yearly/ Quarterly/

others – please 

specify)

Purpose and scope of 

engagement including 

key topics and 

concerns raised during 

such engagement

Shareholders No AGM, Investors meet, 

Investor Grievance 

redressal mechanism

Ongoing Business Strategies 

and Performance

Regulatory Authorities No Compliance Reports Ongoing Compliance with the 

law of the land.
Media No Press Releases, Social 

Media Platforms, Media 

interactions

Ongoing Information 

dissemination, 

communicating 

company’s perspective
Community Yes Corporate Social 

Responsibility 

engagements, Meeting 

with community 

representative.

Ongoing Welfare of the 

community

PRINCIPLE 5

Businesses should respect and promote human rights Essential Indicators

Essential Indicators

1. Employees who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, in the  
following format:

 The employees and workers have been trained under SA 8000 (Social Accountability Standard) policies regarding child labour, 

forced labour, discrimination and safe and healthy workplace and other aspect related to human rights at the workplaces.

Category

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total(A)

No. of 

employees 

/ workers 

covered (B)

% (B/ A) Total (C)

No. of 

employees/ 

workers 

covered (D)

% (D/ C)

Employees
Permanent 732 732 100% 684 684 100%
Other than Permanent 0            0 0% 0 0 0%
Total Employees 732 732 100% 684 684 100%

Workers
Permanent 6004 6004 100% 6458 6458 100%
Other than Permanent 56 56 100% 144 144 100%
Total 6060 6060 100%     6602 6602 100%
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2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees, in the following format:

Category

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total (A)

Equal to  

Minimum Wage

More than 

Minimum Wage Total (D)

Equal to 

Minimum Wage

More than 

Minimum Wage

No. (B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A) No. (E) % (E/D) No. (F) % (F/D)

Employees
Permanent
Male 731 - - 731 100% 684 - - 684 100%
Female 1 - - 1 100% - - - - -
Other than 

Permanent
Male - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - -

Workers
Permanent
Male 5864 - - 5864 100% 6458 - - 6458 100%
Female 140 - - 140 100% 144 - - 144 100%
Other than 

Permanent
Male 56 - -       56 100% 104 - - 104 100%
Female - - -         - - - - - - -

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:

 a. Median remuneration / wages

Male Female

Number

Median remuneration/ 

salary/ wages of 

respective category

Number

Median remuneration/ 

salary/ wages of 

respective category

Board of Directors (BoD)* 2 3.0 Lakhs 1 2.25 Lakhs
Key Managerial Personnel * 5 48.93 Lakhs NA NA
Employees other than BoD  

and KMP

725 5.32 Lakhs 1 2.70 Lakhs

Workers 5864 2.53 Lakhs 141 2.53 Lakhs

  * This is only for Independent Directors. Whole time directors are covered under KMPS.

 b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity, in the following format:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Gross wages paid to females as % total wages 1.14% 1.07%

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused 
or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

 Yes, the Chief Human Resource Officer is the focal point for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or contributed to 

by the business

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

 Yes. All the complaints regarding human rights violations are routed to Head HR. Head HR and the Grievance Redressal 

Committee takes action as per the Grievance Mechanism Organization Structure in compliance with SA 8000 (Social 

Accountability) certification.
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6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Filed during 

the year

Pending 

resolution at 

the end  

of year

Remarks
Filed during 

the year

Pending 

resolution at 

the end  

of year

Remarks

Sexual Harassment 0 - - - - -
Discrimination at workplace 0 - - - - -
Child Labour 0 - - - - -
Forced Labour / Involuntary 

Labour

0 - - - - -

Wages 0 - - - - -
Other human rights related issues 0 - - - - -

7. Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013, in the following format:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment on Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH)

Nil Nil

Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees / workers NA NA
Complaints on POSH upheld NA NA

8. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.

 The Code of Conduct, Vigil Mechanism Policy and the Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment provides the mechanism to 

prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.

9. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)

 No, this is being assessed by the legal functions.

10. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or 

statutory authorities or third parties)

Child labour 100%
Forced/involuntary labour 100%
Sexual harassment 100%
Discrimination at workplace 100%
Wages 100%
Others - please specify -

 Assessments were done under the ISO certification 45001 and SA 8000 (Social accountability Policy) certification by 

independent third parties.

11. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the 
assessments at Question 9 above.

 Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 6

Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment.

Essential Indicators

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

From renewable source
Total electricity consumption (A) 99014 GJ 59093 GJ
Total fuel consumption (B) 8468 GJ 6260 GJ
Energy consumption through other sources (C) - -
Total energy consumption (A+B+C) 107482 GJ 65353 GJ
From non-renewable source
Total electricity consumption (D) 1260722 GJ 1155838 GJ
Total fuel consumption (E) 525777 GJ 531399 GJ
Energy consumption through other sources (F) - -
Total energy consumed from non - renewable sources (D+E+F) 1786499 GJ 1687237 GJ
Total energy consumed (A+B+C+D+E+F) 1893981 GJ 1752590 GJ
Energy intensity per rupee of turnover  

(Total energy consumed/ revenue from operations)

572.95 GJ / Crore of 

turnover

603.18 GJ / Crore of 

turnover
Energy intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) 

(Total energy consumed / Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

139.10 GJ / Crore 

of PPP adjusted 

turnover

165.55 GJ / Crore 

of PPP adjusted 

turnover
Energy intensity in terms of physical Output - -
Energy intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be selected by the entity - -

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, 

name of the external agency.

 N. No independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency.
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2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve 
and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme 
have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

 Yes, the facilities of the companies have been identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve and 

Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India. Yes, the targets have been achieved.

3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)
(i) Surface water - -
(ii) Groundwater 618346 497687
(iii) Third party water - -
(iv) Seawater / desalinated water - -
(v) Others - -
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 618346 497687
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 618346 497687
Water intensity per rupee of Turnover (Total Water consumption/ Revenue  

from operation)

187.06 KL/Crores of 

turnover

171.29 KL/Crores of 

turnover
Water intensity per rupee of Turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity 

(PPP) (Total water consumption/ Revenue

45.4 KL/Crores 

of PPP adjusted 

turnover

47.0 KL/Crores 

of PPP adjusted 

turnover

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, 

name of the external agency.

 N. No independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency.

4. Provide the following details related to water discharge

 There is no water discharge as the water is treated in ZLD (Zero Liquid discharge) and the treated water released from ZLD and 

ETP are utilised within the premised for horticulture and housekeeping purposes.

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)
(i) To Surface water
 - No treatment - -
 - With treatment – please specify level of treatment - -
(ii) To Groundwater
 - No treatment - -
 - With treatment – please specify level of treatment - -
(iii) To Seawater
 - No treatment - -
 - With treatment – please specify level of treatment - -
(iv) Sent to third-parties
 - No treatment - -
 - With treatment – please specify level of treatment - -
(v) Others
 - No treatment - -
 - With treatment – please specify level of treatment - -
Total water discharged (in kilolitres) - -

 Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name 

of the external agency

 N. No independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency.
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5. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and 
implementation.

 Yes, the ZLD has been installed at the Begun Unit where the water is used in finishing fabric. 100% of the used process water is 

taken to ZLD and no effluent discharge is made. The dry sludge out of ZLD is sent to authorised collectors and recyclers.

6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter Please specify unit FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

NOx mg/Nm3 133.2 118.2
Sox mg/Nm3 133.2 131.2
Particulate matter (PM) mg/Nm3 430.40 434.5
Persistent organic pollutants (POP) - - -
Volatile organic compounds (VOC) - - -
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) - - -
Others – please specify - - -

Parameter Unit FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into 
CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of 
CO2 equivalent

50691 50848

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into 
CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of 
CO2 equivalent

254596 229883

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity per 
rupee of turnover (Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG 
emissions / Revenue from operations)

Metric tonnes of 
CO2 Equivalent / 

Crores of Turnover

92.35 96.62

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions intensity per 
rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power 
Parity (Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions / 
Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Metric tonnes of 
CO2 Equivalent 
/ Crores of PPP 

adjusted  Turnover

22.42 26.52

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity in terms 
of physical output

- - -

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity (optional) 
– the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

- - -

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, 

name of the external agency.

 Yes, Apex Enviro Laboratory has done the stack emission testing.

7. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following format: 

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, 

name of the external agency

 Yes, the sustainability consultants “Sustainability Actions Private Limited” has carried out the assessment of the above calculations.
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8. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details.

 (i) The steps taken or impact on Conservation of Energy - The Company gives high priority for conservation of energy in all 

fields. The Company has taken following measures for energy savings in the year:

  a) Replacement of Old type motors with Energy efficient Motors. 

  b) Installation of device to reduce compressed Air Pressure from 7.1 bar to 6.50 bar 

  c) Installation of high efficient washer box and new inverter motors of SA Fan. 

  d) Installation of Inverters on Main Air Fan of Blow Room. 

 (ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy -

  As renewable/green energy initiatives, the Company has installed 18.80 MW Roof Top Solar Power Plant for captive 

consumption of Solar Power at Hamirgarh & Begun Units. Further, 4.65 MW of Roof Top Solar Power Plant at Hamirgarh unit 

is under implementation.

 (iii) Capital Investments on energy conservation equipments is H 25 Lakhs

9. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)
Plastic waste (A) 32 21
E-waste (B) 0.7 2.03
Bio-medical waste (C) - -
Construction and demolition waste (D) - -
Battery waste (E) 0.7 4.09
Radioactive waste (F) - -
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (G)- Used Oil 1.13 1.40
Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any. (Break-up by 

composition i.e. by material relevant to the sector) (paper waste, paper cone 

and Corrugated boxes)

625.10 131.25

Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G + H) 659.63 159.77
Waste intensity per rupee of turnover  

(Total waste generated/Revenue from operations)

0.20 tons/Cr of 

turnover

0.05 tons/Cr of 

turnover
Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) 

(Total waste generated/ Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

0.05 tons/Cr of PPP 

adjusted turnover

0.02 tons/Cr of PPP 

adjusted turnover
Waste intensity in terms of physical output - -
Waste intensity (optional) the relevant metric may be selected by the entity - -

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery operations 

 (in metric tonnes)
Category of waste
(i) Recycled* 659.63 159.77
(ii) Re-used - -
(iii) Other recovery operations - -
Total 659.63 159.77

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric tonnes)
Category of waste
(i) Incineration - -
(ii) Landfilling - -
(iii) Other disposal operations - -
Total - -

 * All Material sent to recyclers / Composters through authorized collectors.

  Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, 

name of the external agency.

 N. No independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency.
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10. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted by your 

company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to 

manage such wastes.

 We maintain a ZERO waste to landfill operations at both of our plants. Being an environmentally conscious and responsible 

organisation, we don’t send our wastes to landfill. All the cotton, yarn and fabric wastes are either reprocessed in our own 

manufacturing or sent for other industrial uses. 10% of our waste out of production is recycled and reprocessed in our own 

operations and balance is sold for other industrial uses. For our liquid discharge we have installed ZERO LIQUID DISCHARGE 

(ZLD) systems hence we don’t discharge effluent in our vicinity of operations. The dry sludge out of ZLD is sent to authorised 

collectors and recyclers.

11. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife sanctuaries, 

biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals / 

clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

 The entity’s operations/offices are not in/around ecologically sensitive areas.

12. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current 

financial year:

 The operations of the company are not covered by the 2006 notification on Environmental Impact Assessment. 

13. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water (Prevention 

and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder 

(Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

 Yes, the company is compliant with all applicable environmental laws / regulations / guidelines in India.

PRINCIPLE 7

Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner that 
is responsible and transparent.

Essential Indicators

1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.

  5(Five)

 b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of such body) the 

entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S. 

No.
Name of the trade and industry chambers/ associations

Reach of trade and industry chambers/ associations 

(State/National)

1 The Confederation of Indian Textile Industry (CITI) National
2 Northern India Textile Research Association (NITRA) States of Northern India
3 The Cotton Textiles Export Promotion Council (TEXPROCIL) National
4 The Rajasthan Textile Mills Association (RTMA) State
5 Mewar Chamber of Commerce and Industry (MCCI) State

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anticompetitive conduct by the entity, 
based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

 Not Applicable as no adverse order regarding anti-competitive conduct by the entity has been issued by regulatory authorities.



67

CORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPLE 8

Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development.

Essential Indicators

We have taken a holistic approach towards the development of the deprived groups of the society and implement Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) programmes. The various CSR projects are firstly reviewed internally, approved by the management, and are 

regularly reviewed by the CSR committee. The progress of all approved CSR projects are tracked and the progress reports are 

evaluated from time to time. CSR Policy outlines our commitment to promote inclusive growth and equitable development.

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the 
current financial year.

 The requirement of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects was not applicable to the Company in the FY 2024-25.

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being undertaken by 
your entity, in the following format:

 There was no project involving R&R during the FY 2024-25.

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

 There are several mechanisms in place to receive grievances from the community such as access to e-mail ID of Legal and 

Compliance officer, Website and the facilities of the company. The grievances from community are addressed by Legal and 

Compliance officer along-with Stakeholders’ Relationship Management Committee of the Board.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers 39.20% 54.21%
Sourced directly from within India 87.11% 90.56%

5. Job creation in smaller towns – Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or workers employed 
on a permanent or permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following locations, as % of total  
wage cost.

Location FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Rural 78.0% 100%
Semi-Urban 12.5% 0%
Urban 9.5% 0%
Metropolitan 0% 0%

 (Place to be categorized as per RBI Classification System - rural / semi-urban / urban / metropolitan)
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PRINCIPLE 9

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner.

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

 Overall responsibility for handling the complaints lie with HOD (MKT). CMD is responsible for taking Complaint settling with 

Complainant Analysis Report on investigation. When complaints are received the yarn, Fabric is sent to the concerned department 

for investigating the issue raised. Also, CMD is informed via email/telephone. If the complaint is in respect of quality, it is referred 

to HOD (QAD). All the complaints are examined, and the cause of complaint is analyzed. Considering the seriousness & nature 

of complaint, arrange visit to the complainant to evaluate the nature & gravity of problem being faced. HOD (MKT) may also 

accompany, if required discuss and the report is sent to CMD. Corrective actions are taken to avoid such type of problem. 

Periodically the effectiveness of the corrective actions taken are reviewed. Customer feedback is taken after sales. We have 

consistently achieved 100% customer satisfaction in our customer satisfaction index.

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information about:

 The Company complies with disclosure requirements as per local laws. In addition, some other details are also displayed as 

per customers’ requests and/or facilitate handling/transportation. The yarn is sold to customers, who make final products which 

consumer uses. We provide all the details to our customers in product details.

As a percentage to total turnover

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product -
Safe and responsible usage 100%
Recycling and/or safe disposal -

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

 The company is committed to creating products and solutions that exceed customer expectations and enhance the level 

of business profitability. We consistently strive forth to ensure higher customer satisfaction through our efforts in production 

innovation, R&D activities and ensuring enhanced lifecycle of the product.

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Number of 

complaints 

filed during 

the year

Number of 

complaints 

pending 

resolution at 

close of  

the year

Remarks

Number of 

complaints 

filed during 

the year

Number of 

complaints 

pending 

resolution at 

close of 

 the year

Remarks

Data Privacy - - - - - -
Advertising - - - - - -
Cyber Security - - - - - -
Delivery of essential services - - - - - -
Restrictive Trade Practices - - - - - -
Unfair Trade Practices - - - - - -
Others - - - - - -
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4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

 No Product recall was done during FY 2024-25

5. Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If available, 
provide a web-link of the policy.

 Yes, the company has a Cybersecurity and a Data Privacy policy, which is available on the company intranet.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery of essential 
services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty / action 
taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.

 Not applicable as no regulatory action has ever been done regarding advertising, essential services, cybersecurity, data privacy 

or product recalls.

7. Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

 a. Number of instances of data breaches - Nil

 b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers - Nil

 c. Impact, if any, of the data breaches – Not Applicable
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Glossary FY 2024-2025
AGM- Annual General Meeting

BRSR- Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report

BoD- Board of Directors

CIN- Corporate Identity Number

CMD- Chairman & Managing Director

CO2- Carbon Dioxide

CSR- Corporate Social Responsibility

EHS- Environmental, Health, and Safety

EPR- Extended Producer Responsibility

ESAR- Employee Stock Appreciation Rights

ESG- Environmental, Social, and Governance

FY- Financial Year

GHG- Greenhouse Gas

HR- Human Resources

IC- Internal Committee

ISO- International Organization for Standardization

KMP- Key Managerial Personnel

LED- Light Emitting Diode

LGBT+ - Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and others

LTIFR- Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate

MD- Managing Director

NA- Not Applicable      

N2O- Nitrous Oxide

NGO- Non-Governmental Organization

NGRBC- National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct

NOx- Nitrogen Oxides

PAT- Performance Achieve and Trade

PF- Provident Fund

POSH- Prevention of Sexual Harassment

PPP- Purchasing Power Parity

R&D- Research and Development

RTA- Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

SA- Social Accountability

SDGs- Sustainable Development Goals

SEBI- Securities and Exchange Board of India

SF6- Sulfur Hexafluoride

SME- Small and Medium Enterprises

Sox- Sulfur Oxides

UN- United Nations

UT- Union Territory

VOC- Volatile Organic Compounds

ZLD- Zero Liquid Discharge

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of  the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Nitin Spinners Limited

16-17 K. M. Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh 

Bhilwara – 311001 (Rajasthan) 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 

of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Nitin Spinners Limited (hereinafter 

called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications 

given to us and the representations made by the Management, 

we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 

31, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 

for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to 

the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules 

made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and 

the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-

laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 

and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):- 

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 

Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018 (Not applicable to the Company during 

the Audit Period);

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 

Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period);

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 

Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021 (Not applicable to the Company during 

the Audit Period);

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 

dealing with client;

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting 

of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable 

to the Company during the Audit Period);

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback 

of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to 

the Company during the Audit Period);

 (i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; and

 ( j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories 

and Participants) Regulations, 2018

(vi) As confirmed by the management, there are no sector 

specific laws that are applicable specifically to the company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 

of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India;

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 

BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
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During the period under review the Company has complied 

with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 

proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 

Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 

least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 

at the meeting.

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (Contd..)

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting 

members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part 

of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and 

processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has 

duly passed the resolution under Section 180(1)(c) and Section 

180(1)(a) of the Act, read with its applicable rules, as amended 

to authorize the Board of Directors to borrow money in excess 

of the aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and 

securities premium of the Company, but not exceeding a sum 

of H 2,000/- Crores (Rupees Two Thousand Crores Only) and to 

create mortgage and /or charge on assets of the Company to 

secure the aforesaid borrowing.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,

Nitin Spinners Limited

16-17 K. M. Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh 

Bhilwara – 311001 (Rajasthan) 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 

of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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Secretarial Compliance Report of

Nitin Spinners Limited

For the year ended March 31, 2025

We M/s V. M. & Associates, Company Secretaries have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and 

explanation provided by Nitin Spinners Limited (“the 

listed entity”),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the 

stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listed entity,

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has 

been relied upon to make this certification,

for the year ended March 31, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect 

of compliance with the provisions of:

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI 

Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued 

there under; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), 

rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, 

guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India(“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include:-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“LODR Regulations”);

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period);

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 

Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the listed 

entity during the Review Period);

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 

(“SEBI SBEB”) (Not applicable to the listed entity during 

the Review Period);

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing 

of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not 

applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period);

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to 

an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and 

Participants) Regulations, 2018

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

and based on the above examination, We hereby report that, 

during the Review Period: 

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions 

of the above Regulations and circulars/guidelines 

issued thereunder;

(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to 

comply with the observations made in previous reports: 

Not Applicable, as there being no observation in 

previous reports;

(c) We hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of the listed entity with the following requirements:

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Compliance status  

(Yes/ No/ NA)

Observations/ 

Remarks by PCS

1. Secretarial Standards:

The compliances of the listed entity are in accordance with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

India (ICSI).

Yes ---

2. Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:

(a) All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are adopted with the 

approval of board of directors of the listed entities;

(b) All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Regulations and have 

been reviewed & timely updated as per the regulations/ circulars/ 

guidelines issued by SEBI.

Yes ---
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Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Compliance status  

(Yes/ No/ NA)

Observations/ 

Remarks by PCS

3. Maintenance and disclosures on Website:

(a) The Listed entity is maintaining a functional website;

(b) Timely dissemination of the documents/ information under a separate 

section on the website;

(c) Web-links provided in annual corporate governance reports under 

Regulation 27(2) are accurate and specific which re-directs to the 

relevant document(s)/ section of the website.

Yes ---

4. Disqualification of Director(s):

None of the Directors of the listed entity are disqualified under Section 164 

of Companies Act, 2013.

Yes ---

5. Details related to Subsidiaries of listed entities: 

(a) Identification of material subsidiary companies;

(b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of  material as well as other 

subsidiaries.

NA The Listed Entity 

does not have any 

subsidiary

6. Preservation of Documents:

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining records as prescribed 

under SEBI Regulations and disposal of records as per Policy of 

Preservation of Documents and Archival policy prescribed under the 

LODR Regulations.

Yes ---

7. Performance Evaluation:

The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation of the Board, 

Independent Directors and the Committees at the start of every financial 

year as prescribed in SEBI Regulations.

Yes ---

8. Related Party Transactions:

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of Audit Committee for all 

Related party transactions;

Yes ---

(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall provide 

detailed reasons along with confirmation whether the transactions 

were subsequently approved/ ratified/ rejected by the  

Audit committee.

N.A. The Listed Entity 

has obtained the 

prior approval of 

Audit Committee for 

all Related Party 

transactions
9. Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided all the required disclosure(s) under 

Regulation 30 along with Schedule III of the LODR Regulations within the 

time limits prescribed thereunder.

Yes ---

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading:

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

Yes ---

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any:

No actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/directors/ 

subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the 

Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) 

under SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.

NA There was no action 

taken either by SEBI 

or Stock Exchanges



Annual Report 2024-25

76

NITIN SPINNERS LTD

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Compliance status  

(Yes/ No/ NA)

Observations/ 

Remarks by PCS

12. Resignation of statutory auditors from the listed entity or its material 

subsidiaries:

In case of resignation of statutory auditor from the listed entity or any of 

its material subsidiaries during the financial year, the listed entity and / or 

its material subsidiary(ies) has / have complied with paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 

of section V-D of chapter V of the Master Circular on compliance with the 

provisions of the LODR Regulations by listed entities.

NA There was no 

resignation of 

statutory auditors 

in the Listed entity 

during the review 

period. Further the 

Listed Entity does not 

have any material 

subsidiary.
13. Disclosure of Employee Benefit Scheme Documents:

The Listed Entity has complied with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/

CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 for disclosure 

of Employee Benefit Scheme Documents on its website in terms of 

Regulation 46(2)(za) of LODR Regulations

NA The Company has 

not formulated  any 

Employee Benefit 

Scheme under the 

provisions of SEBI 

SBEB
14. No additional non-compliances observed:

No additional non-compliance observed for any of the SEBI regulation/ 

circular/guidance note etc. except as reported above

NA There was no 

non-compliance 

observed in the 

listed entity

 Assumptions & Limitation of Scope and Review: 

 1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, are the 

responsibilities of the management of the listed entity.

 2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. This is neither an audit 

nor an expression of opinion. 

 3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts of the listed entity. 

 4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A(2) of the LODR Regulations and 

is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and  

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Nitin Spinners Limited

16-17 K. M. Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh

Bhilwara – 311001 (Rajasthan)

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Nitin Spinners Limited 

having CIN: L17111RJ1992PLC006987 and having registered office at 16-17 K. M. Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh, Bhilwara – 311001 

(Rajasthan) (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, 

in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C clause 10 sub clause (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status 

at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby 

certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 have 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India, Ministry of Corporate Affairsor any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. 

No.
Name of Director DIN

1. Mr. Dinesh Nolkha 00054658
2. Mr. Nitin Nolakha 00054707
3. Ms. Aditi Mehta (Ceased on 27.07.2024) 06917890
4. Mr. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay (Ceased on 27.07.2024) 06928729
5. Mr. Rohit Swadheen Mehta 09449679
6. Mr. Rishabh Chand Lodha 07177605
7. Ms. Vibha Aren 07028020
8. Mr. Pratyush Nolakha 10704970

Ensuring the eligibility of, for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 

the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance 

as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025

http://www.mca.gov.in


Management Discussion and Analysis

Economic overview

Global economy1 

In CY 2024, the global economy sustained its growth trajectory, 

recording a growth rate of 3.3%, despite on-going geopolitical 

tensions, shifting trade dynamics, realignment of supply chains 

and alterations in monetary policy. In response to these 

headwinds, governments worldwide prioritised policy reforms 

and aimed at prioritising innovation, enhancing supply chain 

resilience and promoting economic diversification to secure 

long-term stability.

Inflationary pressures eased considerably over the year, with 

global inflation declining from 6.6% in CY 2023 to 5.7% in CY 

2024. This decline was primarily due to effective monetary 

interventions and greater stability in energy markets, which 

contributed to price stabilisation and supported a broader 

economic rebound. Emerging Markets and Developing 

Economies (EMDEs) outpaced advanced economies with a 

growth rate of 4.3%, compared to 1.8% in the latter. Their strong 

performance was catalysed by robust domestic demand, 

increased Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and a strategic pivot 

towards reducing reliance on external trade.

Outlook

The global economy is projected to expand at a measured 

pace, with growth estimated at 2.8% in CY 2025 and 3.0% in 

CY 2026. This outlook is supported by a gradual decline in 

inflation and the implementation of targeted policies by Central 

Banks worldwide. Emerging markets are expected to maintain 

stable momentum with a growth rate of 3.7%, while developed 

economies are likely to experience a slow but steady recovery, 

reaching 1.4% growth in CY 2025. 

As inflation is forecast to ease to 4.2% in CY 2025 and further to 

3.5% in CY 2026, consumer expenditure is expected to strengthen. 

Despite recent hikes in tariffs by USA and the implementation of 

protectionist measures across several geographies, the global 

economy remains interconnected and resilient. 

In response to uncertainties in global trade, governments and 

businesses are adapting by tapping into new markets and 

enhancing supply chain efficiencies. Additionally, a sharper 

focus on boosting productivity through technological innovation, 

improved workforce health and smarter infrastructure is 

predicted to catalyse sustained growth and offer a pathway to 

renewed global progress.

World Output EMDsAdvanced Economies 

CY 2024 CY 2025 * CY 2026**Projected  I  Source: IMF World Economic outlook April- 2025

Global real GDP growth projection (%)

3
.0

3
.91.
5

2
.8 3
.71.
4

3
.3

4
.31.
8

Indian economy

India's economy grew at a rate of 6.5% in FY 2024-25, despite 

global challenges, such as geopolitical conflicts, supply chain 

disruptions and shifting trade dynamics. This performance 

was driven by targeted government measures, particularly 

the allocation of H11.21 Lakhs Crores in the Union Budget 

for infrastructure and rural connectivity.  Strategic capital 

investments also played a key role in containing the fiscal deficit 

at 4.7% of GDP, thereby providing significant scope to boost 

demand and stimulate economic growth.

India’s manufacturing sector, along with supportive government 

measures played a crucial role in expediting economic growth 

and bolstering employment opportunities. India has now become 

the 4th largest economy of the world, ahead of Japan. The 

country’s per capita income has also doubled in last 10 years. 

1https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2025/04/22/world-economic-outlook-april-2025
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Source: Precedence Research 

Global textile market size and growth (In USD Billion)

Outlook

Despite global uncertainties, India is predicted to sustain its 

growth trajectory, supported by strong domestic demand, 

disinflationary trends and a favourable macro-economic 

environment like sustained domestic and foreign investments, 

robust manufacturing growth and improvement in trade and 

financial services. The government's continued focus on capital 

expenditure, improving rural demand and the rapid increase 

of digital and physical infrastructure are expected to further 

improve economic growth and social well-being. As supply 

chains stabilise and input costs moderate, industries integrated 

into essential services and everyday consumption are well-

positioned to benefit from heightened demand and enhanced 

operational efficiency.

The recent repo rate reduction by the Reserve Bank of India 

(RBI) is set to inject liquidity, enhance credit access and boost 

market sentiment. Simultaneously, the government is adopting 

a calibrated approach to the evolving global tariff landscape to 

protect national economic interests. Moreover, the UK Free Trade 

Agreement (FTA) aims to enhance bilateral trade by reducing 

tariffs, streamlining customs procedures and encouraging 

investment flows. It offers expanded market access for goods 

and services, demonstrating stronger economic ties and mutual 

growth opportunities.

Industry overview  

Global textile and apparel industry

The global textile industry, valued at US $ 1,976.84 billion in  

FY 2024, exhibited steady growth driven by the increasing 

demand for natural fibres. Additionally, the Asia Pacific region, 

remained a dominant market owing to its easy access to raw 

materials, a young population driving demand for fashionable 

apparel and significant government investments in countries, 

such as India, China and Bangladesh. The industry is highly 

fragmented, with a broad spectrum of offerings, which spans 

clothing and home décor to technical and medical textiles. 

Moreover, it has major players continuously adopting strategies 

to strengthen their market positions.

Globally, the textile sector benefited from rising consumer 

awareness of sustainable and eco-friendly products, leading 

to stricter regulations and a shift towards clean production 

techniques. North America is projected to be the fastest-growing 

region while Europe exhibits significant growth potential, 

supported by demand for organic fabrics and favourable 

trade policies.

Outlook

The global textile industry valued at an estimated US$ 2,123.72 

billion in 2025, is poised for sustained expansion at a Compound 

Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 7.35% through 2034. The sector is 

predicted to capitalise on trends towards sustainable practices. 

While challenges related to production costs and raw material 

availability persists, sustained investments in technology, 

research and development, evolving consumer preferences for 

eco-friendly and high-performance textiles are set to fuel the 

industry’s growth momentum in the years ahead.

2https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2117470

3https://www.imarcgroup.com/indian-textiles-apparel-market

4https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2104423#

Indian textile and apparel industry

The textile and apparel industry being a major economic driver, 

contributes significantly to the nation’s GDP and employment 

generation. As one of the largest sources of employment after 

agriculture, the sector engages over 45 million people directly.2 

The industry witnessed steady growth 2024, with the market 

value reaching an estimated US$ 222.08 billion and is projected 

to sustain its growth in the upcoming years.3 This growth is 

expected to be propelled by rising domestic consumption, with 

India's expanding middle class fuelling demand for high-end and 

branded apparel and the exponential rise in online retail that 

has made fashion more accessible across both urban and rural 

markets. The sector benefits from a unique blend of traditional 

craftsmanship and modern innovation, displayed at landmark 

events like Bharat Tex 2025, which drew global attention to 

India's capabilities in sustainable textiles.

Government initiatives have been crucial in shaping the 

industry's trajectory. Schemes such as the PM MITRA Parks 

and the Production Linked incentives (PLI) programme have 

enhanced infrastructure, encouraged large-scale production of 

man-made and technical textiles thereby, improving the sector's 

global competitiveness. India's diverse product range and a 

strong push for sustainability and digitalisation, have positioned 

the country as an emerging leader in the global textile and 

apparel market.4
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Outlook

The textile and apparel industry stands as a key driver of 

economic growth. However, it has reinforced its global market 

presence as well. The sector's export potential strengthened, 

supported by expanded trade alliances, improved infrastructure 

and a favourable policy environment. Also, government support, 

technological advancement, rising consumer demand and FTA 

major consuming countries has set India’s textile and apparel 

industry for a high growth trajectory, thereby, propelling 

sustained expansion and innovation in the forthcoming years.

Indian textile and apparel market forecast (In USD Billion)

Source: Imarc

Indian cotton textiles industry

Cotton is a major commercial crop in India and contributes 

about 24% of the total cotton production of the world. It provides 

employment and income for millions of farmers and workers 

across the country. India holds the largest cotton acreage in 

the world. It also contributes to the country’s foreign exchange 

earnings through the export of raw cotton, processed materials, 

and finished textile products.

The Indian cotton textiles industry experienced moderate growth 

in 2024-25. Cotton prices remained largely stable during the 

year contributing to more predictable input costs. However at 

the end of the fiscal, domestic cotton prices increased due to 

sharp decline in estimated domestic cotton output to 29.14 million 

bales against earlier estimates of 31.5 million bales. Government 

of India has launched a H600 Crores, five-year Cotton Mission 

aimed at increasing productivity, especially for extra-long staple 

cotton and promoting sustainable cotton.

A rebound in exports and favorable domestic demand are 

expected to drive India's cotton yarn industry to a higher revenue 

growth in the fiscal 2025-26, up from a modest 2-4% growth in 

the previous fiscal. 

Opportunities and challenges 

Opportunities 

Strong Domestic demand

Increasing demand in domestic market due to rising income 

levels and growing middle class, changing taste and preferences, 

continues to drive demand for Indian Textiles and apparel.

Shift in global sourcing preferences

Heightened labour rates in Vietnam and political unrest in 

Bangladesh position India an ideal sourcing destination among 

global buyers. Moreover, possible US tariffs against Chinese 

textiles may divert orders to Indian producers.

Free Trade Agreement (FTA) with various consuming countries

The newly signed India-UK FTA is expected to augment textile 

exports to the UK by removing import tariffs on textiles and 

apparel. Consequently, it will potentially enhance Indian textile 

exporters' profit margins, further propelling competition in the UK 

market. Further trade agreements under negotiation with other 

countries, will enhance competitiveness of Indian Textiles

Government initiatives

The Government of India has come up with a number of initiatives 

to support the textile industry, such as the PLI Scheme and Mega 

Integrated Textile Region and Apparel (MITRA) Parks. This will 

enable the textile industry to become globally competitive, 

boost employment generation and attract investments in value 

added segments.

Sustainability and revival of indigenous cotton

Government of India has introduced Kasturi Cotton, a cleaner, 

greener alternative. This eco-friendly cotton from India is 

designed to reduce environmental impact while meeting the 

growing demand for sustainable cotton for fashion brands. 

Challenges

Supply Chain and Infrastructure Bottlenecks

The Indian textile sector is challenged by supply chain 

fragmentation and inefficient logistics systems. Delays in raw 

material procurement and inconsistent quality further heighten 

production costs. 

Tariff and Non-tariff Barriers by different countries

Tariff barriers and other restrictive trade practices by certain 

countries poses challenges for growth and competitiveness of 

Indian Textiles Industry

Technological gaps 

Technological innovation in Domestic Textiles Machinery is 

limited especially in weaving and processing segments resulting 

into import of highly expensive imported machinery.

Natural Fibres Man-Made Fibres
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72.66%

5.25%

22.09%

Yarn

Others

Fabrics

Labour issues and skill shortages

Despite being a labour-intensive sector, the Indian textile 

industry struggles with shortages of labour and absence of 

skilled employees.

Environmental sustainability and regulatory compliance

The textile industry is a major source of environmental pollution 

which includes water and air pollution and greenhouse gas 

emissions. Environmental sustainability concerns in India have 

resulted in stricter regulatory oversight and compliance rules, 

which hinder textile production.

Company overview 

Nitin Spinners Limited, headquartered in Bhilwara, Rajasthan, 

has established itself as one of the leading integrated textile 

manufacturers in India, specialising in cotton and blended yarns, 

knitted fabrics and finished woven textiles. Since its inception, the 

Company has demonstrated a strong commitment to innovation 

and operational excellence, with its state-of-the-art spinning, 

weaving and finishing facilities that ensure high efficiency and 

consistent product quality. Its strategic focus on value addition, 

continuous product development and investment in advanced 

technology has enabled Nitin Spinners to meet the evolving 

demands of both domestic and international markets.

With a well-diversified export base spanning Asia, Europe and 

Latin America (LATAM), African countries, Nitin Spinners has 

positioned itself as a trusted partner in the global textile industry. 

The Company’s disciplined financial management and robust 

product mix, combined with its proximity to raw material sources 

and key logistics hubs, have supplemented sustained growth 

and profitability. Recent capital investments are set to further 

expand capacity, enhancing cost efficiencies and enabling Nitin 

Spinners to capitalise on emerging opportunities in global supply 

chains and favourable trade agreements thereby reinforcing its 

leadership in the textile sector.

55+
Countries 

global presence

5,864
Rotors

222
Airjet weaving machines 

4,34,832
Spindles

264
Airjet spinning positions

77
Circular knitting machines

Cotton yarn
1

2

3

4

Knitted fabric
Blended yarn

Finished woven fabric

Key products 

Segment wise performance

The company operates in single business segment (Textiles). 

The product wise revenue bifurcation is as under;

Revenue Bifurcation 

Financial performance

(H In Crores)

Particulars FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024

Revenue from operations 3305.65 2905.65
Other income 3.60 2.25
Total Income 3309.25 2907.90
Earnings before interest, 

tax and Depreciation 

and Amortization

475.02 379.30

Profit for the Year 175.43 131.52
EPS (Basic) (in INR) 31.20 22.39
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Key financial ratios

Particulars FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024 % Change Reason to change

Inventory turnover 5.64 5.50 2.55% Improved marginally
Interest coverage ratio 5.26 4.55 15.60% Improved due to better cash flow
Current ratio 1.71 1.54 11.04% Improved due to Surplus Generated during 

the year
Long Term Debt equity ratio 0.62 0.83 -25.30% Reduced due to repayment of debts
Debtors’ turnover 8.80 10.68 -17.61% Average credit period increased due to 

challenging market  conditions
Operating profit margin 14.37% 13.05% 10.11% Increase in turnover due to full operation of 

capacity expansion and stable raw material 

prices
Net profit margin 5.31% 4.53% 17.22% Improved due to higher operating margins
Return on Average net worth 14.28% 12.09% 18.11% Increase in Net profits

Risk Impact Mitigation

Competition risk

Increased competition can reduce 

returns on investment, market share 

and profit margins.

The Company manages this risk by emphasising value 

addition, quality, customer service, product variety and 

cost efficiency and increasing customer base.

Foreign currency 

exchange risk

Rupee depreciation may lower 

earnings, because most of the 

revenue is generated by exports.

The Company implements a consistent forex hedging 

policy to safeguard against currency fluctuations.

Raw material price 

inflation risk

Escalation in cotton prices may 

adversely affect profitability.

The Company strictly monitors cotton prices and 

maintains a disciplined stocking policy to prevent price 

volatility.

Reputation risk

Delayed payments or poor product 

quality may reduce stakeholder 

trust and harm operations.

The Company ensures product quality and timely 

delivery, aligning with stakeholder expectations by 

enforcing strict control processes.

Customer 

concentration risk

Losing a major client or over-reliance 

on a few customers can lead to 

revenue loss.

The Company consistently works to expand its customer 

base by targeting various geographies.

Risks and concerns

Risk management is an important part of the governance system, contributing to the achievement of strategic objectives and protecting 

the value, assets and reputation of the organisation. Below are some risks identified by Nitin Spinners along with their corresponding 

mitigation strategies:

Environment and safety

Nitin Spinners Limited reinforced its commitment to environmental 

sustainability and workplace safety through multiple strategic 

initiatives. The company continued to embed eco-friendly 

practices by increasing the use of sustainable fibers such as 

BCI, organic, regenagri cotton and recycled cotton/polyester 

which now constitute about 43% of its product line, aligning 

with global trends toward responsible sourcing and reduced 

environmental impact. Additionally, the expansion of renewable 

energy capacity to 18.8 MW emphasizes the company’s focus 

on minimizing its carbon footprint and operational costs. On 

the safety front, the company maintained rigorous operational 

discipline, leveraging modern infrastructure and technology to 

ensure a safe working environment for its employees. These 

ongoing efforts reflect the company’s broader ESG goals and its 

dedication to sustainable growth, positioning it as a responsible 

leader in the textile industry.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives

The Company continued its dedication to corporate social 

responsibility by creating meaningful, long-term benefits for 

its employees and the surrounding communities. It provides 

empowering opportunities for women and generates stable 

employment that supports local economic growth. Key initiatives 
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include the construction of a women’s hostel in Bhilwara and 

significant efforts toward cotton development and research. The 

Company also facilitated infrastructure development in rural 

areas, including roads, drainage systems, and water harvesting 

projects, thereby enhancing the quality of life and resilience 

of local communities. Additionally, it promoted education for 

differently-abled children and supported the construction of 

school rooms and hostels for higher studies. Through these 

initiatives, the Company aims to promote long-term, constructive 

change for the environment and society.

Human resources

The Company demonstrated robust operational performance, 

underpinned by disciplined execution and optimal utilization 

of expanded capacities. The company’s workforce played 

a pivotal role in supporting stable, controlled growth amid 

a dynamic business environment. Enhanced production 

volumes across yarn and fabrics segments reflected effective 

manpower deployment and skill development initiatives. 

Strategic investments in capacity building, sustainability, and 

value addition were complemented by a continued emphasis 

on employee engagement and operational efficiency. As the 

company looks ahead, its human resources remain central to 

driving innovation, maintaining high standards of quality, and 

supporting the company’s growth ambitions in both domestic 

and international markets.

The company has total employee strength of 6736 as on 

31st March 2025

Internal control and their adequacy 

Nitin Spinners maintains effective internal control systems, which 

are consistently enhanced and adjusted to adapt to evolving 

business landscapes, as well as statutory and accounting 

standards. The Company possesses a strong Management 

Information System, which plays a vital role within this control 

framework. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors 

regularly evaluates the efficiency and efficacy of these internal 

control systems, offering recommendations for enhancement 

and reinforcement where necessary. During the past year, 

the internal control system underwent testing, revealing no 

significant flaws in either design or implementation. India is 

the six largest embodied in various transcript and also various 

other activities.

Cautionary statement

The passages found in the Management Discussion and 

Analysis, which outline the Company's goals, forecasts, 

assessments, anticipations, might qualify as 'forward-looking 

statements' according to relevant laws and regulations. Actual 

outcomes might significantly deviate from what is either directly 

stated or indirectly implied. Key determinants that could impact 

the Company's activities encompass the availability and costs 

of raw materials, fluctuating demand and pricing trends in 

the Company's main markets, alterations in governmental 

regulations and tax structures, economic shifts within India and 

the nations where the Company operates, along with other 

ancillary factors.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director  Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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Corporate Governance Report

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

 The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance 

envisages attainment of high level of transparency, 

accountability and integrity in all its facets. 

 The Company has consistently practiced good Corporate 

Governance norms for the efficient conduct of its business 

and its obligations towards all its stakeholders viz., the 

shareholders, customers, employees and the community in 

which the Company operates. The Company is committed 

to observe good governance by focusing on adequate & 

timely disclosures, transparent & robust accounting policies, 

strong & independent Board and endeavors to maximize 

shareholders benefit. The Company believes that it shall go 

beyond adherence of regulatory frameworks in disclosing 

material information to the stakeholders. We believe that 

Corporate Governance is a journey to constantly improving 

sustainable value creation. The Board of Directors of the 

Company plays a central role in the good Corporate 

Governance by building up strong principles and values on 

which the Company operates.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 Composition, Category and Attendance at Meetings

 The Board of Directors of the Company consists of eminent 

persons with considerable professional expertise and 

experience in business and industry, finance, management, 

legal and marketing fields. The Company has a balanced 

mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Board 

comprises of six Directors including one Woman Director 

and composition of Board of Directors of the Company 

is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (herein- after 

referred as “Listing Regulations”) and applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (herein- after referred as 

“the Act”). The Company has three Promoter Executive 

Directors and Three Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

The Company has 50% Non-Executive Directors and it has 

appointed regular Chairperson. The Independent Directors 

with their diverse knowledge, experience and expertise 

bring in their independent judgment in the deliberation and 

decisions of the Board. 

 Number of Board Meetings 

 During the financial year 2024-25, four meetings of the 

Board of Directors were held on 09.05.2024, 22.07.2024, 

07.11.2024 and 27.01.2025. The frequency and intervening 

gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed 

under the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards-1 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

(ICSI) on Meetings of the Board of Directors. The frequency 

of the meetings is enough for the Board to undertake its 

duties effectively.

 The 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company was 

held on 16.09.2024. 

 The Composition of the Board of Directors, attendance at Board & previous Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorship, 

Committee Membership and Chairmanship are as under:-

Name of Directors
Category of 

Directorship

Board 

Meetings 

attended out 

of 4 Meetings

Attendance 

at last AGM 

held on 

16.09.2024

Directorship 

in other 

Listed 

Companies

No. of other Committees 

in which Member or 

Chairperson 

Chairperson Member

Sh. Dinesh Nolkha  

(DIN: 00054658)

Promoter 

Executive

4 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Sh. Nitin Nolakha  

(DIN: 00054707)

Promoter 

Executive

4 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Sh. Pratyush Nolakha  

(DIN: 10704970) (w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

Executive 

Director

3 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Smt. Aditi Mehta  

(DIN: 06917890) (upto 27.07.2024)

Independent 

Non-Executive

2 N. A. Nil Nil Nil

Dr. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay 

(DIN: 06928729) (upto 27.07.2024)

Independent 

Non-Executive

2 N. A. Nil Nil Nil

Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha  

(DIN: 07177605)

Independent 

Non-Executive

4 Yes 2 2 1

Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta 

(DIN: 09449679)

Independent 

Non-Executive

4 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Smt. Vibha Aren 

(DIN: 07028020) (w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

Independent 

Non-Executive

3 Yes Nil Nil Nil
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 None of the Directors of the Board serve as Members of more than 10 Committees nor are they Chairman of more than 5 

Committees, as per requirements of the Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations. As required under Regulation 17A of the 

Listing Regulations none of the Independent Directors serves as an Independent Director in more than seven listed companies 

and none of the Independent Director of the Company is Whole Time Director in any other Listed Company. None of the 

Director is a Director in any listed entity other than Nitin Spinners Limited except Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha, who is Independent  

Non-Executive Director on the Board of Swadeshi Polytex Ltd. and Star Paper Mills Ltd. The details of shareholding of  

Non-Executive Directors in the Company as on 31.03.2025 are as under :-

S. 

No.
Name of Non-Executive Director

Shareholding as on 

31.03.2025

1. Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta 22,000 Shares

 No convertible instrument has been issued by the Company. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) are 

related to each other except Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Sh. Nitin Nolakha and Sh. Pratyush Nolakha as Sh. Dinesh Nolkha and Sh. Nitin 

Nolakha are brothers and Sh. Dinesh Nolkha is father of Sh. Pratyush Nolakha.

 All the Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 

149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations, the 

independent Directors have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be 

reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. All the Independent Directors have 

included their names in Independent Director’s data bank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘IICA’) in 

terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014 and also completed the online proficiency test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, wherever 

required. It is hereby confirmed that in the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under the 

Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 and they are independent of Management. Smt. Aditi Mehta and Dr. Rabisankar 

Chattopadhyay, Independent Directors have resigned w.e.f. 27.07.2024 as their tenure of Directorship was about to complete. 

Both the Directors have confirmed that there was no material reason other than this for their resignation from the Directorship 

of the Company. 

 The table below summarizes the key attributes and skills matrix, identified by the Board of Directors, as required in 
the context of business of the Company and the name of Directors who have such skills / expertise / competence :- 

S. 

No.
Name of Directors

Skills / Expertise / Competence

Finance Legal Management
Technical 

Operations

Marketing / 

Sales
Administration

1. Sh. Dinesh Nolkha,  

Chairman & Managing Director
2. Sh. Nitin Nolakha,  

Managing Director
3. Sh. Pratyush Nolakha, Executive 

Director (w.e.f. 22.07.2024)
4. Smt. Aditi Mehta, Independent 

Director (Upto 27.04.2024)
5. Dr. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay, 

Independent Director  

(Upto 27.04.2024)
6. Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha, 

Independent Director
7. Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta, 

Independent Director
8. Smt. Vibha Aren  

Independent Director  

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)
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 Board Meeting Procedure

 The Company’s Board Meetings are governed by a 

structured agenda. The Board Meetings are generally 

scheduled well in advance and the notice of each board 

meeting is given in writing to each Director. The Board 

Meeting may be convened on short notice, with the consent 

and presence of Independent Directors, for urgent matters. 

The Board members, in consultation with the Chairman, 

may bring up any matter for the consideration of the Board. 

The Board papers, comprising the agenda and detailed 

notes on each agenda are circulated well in advance 

before the meeting of the Board. 

 All statutory, significant and other material information as 

specified in Part A of Schedule-II under the regulation 17(7) 

of the Listing Regulations are regularly made available 

to the Board, wherever applicable. The Board also 

reviews periodically the compliances of laws applicable 

on the Company. 

 Board’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are 

clearly defined. In addition to matters statutorily requiring 

Board’s approval, all major decisions involving formulation, 

strategy and business plans, annual operating and capital 

expenditure budgets, new investments, compliance with 

statutory regulatory requirements, major accounting 

provisions etc. are considered by the Board.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 Your Company has an Audit Committee constituted by 

the Board of Directors which acts as a link between the 

management, auditors and the Board and oversees the 

financial reporting process.

 Brief Description of terms of reference

 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned 

with the guidelines set out in the Regulation 18 read with 

Part C of schedule II of the Listing Regulations and also with 

the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The terms of reference broadly includes approval of annual 

Internal Audit Plan, review of financial reporting processes, 

auditors’ report, internal control, risk management system, 

Internal Financial Control and its adequacy, functioning 

of whistle blower mechanism and governance processes, 

discussions and approval of quarterly, half yearly and 

annual financial statements/results, recommendation for 

appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment 

of auditors, monitor related party transactions, uses and 

application of funds raised through issues, review of 

Auditors’ Independence and performance and effectiveness 

of Audit process, appointment of CFO etc. 

 Composition

 The composition of the Audit committee meets the 

requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. Presently, 

it comprises Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta, Sh. Rishabh 

Chand Lodha and Smt. Vibha Aren. All the members 

of the committee are non-executive and independent 

Directors. Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta, Chairman of the 

Committee possesses high degree of accounting and 

financial management expertise and all other members of 

the committee are financially literate and have experience 

and sound accounting and financial knowledge. Sh. Rohit 

Swadheen Mehta, Chairman of the Audit Committee was 

present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company 

held on 16th September, 2024. 

 Meetings and Attendance

 The committee met four times during the financial year 

2024-25. The dates on which Audit Committee Meetings 

were held are 09.05.2024, 22.07.2024, 07.11.2024 and 

27.01.2025. The number of meetings attended by each 

committee member during the year was as under:-

Name of Member
No. of Meetings 

attended

Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta, 

Chairperson

4

Smt. Aditi Mehta, Member  

(upto 27.07.2024)

2

Dr. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay, 

Member (upto 27.07.2024)

2

Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha  

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

2

Smt. Vibha Aren  

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

2

 The Chairman & Managing Director, CFO as well as the 

representatives of the auditors are permanent invitees to 

the meeting. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to 

the audit committee. 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE:

 Your Company has Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee constituted by the Board of Directors to oversee 

appointment, remuneration and performance evaluation 

of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & Senior 

Management Personnel (SMP).

 Brief Description of terms of reference

 The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee are aligned with the guidelines set out in the 

Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing 

Regulations and also with the provisions of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 which broadly includes formulation of 

the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 

and independence of a director and recommend to the Board 

a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
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managerial personnel and senior management personnel; 

formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of 

the Directors, Committees and the Board of Directors and 

devising a policy on Board diversity; Identifying persons who 

are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 

in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid 

down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and 

removal. Decision about extension or continuation of term 

of Directors including Independent Directors on the basis 

of report of performance evaluation and to recommend to 

the Board, all remuneration in whatever form, payable to 

senior management.

 Composition

 Presently, the Committee constitutes Sh. Rohit Swadheen 

Mehta, Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha and Smt. Vibha Aren, Non-

Executive & Independent Directors. Sh. Rohit Swadheen 

Mehta is Chairman of the Committee. The composition of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets the 

requirements of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. 

 Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta, Chairman of the Committee 

was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the 

Company held on 16th September, 2024. 

 Meetings and Attendance

 During the financial year 2024-25 two meetings of the 

Committee were held on 09.05.2024 and 22.07.2024. The 

number of meetings attended by each committee member 

during the year was as under:-

Name of Member
No. of Meetings 

attended

Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta, 

Chairperson 

2

Smt. Aditi Mehta, Member  

(upto 27.07.2024)

2

Dr. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay, 

Member (upto 27.07.2024)

2

Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha, 

Member (w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

N.A. 

Sh. Vibha Aren, Member  

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

N.A.

 Performance Evaluation:-

 Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 

of Listing Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee has specified the manner and the criteria 

for performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, its 

Committees and Individual Directors (including Independent 

Directors). The indicative criteria on which evaluation was 

carried out was broadly based on the Guidance Note on 

Board Evaluation issued by SEBI Master Circular SEBI/

HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024 and 

includes, Board structure and composition, Effectiveness of 

Board processes, information and functioning, Attendance 

(captured from records of meetings), Contribution, Guidance/ 

support to management / Committee meetings, Quality 

of relationship of the committee with the Board and the 

management, Sustainability, Board culture and dynamics etc. 

 Further, at the Board meeting that followed the meeting of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance 

evaluation of the Board as a whole, its Committees, and 

individual Directors was discussed. The performance 

evaluation of the Independent Directors was also carried 

out by the entire Board (excluding the director being 

evaluated). The overall performance evaluation exercise 

was completed to the satisfaction of the Board.

 The Independent Directors in their separate meeting have 

reviewed the performance of non-independent Directors, 

Chairperson and Board as a whole. 

 The detailed Policy inter-alia including criteria for 

performance evaluation is available under web link 

https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/

Nomination-Remuneration-and-Evaluation-Policy.pdf. 

There is no change in the policy during the year. 

 Remuneration of Directors 

 Non-Executive Independent Directors are paid only sitting 

fees for attending the Board and Committee meetings 

and Promoter Directors are paid Salary, Commission and 

Perquisites subject to the overall ceilings imposed by the 

Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statues.

 The appointment and remuneration of Promoter Executive 

Directors are governed as per terms and conditions 

approved by the Board of Directors and Shareholders on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 Details of Remuneration paid to Promoter & Executive Directors 
(H in Lakhs)

S. 

No
Name of Directors Category of Directors

Basic 

Salary

Contribution 

to P.F.
Commission Others Total

1 Sh. Dinesh Nolkha Promoter & Executive Director 63.00 7.56 243.255 1.856 315.67
2 Sh. Nitin Nolakha Promoter & Executive Director 47.40 5.69 243.255 1.796 298.14
3 Pratyush Nolakha  

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

Executive Director 16.645 1.997 - - 18.64
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 Performance linked incentive & Criteria – Commission based on profit of the Company. 

 Service contract, notice period, severance fee - The employment of Executive Directors shall terminate automatically in the 

event of his ceasing to be a Director of the Company in the General Meeting and/or in the event of their resignation as a Director 

of the Company. No severance fee is payable to Executive Directors. As per the terms of the policy on appointments of the 

Company the notice period is for three months.  

 Stock option to Executive Directors - Nil

 Non-Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration except sitting fee of H 50,000/- for attending every Board Meeting and  

H 25,000/- for attending every Committee Meeting. Total sitting fee of H 13,25,000/- was paid during the financial year 2024-25. 

The details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2024-25 are as under:- 

 Details of Sitting Fee paid to Non-Executive Directors

S. 

No.
Name of Director Category of Directors

Sitting Fee 

(Amt. In Lakhs)

1. Smt. Aditi Mehta  

(upto 27.07.2024)

Independent Director Non-Executive 2.25

2. Dr.  Rabisankar Chattopadhyay  

(upto 27.07.2024)

Independent Director Non-Executive 2.00

3. Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha Independent Director Non-Executive 3.00
4. Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta Independent Director Non-Executive 3.75
5. Smt. Vibha Aren  

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

Independent Director Non-Executive 2.25

 The Company has no pecuniary relationship or transactions 

with its Non-Executive Independent Directors other than 

payment of sitting fees to them for attending Board and 

Committee meetings. Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta is holding 

22000 Equity Shares of the Company; except him no 

Independent Director Non-Executive are holding any share 

in the Company and no stock option, convertible instrument 

have been issued by the Company.

 The Company has not advanced any loan to any Director 

during the Financial Year 2024-25.

 In pursuant to provisions of Listing Regulations, the 

Company has taken Directors’ and Officers (D & O) 

Liability Insurance to protect its Directors/officers personal 

liability for financial losses that may arise out of their 

unintentional wrongful acts.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

 Pursuant to Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations, the 

Board of the Company constituted Risk Management 

Committee to monitor risk associated to the Company. 

 Broad Terms of reference

 The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned with 

the guidelines set out in the Regulation 21 read with Para 

C Part D of schedule II of the Listing Regulations which 

broadly includes formulation and review of detailed risk 

management policy, design methodology, processes 

and systems to monitor and evaluate risks associated 

with the business of the Company, monitor and oversee 

implementation of the risk management policy. 

 Composition

 Presently, the committee comprises of Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, 

Chairman & Managing Director, Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha, 

Independent Director and Sh. Purushottam Maheshwari, 

CFO of the Company as Members with Sh. Dinesh Nolkha 

as Chairman of the Committee. 

 Meeting and Attendance

 The Committee meets as and when required and during 

the financial year 2024-25, two meetings of the Committee 

were held on 27.04.2024 and 07.11.2024. 

Name of Member
No. of Meetings 

attended

Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman 2
Dr. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay, 

Member (upto 27.07.2024)

Nil

Sh. Rishabh Chand Lodha, 

Member

2

Sh. Purushottam Maheshwari, 

Member

2

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 Your company has Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

constituted by the Board of Directors to oversee the 

services provided to the Investors of the Company.
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 Broad Terms of reference

 The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee are in line with the provisions of regulation 20 

read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and 

also with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 which broadly includes the following :-

 The committee considers and approves various requests 

for transmission, sub-division, consolidation, renewal, 

exchange, issue of new certificates in replacement of 

old ones, Dematerialization/Rematerialization of Shares, 

non-receipt of declared Dividend, Annual Reports and to 

redress the grievances of the investors as may be received 

from time to time. The Committee evaluate performance 

and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent of the Company; Provide guidance and make 

recommendations to improve investor service levels for the 

investors; Review of the various measures and initiatives 

taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends; Review of adherence to the service 

standards adopted by the Company; Review of measures 

taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

 The Secretarial Department of the Company and Registrar 

& Transfer Agent, Bigshare Services Private Ltd., Mumbai 

attend all the Grievance of the Shareholders and Investors 

received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, SCORES etc. 

 No Stakeholders’ Grievance remained un-attended/

pending for more than 15 days. There was no complaint 

pending for disposal as on the March 31, 2025. All the 

shares issued by the Company are held in DEMAT form. 

 Composition

 Presently, the committee comprises of Smt. Viba Aren, 

Independent Director, Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Chairman & 

Managing Director and Sh. Nitin Nolakha, Managing 

Director with Smt. Viba Aren, Independent Director as 

Chairperson of the Committee. 

 Meeting and Attendance

 The Committee meets as and when required and during 

the financial year 2024-25, one meeting of the Committee 

were held on 07.11.2024. 

Name of Member
No. of Meetings 

attended

Sh. Rabisankar Chattopadhyay, 

Chairperson (Upto 27.07.2024)

N.A.

Smt. Vibha Aren, Chairperson 

(w.e.f. 22.07.2024)

1

Sh. Dinesh Nolkha, Member 1
Sh. Nitin  Nolakha, Member 1

 Compliance Officer: - Mr. Sudhir Garg, Company 

Secretary & VP (Legal)

 Designated E-mail for Investors’ Grievances - 

investorrelations@nitinspinners.com

 Details of Complaints received and status thereof:-

 No complaint was received from Investors during the 

financial year 2024-25 and no complaint was pending at 

the end of the year. 

7. General Body Meeting:- 

(i) Location and Time of General Body Meetings:

 The details of location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during last three years are given as under :-

AGM Date Time Place Special Resolution(s) passed

30th AGM 15.09.2022 3.00 PM Through Video Conference (VC)/ 

Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

hosted at Nitin Spinners Limited

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road, 

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara -311025

1. Appointment of Sh. Ratan Lal Nolkha as 

Non-Executive Director (Chairman)

2. Re-appointment of Sh. Dinesh  Nolkha, 

Managing Director

3. Appointment of Sh. Rohit Swadheen Mehta 

as Independent Director
31st AGM 18.09.2023 3.00 PM Through Video Conference (VC)/ 

Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

hosted at Nitin Spinners Limited

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road, 

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara -311025

Nil
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AGM Date Time Place Special Resolution(s) passed

32nd AGM 16.09.2024 3.00 PM Through Video Conference (VC)/ 

Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

hosted at Nitin Spinners Limited

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road, 

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara -311025

1. Appointment of Smt. Vibha Aren as 

Independent Director. 

2. Increase in Borrowing Power to H 2000 

Crores u/s 180(1)(c) of the Companies  

Act, 2013. 

3. Creation of Security on increased 

Borrowing Power u/s 180(1)(a) of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

 During the financial year 2024-25, no resolution has been 

passed through Postal Ballot. Also, no business proposed 

at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing 

through postal ballot.

8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

 Pursuant to Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations, 

a meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 

09.05.2024 without the attendance of Non-Independent 

Directors and members of management to inter-alia :

	 Review the performance of Non Independent Directors 

and the Board of Directors as a whole;

	 Review the performance of the Chairman of the 

Company taking into account the views of the 

Executive and Non Executive Directors;

	 Assess the quality, content and timelines of flow of 

information between the Management and the Board 

that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 

reasonably perform its duties.

 All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting. 

9.  OTHER DISCLOSURES:

 Details of Compliances:-

 The Company has complied with all the applicable 

requirements of the Listing Regulations as well as SEBI 

regulations and guidelines. During the last three years, no 

penalties/strictures were imposed / passed on the Company 

by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority 

on any matter related to capital markets. 

 Related Party Transactions:-

 All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s 

length basis and in the ordinary course of business during 

the financial year. The Company has complied with 

all the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations 

and Companies Act, 2013 in this regard. There were no 

materially significant transactions with related parties 

during the financial year that may have potential conflict 

with interest of listed entity at large. Suitable disclosure 

as required by the Ind AS 24 has been made in the notes 

to the Financial Statements. Pursuant to regulation 23 of 

the Listing Regulations, all the related party transactions 

are disclosed to Stock Exchanges on half yearly basis. The 

Board has approved a policy for related party transactions 

which has been uploaded on the Company’s website 

under the link https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/

uploads/2024/12/Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf.pdf

 Code of Conduct:-

 The Board of the Company has laid down a Code of 

Conduct for all Board members and Senior Management 

of the Company. The Company is committed to conduct 

its business in accordance with the pertinent laws, 

rules and regulations and with the highest standards of 

business ethics. 

 The code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management 

as approved by the Board of Directors has been placed 

on the website of the Company under the link https://

n i t inspinners .com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/

ConductDirectorsandSMP.pdf All Board members and 

senior management personnel have affirmed compliance 

with the code of conduct during the year under review. In 

this regard, certificate of Managing Director is given at the 

end of this report. 

 Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring & 
Reporting Trading by Insiders

 In compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015 the Company has instituted 

a comprehensive code of conduct for Regulating, 

Monitoring & Reporting Trading in shares of the Company 

by designated and connected persons. The Code lays 

down guidelines, which advises them on procedures 

to be followed and disclosures to be made, while 

trading in shares of the Company and cautions them on 

consequences of violations. The Company follows closure 

of trading window prior to the publication of price sensitive 

information. The Company has been informing the directors, 

senior management personnel and other persons covered 

under the code and advise them not to trade in Company’s 

securities during the closure of trading window period.
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 Compliance with Regulation 34(3) of Listing 
Regulations

 In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read 

with Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10) (i) of the Listing 

Regulations, the Company has obtained a certificate 

from Practicing Company Secretary confirming that 

none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or 

any such statutory authority. The certificate is annexed 

with the report.

 Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:-

 With the rapid expansion of business in terms of volume, 

value and geography, various risks associated with 

the business have also increased considerably. One 

such risk identified is the risk of fraud & misconduct. The 

Audit Committee is committed to ensure fraud-free work 

environment and to this end the Committee has laid down 

a Whistle Blower Policy providing a platform to all the 

Directors, employee, other stakeholders. As per policy, 

they can report any suspected or confirmed incident of 

fraud/misconduct to the Chairman of Audit Committee. 

The policy also provides for adequate safeguard against 

victimization. This policy is applicable to all the directors, 

employees, other stakeholders of the Company and it 

is posted on the website of the Company under the link 

https://nitinspinners.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/

Vigil-Mechanism-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf It provides 

for direct access to the Chairperson of audit committee 

in appropriate or exceptional cases. No employee was 

denied access to the Audit Committee.

 During the year under review, there was no instance of 

fraud and no whistle blower event was reported. 

 Prohibition of Sexual Harassment of Women 

 The Company has in place a Policy for prevention of 

sexual harassment of women and constituted internal 

complaints committee in line with the requirements of the 

Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints 

regarding sexual harassment at workplace.

 The committee meet from time to time and informed that 

no complaint was pending at the beginning and end of the 

year and no complaint of sexual harassment of women has 

been received during the financial year 2024-25 and no 

complaint was pending for more than 90 days. 

 Familiarization Programme for Independent 
Directors:-

 On appointment, the concerned Director is issued a Letter of 

Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of appointment, 

duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. 

Each newly appointed Independent Director is taken 

through a formal induction program on the Company’s 

manufacturing, marketing, finance and other important 

aspects. The Company Secretary briefs the Director about 

their legal and regulatory responsibilities as a Director. 

 Further, the Directors are regularly updated with 

amendments in the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Listing Regulations, other applicable SEBI Regulations 

etc. Besides these, Directors are updated on continuous 

basis in respect of Related Party Transactions, Audit and 

Auditors and they are periodically meeting with the senior 

management of the Company.

 The details of familiarization programme for 

Independent Directors is available at the website 

of the Company under the link https://nitinspinners.

com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Familiarization-

Programmes-2024-25.pdf

 Loans and Advances 

 The Company has not made any loan and advances 

to firms/companies in which Directors of the Company 

are interested.

 Compliance Confirmation

 It is confirmed that the Company has complied with the 

requirements prescribed under Regulation 17 to 27 and 

clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the 

Listing Regulations. A certificate from Statutory Auditors 

for compliance of provisions of Corporate Governance is 

attached with the Report.

 Discretionary Requirements 

 The Company has complied with all the mandatory 

requirements of the Listing Regulations and adoptions 

of discretionary requirements as provided in the Part 

–E of Schedule – II under regulation 27(1) Listing 

Regulations are as under:-

 (i) Reporting of Internal Auditors directly to 

Audit Committee. 

 (ii) Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report –Moved 

towards regime of financial statement with 

unmodified audit opinion.

 Others 

 During the year the Company has paid total fee of H 15.35 

Lakhs to the Statutory Auditors towards Audit Fee and 

other services. 

 There are no instances where Board has not accepted 

the recommendation of any Committee of Board 

of the Company.

 The Company do not have any Subsidiary Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Contd..)

 Particulars of Senior Management :-

S. 

No.
Name Designation

1. Shri Sandeep Garg President & Chief 

Operating Officer
2. Shri P. Maheshwari President & CFO
3. Shri Umesh Toshniwal Jt. President 

(Marketing)
4. Shri Anil Kumar Jain Jt. President 

(Commercial) 
5. Shri Sudhir Garg Company Secretary & 

Vice President (Legal)
6. Shri Vivek Tripathi Vice President 

(Technical)
7. Shri Dinesh Kumar 

Sharma

Vice President 

(Spinning)
8. Shri Dinesh Dhar Shukla Vice President 

(Spinning)
9. Shri Ramesh Chandra 

Mishra

Vice President 

(Processing)
10. Shri Vipin Panwar Vice President  

(Fabric Marketing)
11. Shri Dhirendra Kumar 

Sachan

Vice President 

(Weaving) 
12. Shri Rajat Mehra General Manager 

(Purchase)
13. Shri Rajendra Patodia General Manager (I.T.)
14. Shri Prem Narayan Joshi General Manager 

(Human Resources)
15. Shri Babu Lal Sharma General Manager 

(Cotton Purchase)

 During the F.Y. 2024-25 there is no change in the Senior 

Management Personnel of the Company.

 No share is lying in DEMAT suspense account/unclaimed 

suspense account.

 Pursuant to Regulation 30A (2) of Listing Regulation we 

confirm that no agreement is subsist under clause 5A to 

para A of part A of schedule III to the Listing Regulations.

 The details about commodity price risk, foreign exchange 

risk and hedging activities are given in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report.

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

 The main channel of communication to shareholders is 

through Annual Report which inter-alia includes the Board’s 

Report, the Report on Corporate Governance and Audited 

Financial Statements.

 Quarterly financial results are approved by the Board 

of Directors and submitted to the Stock Exchanges. The 

Quarterly financial results are published in one prominent 

English newspaper such as the Business Standard and one/

two vernacular language newspapers such as Rajasthan 

Patrika/Dainik Bhaskar and Nafa Nuksan. 

 The website of the Company www.nitinspinners.com acts 

as the primary source of information about the Company 

which inter-alia display the annual/quarterly financial 

results, official press/news release and Shareholding 

pattern, of the Company. The same are also displayed on 

the website of both the Stock Exchanges. The Company 

ensures that relevant provisions of Regulation 46 of the 

Listing Regulation are complied with.

 Presentations made to institutional investors and analysts 

during the financial year 2024-25 are available on the 

website of the Company www.nitinspinners.com and also 

disseminated to the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE.

 During the Financial year 2024-25, the Company did not 

raise any funds through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutional placement.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

 Shareholder Information:-

A. Date of AGM & Time & Venue 06th September, 2025 at 3.00 PM IST through Video Conference 

(VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)

B. Date of Book Closure 31.08.2025 to 06.09.2025 (Both the days Inclusive)

C. Dividend Payment date Within 30 days from the date of AGM.

D. Financial Year April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026

E. Tentative Financial Calendar for next Year for 2025-26:

Period Date of Board Meeting

1st Quarter ending June, 2025 Last week of July, 2025 or first week of August, 2025

2nd Quarter ending September, 2025 Last week of October, 2025 or First week of November, 2025

3rd Quarter ending December, 2025 Last week of January, 2026 or First week of February, 2026

Year ending 31st March, 2026 April/May 2026

AGM for year ending 31st March, 2026 August/September 2026
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Corporate Governance Report (Contd..)

 F. Dematerialization of Share and Liquidity:

  The equity shares of the Company are compulsorily traded and settled in dematerialized form under ISIN INE229H01012. 

All the shares issued by the Company are held in DEMAT form as per following details :-  

Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

No. of Shares Dematerialized
- NSDL 4,96,16,080 88.25 5,01,34,443 89.18
- CDSL 66,03,920 11.75 60,85,557 10.82
Total 5,62,20,000 100.00 5,62,20,000 100.00

 G. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants Etc. Nil

 H. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:-

  The Bigshare Services Private Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. The Shareholders / 

Investors are requested to contact for all correspondence / queries at the following address:- 

M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited

Unit : Nitin Spinners Limited

Address : Office No S6-2, 6th floor Pinnacle Business Park,

 Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,

 Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400093 (Maharashtra)

Phone No. : 022-62638200

Fax No. : 022-62638299 

Email : investor@bigshareonline.com

Web Site : http://www.bigshareonline.com

  Share Transfer System 

  In terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, transfer of shares can be processed 

in DEMAT form, transmission and transposition of securities held in physical or DEMAT form shall be effected only in 

dematerialized form. 

  Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated January 25, 2022, the listed companies shall issue the securities in dematerialized form only, 

for processing any service requests from shareholders viz., issue of duplicate share certificates, endorsement, transmission, 

transposition, etc. After processing the service request, a letter of confirmation will be issued to the shareholders and 

shall be valid for a period of 120 days, within which the shareholder shall make a request to the Depository Participant 

for dematerializing those shares. If the shareholders fail to submit the dematerialization request within 120 days, then the 

Company shall credit those shares in the Suspense Escrow Demat account held by the Company. Shareholders can claim 

these shares transferred to Suspense Escrow Demat account on submission of necessary documentation. 

  However, all the shares issued by the Company are held in DEMAT form only.

 I. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025:

No. of Equity Shares held No. of Shareholders % to Shareholders No. of Shares % to Shares

Up to 500 34037 89.9118 3249119 5.7793
501 to 1,000 1829 4.8315 1432026 2.5472
1,001 to 2,000 977 2.5808 1472972 2.6200
2,001 to 3,000 334 0.8823 847673 1.5078
3,001 to 4,000 137 0.3619 484634 0.8620
4,001 to 5,000 130 0.3434 609173 1.0836
5,001 to 10,000 216 0.5706 1605384 2.8555
10,001 & above 196 0.5178 46519019 82.7446
Total 37856 100 56220000 100
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 G. Category wise Shareholding 

Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

Promoters and Promoters’ Group 3,18,32,000 56.62 3,17,40,000 56.46
Public
- Institutional 92,26,609 16.41 81,16,168 14.44
- Others 1,51,61,391 26.97 1,63,63,832 29.10
Total 5,62,20,000 100.00 5,62,20,000 100.00

 H. Credit Ratings of the Company

  During the year 2024-25, CARE Rating Limited has reviewed the ratings of Bank Loan facilities of the Company and 

reaffirmed the previous credit ratings given by them :-

Facilities Rating Agency Current Year Rating Previous Year Rating

Long term Rating - Term Loan & Working Capital 

(Fund Based)

Care Rating Limited CARE A  

Outlook – Stable

CARE A 

Outlook – Stable
Short Term Ratings (Non Fund based) Care Rating Limited CARE A1 CARE A1

(a) Plant Locations (i) 16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh, Bhilwara (Rajasthan)  

PIN – 311025
(ii) Chittor –Kota NH-27, 

 Village – Bhanwaria Kalan, 

 Tehsil-Begun, 

 Distt. - Chittorgarh (Rajasthan) PIN – 312023
(b) Registered office and address for 

correspondence

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh, 

Bhilwara – 311025 (Rajasthan)

Phone : 01482-286110 to 286113

Fax No. : 01482-286117 & 286114

E-Mail : nsl@nitinspinners.com

Website – www.nitinspinners.com

 I. Plant Location & Address for Correspondence

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Dinesh Nolkha Nitin Nolakha

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

Date : 05th August, 2025 (DIN – 00054658) (DIN – 00054707)

Registered Office :

16-17 KM Stone, Chittor Road,

Hamirgarh, Bhilwara - 311025
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

{Under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015}

A) We have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and that to the best of our 

knowledge and belief:

 (1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading.

 (2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 

the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 

auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 

and the steps we have taken or propose to take rectify these deficiencies.

D) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

 (1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 (2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 

financial statements; and

 (3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or 

an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

(P. Maheshwari) (Nitin Nolakha)

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director

PAN – ABAPM8005C DIN - 00054707

Place: Hamirgarh, Bhilwara

Date: 13th May, 2025

Declaration as required under regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

All Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors 

and Senior Management of Nitin Spinners Limited for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

 NITIN NOLAKHA

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara Managing Director

Date : 13th May, 2025 (DIN – 00054707)
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Auditor’s Certificate on compliance of Corporate Governance

To

The Members of Nitin Spinners Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Nitin Spinners Limited for the year ended 31st March, 

2025 as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management of the Company. Our examination 

was limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 

complied with the condition of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For KALANI & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000722C/C400390

[S. P. JHANWAR]

Place: Bhilwara Partner

Date: 5th August, 2025 M. No. 074414
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Nitin Spinners Limited, Bhilwara

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

Nitin Spinners Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and 

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 

ended on that date, and a summary of the material accounting 

policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 

to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 

give the information required by Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) in the manner so required, and give a true and fair view 

in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind As” ) and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit 

and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance 

with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”). Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 

our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described 

below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Valuation of Inventories Our Audit Procedure:
	 The net carrying value of inventory as on 31st March, 

2025 is 22.23% of Total Assets of the company.

	 Sales in the industry can be extremely volatile with 

consumer demand changing significantly (Seasonal) 

based on current trends. As a result, there is a risk 

that the carrying value of inventory exceeds its net 

realisable value.

 Hence, we determined the valuation of inventories as a key 

audit matter.

 Related Disclosures:

 Please refer to point 6 to Note-1 (C) for details of the material 

accounting policies of inventories and Note-6 of Notes to 

Financial Statements for relevant disclosures of inventories.

	 We have performed the Inventory physical stock count on 

sample basis. We performed inventory counts at location, 

which is selected based on financial significance and risk 

and we performed the following procedures at each site:

 (i) Selected a sample of inventory items and compared the 

quantities we counted to the quantities recorded. 

 (ii) Observed a sample of management’s inventory count 

procedures to assess compliance with Company’s policy, 

and

 (iii) Made inquiries regarding obsolete inventory items and 

inspected the condition of items counted.

	 We have also evaluated a selection of controls over inventory 

existence across the company.

	 Examining the Company’s historical trading patterns of 

inventory sold at full price and inventory sold below full 

price, together with the related margins achieved for each 

product lines in order to gain comfort that stock has not been 

sold below cost.
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

	 Evaluating the rationality of the inventory policies such as the 

policy of inventory valuation and provision for obsolescence 

and understanding whether the valuation of inventory was 

performed in accordance with the Company’s policy.

	 Analysing the inventory aging report and net realizable 

value of inventories.

	 Inspecting the post period sales situation and evaluating 

the net realizable value of measurement applied on aging 

inventory in order to verify the evaluation accuracy of the 

estimated inventory allowance by the Company and

	 Assessing whether the disclosures of provision for inventory 

valuation are appropriate.
2. Trade Receivables

 The recoverability of trade receivables and the level of 

provisions for doubtful debts are considered to be a significant 

risk due to the pervasive nature of these balances to the 

financial statements, and the importance of cash collection 

with reference to the working capital management of the 

business.

 As at 31st March, 2025 the trade receivables balances (net 

of provisions) consist of 15.72% of the total amount of assets 

of the company. Accordingly, we determined audit of trade 

receivables as the key audit matter.

 Related Disclosures:

 Please refer to Note-7 of Notes to Financial Statements for 

relevant disclosures of trade receivables.

Our Audit Procedure:

	 Assessed the design and implementation of key controls 

around the monitoring of recoverability.

	 Discussed with the management regarding the level and 

ageing of trade receivables, along with the consistency and 

appropriateness of receivables provisioning by assessing 

recoverability with reference to amount received in respect 

of trade receivables.

	 In addition, we have considered the company’s previous 

experience of bad debt exposure and the individual counter-

party credit risk.

	 Tested these balances on a sample basis through agreement 

to post period end invoicing and cash receipt.

	 The accuracy and completeness were verified through, 

analytical review and balance confirmation.

	 Analysing the aging schedule of trade receivable, past 

collection records, industry boom and concentration of 

customers’ credit risk.
3. Revenue Recognition

 Revenue is an important measure used to evaluate the 

performance of the Company. There is a risk that the revenue 

is presented for amounts higher than what has been actually 

generated by the Company. Consequently, we considered 

revenue recognition to be a significant key audit matter.

 Related Disclosures:

 Please refer to Point 11 to Note-1(C) of the accounting policies 

for details of accounting policies and Note-22 of Notes to 

Financial Statements.

Our Audit procedure:

	 Assessing the design, implementation existence and 

operating effectiveness of internal control procedures 

implemented as well as test of details to ensure accurate 

processing of revenue transactions.

	 Inspecting underlying documentation for any book entries 

which were considered to be material on a sample basis.

	 Inspecting the key terms and conditions of agreements 

with major customers on a sample basis to assess if there 

were any terms and conditions that may have affected the 

accounting treatment of the revenue recognition.

	 The accuracy and completeness of revenue was 

verified through, cut-off test, analytical reviews and 

balance confirmation.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 

to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 

Information, but does not include the financial statements and 

our auditor’s report thereon. The other information as identified 

above is expected to be made available to us after the date of 

this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 

other information and we will not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information identified above 

when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 

the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information as identified above, if 

we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 

we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 

with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity 

and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies, making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 

responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 

Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.

	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 

financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.

	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management.

	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves 

fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial 

statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 

scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 

the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also 

provide those charged with governance with a statement that 

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and 

according to the information & explanation given to us, we 

give in the Annexure-1, a statement on the matters specified 

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 

audit we report:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b) In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, proper 

books of accounts as required by law have been 

kept by the Company so far as appears from our 

examination of those books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 

comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 e) On the basis of written representations received 

from the directors, as on March 31, 2025 and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

Directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from 

being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 

(2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

Annexure ‘II’ to this report.

 g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 

section 197 of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 

our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 

pending litigations on its financial position in its 

financial statements. (Refer Note No. 30)

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts, for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring 

amounts which are required to be transferred 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

by the Company.

  iv. a. The Management has represented that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually 

or in the aggregate) have been advanced 

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company 

to or in any other person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

   b. The Management has represented, that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually 
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or in the aggregate) have been received 

by the Company from any person or entity, 

including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise, that the Company 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries.

   c. Based on the audit procedures that 

have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused 

us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 

any material misstatement.

  v. As stated in Note – 34 to the financial statements

   a. The final dividend proposed in the previous 

year, declared and paid by Company 

during the year is in accordance with 

section 123 of the act, as applicable.

   b. The Board of Director of the company 

have proposed final dividend for the year 

which is subject to the approval of the 

members at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed 

is in accordance with section 123 of the 

Act, as applicable.

  vi. Based on our examination which includes test 

check, the company has used an accounting 

software for maintaining its books of accounts 

which has a feature of recording audit trail 

(edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all the relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, 

during the course of our audit we did not 

come across any instance of audit trail feature 

being tampered with.

For Kalani & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000722C/C400390

S.P. Jhanwar

Place: Bhilwara Partner

Date: 13th May, 2025 M. No.- 074414
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in Para 1 of Report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory requirements of Independent Auditor’s Report to 

the members of the Nitin Spinners Limited, Bhilwara on the 

standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 

2025 we report that,

(i) In respect of Property, Plant & Equipment and 

Intangible Assets

a) i. The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars including quantitative details 

and the situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

 ii. The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars of its Intangible Assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification 

of its property, plant & equipment by which these are verified 

in a phased manner by the management during the year, 

which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the 

size of the company and nature of its assets. No material 

discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

c) According to information and explanation given to us and 

based on our verification, the title deeds of immovable 

properties are held in the name of the company.

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and 

Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanation given to us 

and as represented by the person those charge with 

governance, no proceedings have been initiated or are 

pending against the company for holding any benami 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 

1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) a) As per the information and explanation given to us, 

the Company’s management has carried out physical 

verification of inventory at reasonable intervals and 

in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such 

verification by the management is appropriate. No 

discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for 

each class of inventory were noticed.

 b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits 

in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks 

or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 

assets. Based on the information and explanation given 

to us and as represented by the person those charge 

with governance; we have not noticed any material 

variations in the quarterly returns or statements filed by 

the company with such banks or financial institutions 

with the books of account of the company.

(iii) During the year, the company has not made any investments in, 

provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances 

in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 

firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

 a) No loans and advances in the nature of loan given by 

the company, hence clause 3(iii)(a) is not applicable.

 b) Company has not made any investments, no 

guarantees provided, no security given hence clause 

3(iii)(b) is not applicable.

 c) No loans and advances in the nature of loan given by 

the company, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(c) is 

not applicable.

 d) No loans and advances in the nature of loan given by 

the company, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) is 

not applicable.

 e) No loans and advances in the nature of loan given by 

the company, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) is 

not applicable.

 f) The company has not granted any loans or advances 

in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made any 

investments, given any guarantees, and security, secured 

or unsecured to any companies, firms, limited liability 

partnership or other parties covered in register maintained 

under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the 

clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The company has not accepted deposits from the public 

within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, hence this clause 

is not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records 

maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made 

by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 

records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act read 

with Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 and we 

are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts 

and records have been made and maintained. We have not, 

however, made detailed examination of the records with a 

view to determine whether they are accurate and complete.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to 

us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, the company is generally regular in 

depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods 

and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 

insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any 

other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and 

there are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as 

on 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months 

from the date they became payable.
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 b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unpaid dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident 

fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 

under dispute except as per details given hereunder:

Sr. 

No.
Name of the Statue Nature of Dues

Gross 

Amount 

Involved 

(J in Lacs)

Amount 

Deposited 

under Protest 

(J in Lacs)

Amount not 

deposited 

(J in Lacs)

Period to 

which it 

relates

Forum where dispute 

is pending

1. Central Excise Excise duty & 

Penalty

9.25 9.25 - 2006-07 High Court, Jodhpur

2. Customs Redemption 

Fine

0.50 - 0.50 2009-10 CESTAT, Ahmedabad

3. Service Tax Service Tax, 

Interest & 

Penalty

9.23 9.23 - 2017-18 Commissioner (A), 

Jodhpur

4. Income Tax Act Income Tax 1.44 0.28 1.16 2017-18 CIT (A)
5. Income Tax Act Income Tax 24.23 - 24.23 2016-17 CIT (A)

Total 44.65 18.76 25.89

(viii) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the 

books of accounts. Hence reporting under the clause 3 (viii) 

of the CARO is not applicable.

(ix) a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of 

loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 

interest thereon to any lender accordingly reporting 

under clause 3(ix)(a) is not applicable.

 b) According to the information and explanations given 

to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 

report that the company has not been declared 

wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

government or any government authority.

 c) According to the information and explanations given 

to us, the company has not obtained the money 

through term loan, hence this clause is not applicable.

 d) According to the information and explanations given to us, 

and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the company, 

we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have 

been used for long-term purposes by the company.

 e) According to the information and explanations given 

to us and on an overall examination of the financial 

statements of the company, we report that the 

company has not taken any funds from any entity or 

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

 f) According to the information and explanations given 

to us and procedures performed by us, we report that 

the company has not raised loans during the year on 

the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 

ventures or associate companies.

(x) a) The Company has not raised money by way of Initial 

Public Offer / further public offer (including debt 

instruments), hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 

‘the Order’ is not applicable.

 b) In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the company has not raised 

funds by way of preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, 

partially or optionally convertible) hence reporting 

under clause 3(x)(b) of ‘the Order’ is not applicable.

(xi) a) According to the information and explanations given 

to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, no material fraud by the 

company or any fraud on the company has been 

noticed or reported during the year.

 b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 

the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors 

in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government;

 c) As represented to us by the management, there 

are no whistle blower complaints received by the 

company during the year.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence reporting 

under clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b), 3(xii)(c) of ‘the Order’ is 

not applicable.

(xiii) According to information and explanation given to us and 

based on our examination, section 177 of ‘the Act’ is not 

applicable to company and company has complied with 

the provisions of Section 188 of ‘the Act’ w.r.t. transactions 

with the related parties, wherever applicable. Details of the 

transactions with the related parties have been disclosed 

in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable 

Accounting Standards.

(xiv) a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the 

company has an internal audit system commensurate 

with the size and nature of its business.

 b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the 

company issued till date, for the period under audit.
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, 

in our opinion during the year the company has not entered 

into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 

connected with its directors and hence provisions of 

section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 

to the company.

(xvi) a) Company is not required to be registered under 

section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 (2 of 1934).

 b) Company has not conducted any Non-Banking 

Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 

Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank 

of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

 c) Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 

defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank 

of India, accordingly this clause is not applicable.

 d) Company does not have CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial 

year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 

during the year and accordingly this clause is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given 

to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 

and expected dates of realization of financial assets 

and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge 

of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 

causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 

on the date of the audit report that company is not capable 

of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 

from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 

not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. 

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 

up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 

get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) a) There is no unspent amount towards corporate social 

responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects 

accordingly this clause is not applicable.

 b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company has 

transferred the unspent CSR amount (H 0.24 lacs &  

H 300 lakhs) as at the balance sheet date to a special 

account on 22.04.2025 & 28.04.2025 respectively in 

compliance with the provisions of sub section (6) of 

section 135 of the companies act, 2013 within the time 

period for such transfer i.e. 30 days from the end of 

the financial year.

(xxi) Since this report is in relation to stand alone financial 

statements accordingly this clause is not applicable.

For Kalani & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000722C/C400390

S.P. Jhanwar

Place: Bhilwara Partner

Date: 13th May, 2025 M. No.- 074414

UDIN : 25074414BMICYR4822
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Annexure “II” forming part of Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of Nitin Spinners Limited (“the Company”) 

as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 

on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements was established 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system with reference to financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A company's internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 

financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 

the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and 

such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 

statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based 

on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 

statements criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kalani & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000722C/C400390

S.P. Jhanwar

Place: Bhilwara Partner

Date: 13th May, 2025 M. No.- 074414
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st March 2025

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
Note 

No.

As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 157693.80 170824.82
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3 663.97 243.64
(c) Other Intangible Assets 4 38.82 66.12
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 5 2320.72 1858.48
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 160717.31 172993.06

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6 60737.98 56397.16
(b) Financial Assets
 (i) Trade Receivables 7 42960.01 32138.39
 (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 707.60 6.63
 (iii) Other Bank Balances 8A 243.66 33.91
 (iv) Other Financial Assets 9 279.99 17.10
(c) Other Current Assets 10 7585.42 10079.01
Total Current Assets (B) 112514.66 98672.20
Total Assets (A+B) 273231.97 271665.26

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 11 5622.00 5622.00
(b) Other Equity 12 125497.94 109010.82
Total Equity (A) 131119.94 114632.82

(2) LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
 Borrowings 13 63669.67 81063.13
(b) Provisions 14 771.51 633.16
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 12009.26 11137.60
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B) 76450.44 92833.89

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 16 52801.51 52847.74
 (ii) Trade Payables 17
  - Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 953.16 473.36
  - Due to Others 7971.00 6928.06
 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 2233.80 2460.73
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 721.10 875.63
(c) Provisions 20 587.61 346.62
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 393.41 266.41
Total Current Liabilities (C) 65661.59 64198.55
Total Liabilities (B+C) 142112.03 157032.44
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 273231.97 271665.26

Material Accounting Policies 1
Disclosures and Additional Informations 30-44

In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For KALANI & CO LLP DINESH NOLKHA NITIN NOLAKHA

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

(Firm Reg. no. 000722C/C400390) (DIN - 00054658) (DIN - 00054707 )

S. P. JHANWAR P. MAHESHWARI SUDHIR GARG

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

M. No. 074414 (PAN - ABAPM8005C) Vice President (Legal)

  (PAN - ABBPK6037F)

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara

Date : 13.05.2025
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Statement of Profit & Loss
for the year ended 31st March 2025

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
Note 

No.

For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

I Revenue from Operations 22 330565.42 290564.93
II Other Income 23 359.66 224.93
III Total Income (I+II) 330925.08 290789.86
IV Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 24 208800.34 188680.48
Purchase of Stock in trade 25 88.47 321.16
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and 

Stock-in-Trade

26 1337.43 1930.29

Employee Benefit Expenses 27 20055.89 17684.04
Finance Cost 28 9038.08 8330.28
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 2,4 14769.55 11847.21
Other Expenses 29 53141.41 44243.12
Total Expenses (IV) 307231.17 273036.58

V Profit before Exceptional Items & Tax 23693.91 17753.28
VI Exceptional Items  -  -
VII Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 23693.91 17753.28
VIII Tax Expenses

1. Current Tax 5497.15 2734.14
2. Earlier Year (99.82) (0.03)
3. Deferred Tax 753.95 1867.35
Total Tax Expenses (VIII) 6151.28 4601.46

IX Profit /(Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations After Tax (VII-VIII) 17542.63 13151.82
X Other Comprehensive Income
1 Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (Net of Tax)

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans  205.24 133.62
Income tax related to Defined Benefit Plans (51.65) (33.63)

153.59 99.99
2 Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss (Net of Tax)

Change in Fair Value of Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedge 262.47 (138.44)
Tax on Cash Flow Hedge Recognised during the year (66.06) 34.84

196.41 (103.60)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of Income Tax 350.00 (3.61)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) 17892.63 13148.21
XII Earning Per Equity Share (Rupees Per Share)

(1) Basic 31.20 23.39
(2) Diluted 31.20 23.39

Material Accounting Policies 1
Disclosures and Additional informations 30-44

In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For KALANI & CO LLP DINESH NOLKHA NITIN NOLAKHA

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

(Firm Reg. no. 000722C/C400390) (DIN - 00054658) (DIN - 00054707 )

S. P. JHANWAR P. MAHESHWARI SUDHIR GARG

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

M. No. 074414 (PAN - ABAPM8005C) Vice President (Legal)

  (PAN - ABBPK6037F)

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara

Date : 13.05.2025
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March 2025

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
 Net Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Items 23693.91 17753.28
 Adjustments for :-
 Depreciation 14769.55 11847.21
 Interest Expenditure 9038.08 8330.28
 Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (1.01) (8.18)
 Actuarial (loss)/gains on Defined Benefit Obligations  205.24 133.62
 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (1) 47705.77 38056.21
 Adjustments for :-
 Decrease/( Increase) Inventories (4340.82) (7192.92)
 Decrease/ (Increase) Trade Receivables (10821.62) (9872.16)
 Decrease/ (Increase) Other Current & Non Current Assets 1924.05 (2320.16)
 Increase/(Decrease) Current & Non Current Liabilities 1545.86 227.04
 Total Adjustments (2) (11692.53) (19158.20)
 Cash Generated from Operations (1-2) 36013.24 18898.01
 Less : Taxes Paid 5270.63 2549.99
 Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 30742.61 16348.02
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (1623.03) (81694.36)
 Capital WIP including Capital Advances (548.15) 39070.27
 Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  12.81 73.84
 Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investing Activities (B) (2158.37) (42550.25)
(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Proceeds from /(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowing (Net) (2898.73) 7014.04
 Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  - 39489.16
 Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (14540.96) (10565.54)
 Interest Paid (9038.08) (8330.28)
 Dividend Paid (1405.50) (1405.50)
 Net Cash Generated/(Used) From Financing Activities (C) (27883.27) 26201.88
 Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 700.97 (0.35)
 Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 6.63 6.98
 Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 707.60 6.63

In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For KALANI & CO LLP DINESH NOLKHA NITIN NOLAKHA

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

(Firm Reg. no. 000722C/C400390) (DIN - 00054658) (DIN - 00054707 )

S. P. JHANWAR P. MAHESHWARI SUDHIR GARG

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

M. No. 074414 (PAN - ABAPM8005C) Vice President (Legal)

  (PAN - ABBPK6037F)

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara

Date : 13.05.2025
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year Ended 31st March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Number (J In Lacs) Number (J In Lacs)

Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning of reporting period 56220000 5622.00 56220000 5622.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors  -  -  -  -
Restate balance at the beginning of current reporting period 56220000 5622.00 56220000 5622.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year  -  -  -  -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 56220000 5622.00 56220000 5622.00

B. Other Equity
(H In Lacs)

Particular

Reserves & Surplus Other Reserves

Total
Capital 

Redemption 

Reserve

Securities 

Premium

General 

Reserve

Retained 

Earning

Effective Portion 

of Cash Flow 

Hedge Reserve

Balance as at 1st April 2023 150.00 13727.12 5000.00 78306.28 84.71 97268.11
Changes in Accounting Policy or prior 

period errors

 -  -  -  -  -  -

Restate balance as at 1st April 2023 150.00 13727.12 5000.00 78306.28 84.71 97268.11
Profit for the year ended 31st March 2024 13151.82 13151.82
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) 

(OCI)
(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit 

obligation (Net of Tax)

99.99 99.99

(b) Adjustment for Effective portion of Cash 

Flow Hedge (Net of Tax)

(103.60) (103.60)

Dividend Paid (1405.50) (1405.50)
Balance as at 31st March 2024 150.00 13727.12 5000.00 90152.59 (18.89) 109010.82
Changes in Accounting Policy or prior 

period errors

 -  -  -  -  -  -

Restate balance as at 31st March 2024 150.00 13727.12 5000.00 90152.59 (18.89) 109010.82
Profit for the year ended 31st March 2025 17542.63 17542.63
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) 

(OCI)
(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit 

obligation (Net of Tax)

153.58 153.58

(b) Adjustment for Effective portion of Cash 

Flow Hedge (Net of Tax)

196.41 196.41

Dividend Paid (1405.50) (1405.50)
Balance as at 31st March 2025 150.00 13727.12 5000.00 106443.30 177.52 125497.94

In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For KALANI & CO LLP DINESH NOLKHA NITIN NOLAKHA

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

(Firm Reg. no. 000722C/C400390) (DIN - 00054658) (DIN - 00054707 )

S. P. JHANWAR P. MAHESHWARI SUDHIR GARG

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

M. No. 074414 (PAN - ABAPM8005C) Vice President (Legal)

  (PAN - ABBPK6037F)

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara

Date : 13.05.2025
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note No. 1 - Company Information and Material 
Accounting Policies

A. Corporate Overview

 Nitin Spinners Limited (the “Company”), incorporated on 

15th October, 1992, is a Company domiciled in India and 

limited by shares (CIN: L17111RJ1992PLC006987). The 

address of the Company’s Registered Office is 16-17 Km. 

Stone, Chittor Road, Hamirgarh, Distt. Bhilwara- (Rajasthan 

311025). The company is engaged in manufacturing of 

Cotton and Blended Yarn, Knitted Fabrics and Woven 

Fabrics. The company is listed at National Stock Exchange 

of India Limited and at BSE Limited.

B. Basis of Preparation

 These Separate Financial Statements are prepared 

on Going Concern basis following Accrual basis of 

accounting and comply in all material aspects with the 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 

and subsequent amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 

2013 (to the extent applicable), applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

 1. Basis of Measurement/Use of Estimates

  (i) The Financial Statements are prepared 

on Accrual basis under the Historical Cost 

convention except certain Financial Assets and 

Liabilities (including Derivatives instruments) 

that are measured at fair value.

   Historical Cost is generally based on the Fair 

Value of the consideration given in exchange for 

goods and services.

   Fair Value is the price that would be received to 

sell an asset or paid to transfer a Liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants 

at the measurement date.

  (ii) The preparation of Financial Statements 

requires judgments, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amount of Assets and 

Liabilities, disclosure of Contingent Liabilities 

on the date of the Financial Statements and the 

reported amount of Revenues and Expenses 

during the reporting period. Difference 

between the actual results and estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the results are 

known/ materialized.

 2. Functional and Presentation Currency

  These Financial Statements are presented in Indian 

Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional 

currency. All financial information presented in INR 

has been rounded to the nearest lacs (up to two 

decimals), except as stated otherwise.

 3. Current and Non-Current classification

  The Company presents Assets and Liabilities in 

the Balance Sheet based on Current/Non-Current 

classification.

  An Asset is Current when it is:

	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 

consumed in normal operating cycle;

	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

	 Expected to be realised within twelve months 

after the reporting period; or

	 Cash or Cash equivalent unless restricted from 

being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period.

  All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

  A Liability is Current when:

	 It is expected to be settled in normal 

operating cycle;

	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after 

the reporting period; or

	 There is no unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period.

  All other Liabilities are classified as Non-Current.

  Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities are classified 

as Non-Current.

C. Material Accounting Policies

 A summary of the material Accounting Policies applied in the 

preparation of the Financial Statements are as given below. 

These Accounting Policies have been applied consistently 

to all periods presented in the Financial Statements.

 1. Property, Plant & Equipment

  1.1. Initial Recognition and Measurement

   An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is 

recognized as an Asset if and only if it is probable 

that future economic benefits associated with 

the item will flow to the company and the cost of 

the item can be measured reliably.

   Items of Property, Plant and Equipment 

are measured at Cost less Accumulated 

Depreciation/Amortization and Accumulated 

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure 

that is directly attributable to bringing the 
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asset, inclusive of non-refundable taxes & 

duties, to the location and condition necessary 

for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management.

   When parts of an item of property, plant and 

equipment have different useful lives, they are 

recognized separately.

   Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and 

servicing equipment which meet the definition of 

Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

  1.2. Subsequent Costs

   Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an 

increase in the carrying amount of the asset when 

it is probable that future economic benefits deriving 

from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise 

and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

   The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, 

Plant and Equipment is recognized in the 

carrying amount of the item if it is probable that 

the future economic benefits embodied within 

the part will flow to the Company and its cost 

can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 

of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs 

of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant 

and Equipment are recognized in Statement of 

Profit or Loss as and when incurred.

  1.3. Derecognition

   Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized 

when no future economic benefits are expected 

from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and 

Losses on disposal of an item of Property, Plant 

and Equipment are determined by comparing the 

proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount 

of Property, Plant and Equipment, and are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  1.4. Depreciation

   Assets are depreciated using straight line method 

over the estimated useful life of the asset as 

specified in Part “C” of Schedule II of Companies 

Act, 2013 except for Plant & Machinery (other 

than Laboratory Equipments, Fire Fighting 

Equipments and Tools &Equipments) whose 

estimated useful life is taken as 13 years (Triple 

Shift) after retaining residual life of 5% of original 

cost. Assets residual values and useful lives are 

reviewed at each financial year end considering 

the physical condition of the assets.

   Depreciation on additions to/deductions from 

Property, Plant & Equipment during the year is 

charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on 

which the asset is available for use/disposed.

   Where it is probable that future economic 

benefits deriving from the cost incurred will 

flow to the enterprise and the cost of the 

item can be measured reliably, subsequent 

expenditure on a PPE along-with its unamortized 

depreciable amount is charged off prospectively 

over the revised useful life determined by 

technical assessment.

   In circumstance, where a property is abandoned, 

the cumulative capitalized costs relating to the 

property are written off in the same period.

 2. Capital Work-in-Progress

  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost 

of materials & direct labour, any other costs directly 

attributable to bringing the assets to the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management 

and borrowing costs.

  Expenses directly attributable to construction of 

property, plant and equipment incurred till they 

are ready for their intended use are identified 

and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of 

related assets.

 3. Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under 

Development

  3.1. Initial recognition and measurement

   An Intangible Asset is recognized if and only if 

it is probable that the expected future economic 

benefits that are attributable to the asset will 

flow to the company and the cost of the asset 

can be measured reliably.

   Intangible assets that are acquired by the 

Company, which have finite useful lives, are 

recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement 

is done at cost less accumulated amortization 

and accumulated impairment losses. Cost 

includes any directly attributable incidental 

expenses necessary to make the assets ready 

for its intended use.

   Expenditure on development activities is 

capitalized only if the expenditure can be 

measured reliably, the product or process 

is technically and commercially feasible, 

future economic benefits are probable and 

the Company intends to and has sufficient 

resources to complete development and to use 

or sell the asset.
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   Expenditure incurred which are eligible for 

capitalizations under intangible assets are 

carried as intangible assets under development 

till they are ready for their intended use.

  3.2. Subsequent Costs

   Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an 

increase in the carrying amount of the asset 

when it is probable that future economic 

benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow 

to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably.

  3.3. Derecognition

   An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no 

future economic benefits are expected from their 

use or upon their disposal. Gains and Losses 

on disposal of an item of Intangible Assets are 

determined by comparing the proceeds from 

disposal with the carrying amount of Intangible 

Assets and are recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss.

  3.4. Amortization

   Intangible Assets having definite life is 

amortized on straight line method in their 

useful lives. Useful life of Computer Software is 

estimated at five years.

 4. Borrowing Cost

  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction, exploration, development or 

erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part 

of cost of such asset until such time the assets are 

substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying 

assets are assets which take a substantial period 

of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when 

substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 

the qualifying assets for their intended uses are 

complete. Borrowing costs consist of:

  (a) interest expense calculated using the effective 

interest method as described in Ind AS 109 – 

‘Financial Instruments’,

  (b)  finance charges in respect of finance leases 

recognized in accordance with Ind AS 

116 – ‘Leases’,

  (c) exchange differences arising from foreign 

currency borrowings to the extent that they are 

regarded as an adjustment to interest costs and,

  (d) other costs that an entity incurs in connection 

with the borrowing of funds. Income earned on 

temporary investment of the borrowings pending 

their expenditure on the qualifying assets is 

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 

capitalization.

   All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue 

as and when incurred.

 5. Statement of Cash Flows

  Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in 

accordance with the Indirect method prescribed in Ind 

AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

 6. Inventories

  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost 

of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. 

Costs of purchased inventory are determined after 

deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value 

is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

  Spare parts other than those capitalized as Property, 

Plant and Equipment are carried as inventory.

  The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable 

and surplus stores & spares is ascertained on review 

and provided for.

 7. Cash and Cash Equivalent

  Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet 

comprises Cash at Banks, Cash on Hand and Short-

Term Deposits with an original maturity of three 

months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk 

of change in value.

 8. Government Grants

  Government grants are recognized where there is a 

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 

and the Company will comply with all attached 

conditions. When the government grant relates to 

an asset, the asset is disclosed by deducting that 

grant in arriving at the carrying amount of that asset. 

Government grants that compensate the Company 

for expenses incurred are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss, as income or deduction from the 

relevant expense, on a systematic basis in the periods 

in which the expense is recognized.

 9. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets

  A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the 

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
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outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is 

material, provisions are determined by discounting the 

expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 

time is recognized as a finance cost.

  The amount recognized as a provision is the best 

estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at reporting date, taking into account 

the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

  When some or all of the economic benefits required to 

settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is 

virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and 

the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 

statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

  Contingent Liabilities are possible obligations that arise from 

past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 

events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where 

it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 

be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, 

the obligation is disclosed as a Contingent Liability, 

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is 

remote. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed on the basis of 

judgment of the management/independent experts. These 

are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted 

to reflect the current management estimate.

  Contingent Assets are possible assets that arise from 

past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company. Contingent Assets are disclosed in the 

financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is 

probable on the basis of judgment of management. These 

are assessed continually to ensure that developments 

are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

 10. Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

  Transactions in foreign currencies are initially 

recorded at the functional currency rates at the date 

the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

  Monetary Assets and Liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated at the functional currency 

spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange 

differences arising on settlement or translation of 

monetary items are recognized in Statement of Profit 

and Loss in the year in which it arises.

  Non-monetary items are measured in terms of 

historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 11. Revenue Recognition

  The Company derives revenues primarily from business 

of textiles. Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted 

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 

using cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to 

contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. 

In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition 

method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively 

adjusted. The following is a summary of new and/or 

revised material accounting policies related to revenue 

recognition. Refer Note1 “Material Accounting Policies,” 

in the Company’s 2018 Annual Report for the policies in 

effect for Revenue prior to April 1, 2018.

  Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of 

promised products or services to customers in an 

amount that reflects the consideration we expect to 

receive in exchange for those products or services.

  Ind AS 115 moves away from the “transfer of risk and 

rewards” approach and introduces a new “transfer 

of control” approach delivered through the new five-

step model described as follows:

  1. Identify the contract with a customer.

  2. Identify the separate performance obligations 

in the contract.

  3. Determine the transaction Price.

  4. Allocate the transaction price to the separate 

performance obligations.

  5. Recognize revenue when (or as) each 

performance obligation is satisfied.

  At contract inception, an entity assesses the goods or 

services promised in a contract with a customer and 

identify each performance obligation promised to be 

transferred to the customer either:

  (a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or 

services) that is distinct; or

  (b) a series of distinct goods or services that are 

substantially the same and that have the same 

pattern of transfer to the customer.

  The company classifies the right to consideration in 

exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as 

a contract asset. A receivable is a right to consideration 

that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenues 

in excess of billings is recorded as contract asset and 

is classified as a financial asset for these cases a right 
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to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time. 

This would result in the timing of revenue recognition 

being different from the time of billing the customers.

  Company classifies amount received as advance 

from customers against sales as contract liability.

  Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are 

presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

  11.1 Sale of Goods

   Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized 

upon transfer of control of the goods have 

passed to the buyer, which generally coincides 

with dispatch. Revenue from export sales are 

recognized on shipment basis. Revenue from 

the sale of goods is measured at an amount that 

reflects the consideration we expect to receive in 

exchange for those products (i.e. the transaction 

price). The Company presents revenues net of 

indirect taxes, returns and allowances, trade 

discounts and volume rebates in its Statement of 

Profit and Loss. 

  11.2 Rendering of services

   Revenue from Job work services is recognized 

based on the services rendered in accordance 

with the terms of contracts.

  11.3 Other Export Benefit

   Export benefits are accounted for in the year of 

export at net market realizable value.

  11.4 Other Income

   Revenue from transactions or events that do not 

arise from a contract with a customer not in the 

scope of Ind AS 115 are continue to be recognized 

in accordance with the other standards. Such 

Income includes Interest and Dividend income 

which are dealt with in Ind AS 109 and Rental 

income to be accounted as per Ind AS 116.

  11.5 Interest Income

   For all financial instruments measured at 

amortized cost and interest-bearing financial 

assets classified as fair value through other 

comprehensive income, interest income is 

recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). 

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 

estimated future cash receipts over the expected 

life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, 

where appropriate, to the net carrying amount 

of the financial asset. When calculating the 

effective interest rate, the Company estimates 

the expected cash flows by considering all the 

contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 

example, prepayment, extension, call and similar 

options) but does not consider the expected 

credit losses. Interest income is included in other 

income in the statement of profit or loss.

  11.6 Dividend

   Dividend Income is recognized when the 

company’s right to receive is established 

which generally occurs when the shareholders 

approve the dividend.

  11.7 Income other than Interest and Dividend

   Other income is recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss when increase in future economic 

benefits related to an increase in an asset or a 

decrease of a liability has arisen that can be 

measured reliably.

 12. Employee Benefits

  12.1. Short Term Benefit

   Short-term employee benefit obligations are 

measured on an undiscounted basis and are booked 

as an expense as the related service is provided.

   A liability is recognized for the amount expected 

to be paid under performance related pay if the 

Company has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to pay this amount as a result of 

past service provided by the employee and the 

obligation can be estimated reliably.

  12.2. Post-Employment Benefits

   Employee Benefit that are payable after the 

completion of employment are Post-Employment 

Benefit (other than termination benefit). These 

are of two types:

   12.2.1. Defined Contribution Plans

    Defined contribution Plans are those plans 

in which an entity pays fixed contribution 

into separate entities and will have no 

legal or constructive obligation to pay 

further amounts. Provident Fund and Family  

Pension Funds are Defined Contribution 

Plans in which company pays a 

fixed contribution and will have no 

further obligation.

   12.2.2. Defined Benefit Plans

    A defined benefit plan is a post-

employment benefit plan other than a 

defined contribution plan.

    Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of 

the Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company’s net 

obligation in respect of defined benefit plans 
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is calculated separately for each plan by 

estimating the amount of future benefit that 

employees have earned in return for their 

service in the current and prior periods; that 

benefit is discounted to determine its present 

value. Any unrecognized past service 

costs and the fair value of any plan assets 

are deducted. The discount rate is based 

on the prevailing market yields of Indian 

government securities as at the reporting 

date that have maturity dates approximating 

the terms of the Company’s obligations and 

that are denominated in the same currency 

in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

    The calculation is performed annually by 

a qualified actuary using the projected unit 

credit method. When the calculation results 

in a liability to the company, the present 

value of liability is recognized as provision 

for employee benefit. Any actuarial gains or 

losses in respect of gratuity are recognized 

in OCI in the period in which they arise.

  12.3 Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

   Benefits under the Company’s Leave Encashment 

Scheme constitute other long-term employee 

benefits. The Company’s net obligation in 

respect of leave encashment is the amount of 

future benefit that employees have earned in 

return for their service in the current and prior 

periods; that benefit is discounted to determine 

its present value, and the fair value of any 

related assets is deducted. The discount rate is 

based on the prevailing market yields of Indian 

government securities as at the reporting date 

that have maturity dates approximating the terms 

of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is 

performed using the projected unit credit method. 

Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in 

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

 13. Income Taxes

  Income Tax Expense comprises Current and Deferred 

Tax. Current Tax Expense is recognized in Statement of 

Profit and Loss A/c except to the extent that it relates to 

items recognized directly in other comprehensive income 

or equity, in which it is recognized in OCI or Equity.

  Current Tax is the expected tax payable on the 

taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 

substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting 

date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 

previous years. Current Income Taxes are recognized 

under ‘Income Tax payable’ net of payments on account, 

or under ‘Tax receivables’ where there is a debit balance.

  Deferred Tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet method, 

providing for temporary differences between the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 

purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 

Deferred Tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 

to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, 

based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted by the reporting date. Deferred Tax Assets and 

Liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to 

offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to 

income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 

taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to 

settle Current Tax Liabilities and Assets on a net basis or their 

tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

  Deferred Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit 

and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items 

recognized directly in OCI or Equity, in which case it is 

recognized in OCI or Equity.

  A Deferred Tax Asset is recognized to the extent that it 

is probable that future taxable profits will be available 

against which the temporary difference can be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 

and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 14. Financial Instruments

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 

a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 

or equity instrument of another entity.

  a. Financial Assets

   Initial recognition and measurement

   All financial assets are recognized initially at 

fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial 

assets not recorded at fair value through profit 

or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to 

the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

   Impairment of Financial Assets

   In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company 

applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss 

on the financial assets and credit risk exposure.

   For recognition of impairment loss on financial 

assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 

that whether there has been a significant increase 

in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit 

risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL 

is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if 

credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL 

is used. If, in a subsequent period, the credit quality 

of the instrument improves then the entity reverts 

to recognising impairment loss allowance based 

on 12-month ECL.
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   In respect of Trade receivables or any financial 

asset that result from transactions that are 

within the scope of Ind AS 115, company 

follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of 

impairment loss allowance within the scope of 

Ind AS 115, if they do not contain a significant 

financing component. It recognizes impairment 

loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 

reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

  b. Financial Liabilities

   Initial recognition and measurement

   All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair 

value and in case of loans, net of directly 

attributable transaction cost. Fees of recurring 

nature are directly recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

   Subsequent Measurement

   Financial Liabilities are carried at amortized cost 

using the effective interest method. Amortized cost 

is calculated by taking into account any discount 

or premium on acquisition and any material 

transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. For 

trade and other payables maturing within one year 

from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 

approximate the fair value of the instrument.

   Derecognition

   A Financial Liability is derecognized when the 

obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 

liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the 

terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification 

is treated as the derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 

difference in the respective carrying amounts is 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  c. Derivative Financial Instruments

   The Company uses forwards to mitigate the risk 

of changes in interest rates, exchange rates 

and commodity prices. Such derivative financial 

instruments are initially recognized at fair value on 

the date on which a derivative contract is entered 

into and are also subsequently measured at fair 

value on the reporting date. Derivatives are carried 

as financial assets when the fair value is positive 

and as financial liabilities when the fair value is 

negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes 

in the fair value of derivatives are taken to cash 

flow hedge reserve through Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income.

   These are accounted for as follows:

   a)  Cash flow hedge

    When derivative is designated as a cash flow 

hedging instrument, the effective portion of 

changes in the fair value of the derivative is 

recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve 

being part of other comprehensive income. 

Any ineffective portion of changes in the 

fair value of the derivative is recognized 

immediately in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. If the hedging instrument expires or is 

sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognized in the 

cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to 

the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the 

occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the 

forecasted transaction is no longer expected 

to occur, then the amount accumulated in 

cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   b) Fair Value Hedge

    Changes in the fair value of hedging 

instruments and hedged items that are 

designated and qualify as fair value hedges 

are recorded in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer 

meets the criteria for hedge accounting, 

the adjustment to the carrying amount of a 

hedged item for which the effective interest 

method is used is amortized to Statement of 

Profit and Loss over the period of maturity.

 15. CSR Expenditure

  The Company undertakes Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) activities as per Section 135 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(CSR Policy) Rules, 2014. CSR expenditure includes 

amounts incurred on activities that are approved as 

ongoing projects by the Board in line with the CSR 

policy and applicable law.

  CSR expenditure is recognized in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss in the period in which it is incurred. 

For ongoing projects, any unspent amount at the 

end of the financial year is transferred to a separate 

“Unspent CSR Account” with a scheduled bank 

within 30 days from the end of the financial year, 

in accordance with Section 135(6) of the Act. Such 

amounts are spent within the timelines prescribed 

under Rule 4(6) of the CSR Rules.

  The Company does not capitalize any CSR 

expenditure unless it results in the creation of an 

asset controlled by a qualifying entity as specified 

under Rule 7(4) of the CSR Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March 2025

D. Other Accounting Policies

 1. Leases:

  1.1 Recognition:

   The Company as a Lessee

   The Company’s Lease Asset classes primarily 

consist of Leases for Land and Buildings. The 

Company assesses whether a contract contains 

a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, 

or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 

right to control the use of an identified asset for 

a period of time in exchange for consideration.

   To assess whether a contract conveys the right 

to control the use of an identified asset, the 

Company assesses whether:

   (i) the contract involves the use of an 

identified asset

   (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 

economic benefits from use of the asset 

through the period of the lease and

   (iii) the Company has the right to direct the 

use of the asset.

   At the date of commencement of the lease, 

the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 

(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for 

all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 

except for leases with a term of twelve months 

or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. 

For these short-term and low value leases, the 

Company recognizes the lease payments as an 

operating expense on a straight-line basis over 

the term of the lease.

   Certain lease arrangements include the options 

to extend or terminate the lease before the 

end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease 

liabilities includes these options when it is 

reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized 

at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 

lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 

made at or prior to the commencement date 

of the lease plus any initial direct costs less 

any lease incentives. They are subsequently 

measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment losses.

   Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the 

commencement date on a straight-line basis 

over the shorter of the lease term and useful life 

of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are 

evaluated for recoverability whenever events 

or changes in circumstances indicate that their 

carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

   The lease liability is initially measured at 

amortized cost at the present value of the 

future lease payments. The lease payments 

are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 

the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 

the incremental borrowing rates in the country 

of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are 

remeasured with a corresponding adjustment 

to the related right of use asset if the Company 

changes its assessment if whether it will exercise 

an extension or a termination option.

   Lease liability and ROU asset have been 

separately presented in the Balance Sheet 

and lease payments have been classified as 

financing cash flows.

 1.2 Accounting for

  1.2.1 Operating Leases

   Leases in which a significant portion of the risks 

and rewards of ownership are not transferred 

to the Company as lessee are classified 

as operating lease. Payments made under 

operating leases are recognized as an expense 

over the lease term.

  1.2.2 Finance Lease

   Leases of Property, Plant and Equipment where 

the Company, as lessee has substantially all risks 

and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 

lease. On initial recognition, assets held under 

finance leases are recorded as Property, Plant and 

Equipment and the related liability is recognized 

under borrowings. At inception of the lease, finance 

leases are recorded at amounts equal to the fair 

value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present 

value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum 

lease payments made under finance leases are 

apportioned between the finance expense and the 

reduction of the outstanding liability.

 2. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

  The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment 

considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of 

Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s 

recoverable amount (higher of its fair value less costs 

to disposal or its value in use) is estimated.

  An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 

amount of an asset or its Cash Generating Unit 

(CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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  Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are 

assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 

a change in the estimates used to determine the 

recoverable amount which is only to the extent that 

the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined, 

net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment 

loss had been recognized.

 3. Dividends

  Dividends and Interim dividends payable to a 

Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes 

in equity in the period in which they are approved 

by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of 

Directors respectively.

 4. Material Prior Period Errors

  Material prior period errors are corrected 

retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts 

for the prior periods presented in which the error 

occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest prior 

period presented, the opening balances of assets, 

liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period 

presented, are restated.

 5. Earnings Per Share

  Basic earnings per equity share is computed by 

dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the financial year.

  Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by 

dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of equity shares considered for 

deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the 

weighted average number of equity shares that could 

have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares.

E. Major Estimates made in preparing Financial 
Statements:

 1. Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets

  The estimated useful life of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is based on a number of factors including 
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition 
and other economic factors (such as the stability of 
the industry and known technological advances) and 
the level of maintenance expenditures required to 
obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

  Useful life of the assets other than Plant and machinery 
(except Laboratory Equipments, Fire Fighting 
Equipments and Tools &Equipments) are in accordance 
with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

  The Company reviews at the end of each reporting 
date the useful life of property, plant and equipment, 
and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

  Intangible assets are being amortized on straight line 
basis over the period of five years.

 2. Post-Employment Benefit Plans

  Employee benefit obligations are measured on 
the basis of actuarial assumptions which include 
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions 
concerning future developments in discount rates, 
the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. 
The Company considers that the assumptions 
used to measure its obligations are appropriate 
and documented. However, any changes in these 
assumptions may have a material impact on the 
resulting calculations.

 3. Provisions and Contingencies

  The assessments undertaken in recognizing 
provisions and contingencies have been made in 
accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation 
of the likelihood of the contingent events requires 
best judgment by management regarding the 
probability of exposure to potential loss. In case of 
change in the circumstances following unforeseeable 

developments, the likelihood could alter.
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Note 3 : Capital Work In Progress

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 1st 

April 2024
Addition

Deduction/ 

Adjustments
Capitalised

As at 31st 

March 2025

Land  -  180.85  -  -  180.85
Building 164.48  462.95  -  333.78  293.65
Plant & Machinery 44.91  179.42  -  44.91  179.42
Electric Installations 34.25  5.46  -  39.16  0.55
Pre Operative Exp
- Legal & Professional Exp  -  9.50  -  -  9.50
Total  243.64  838.18  -  417.85  663.97

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
Less than 1 

Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 

Years
Total

Project in Progress 663.97  -  -  - 663.97
Total 663.97  -  -  - 663.97

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
Less than 1 

Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 

Years
Total

Project in Progress 243.64  -  -  - 243.64
Total 243.64  -  -  - 243.64

3.1 Ageing of Capital Work in Progress

 As at 31st March 2025

 As at 31st March 2024
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Financial Assets

Note 5 : Other Non Current Assets
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Security Deposits 2064.48 1690.24
Deferred Transaction Cost 99.15 138.97
Capital Advances 157.09 29.27
Total 2320.72 1858.48

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Raw Material 41003.00 35461.22
Work-In-Process 5477.84 6328.15
Finished Goods 12562.61 13049.73
Stores and Spares 1619.16 1410.32
Fuel 75.37 147.74
Total 60737.98 56397.16

Current Assets

Note 6 : Inventories

6.1 Inventory has been valued as per the Accounting Policy

6.2 Raw Material consist of:
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Cotton 40105.48 34690.11
Yarn 92.63 41.02
Polyester & Other Fibers 486.05 467.76
Dyes & Chemicals 318.84 262.33
Total 41003.00 35461.22

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Yarn 8104.40 8217.27
Fabric 4126.38 4064.72
Saleable Waste 331.83 767.74
Total 12562.61 13049.73

6.3 Finished Goods consist of:

Note 7 : Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Secured
 Considered Good  -  -
Unsecured
 Considered Good 42960.01 32138.39
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Receivables having Significant increase in Credit Risk 83.91  83.91
Less : - Provision for Doubtful Debts 83.91  83.91
Net  -  -
Total 42960.01 32138.39

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Cash in Hand 6.67 6.57
Balance with Banks in :
 Current Accounts 0.66 0.06
 Fixed Deposits (Matured with in one year) 700.27  -
Total 707.60 6.63

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 26.51 27.88
Bank Balance - CSR Account 0.13  -
Fixed Deposits 217.02 6.03
Total 243.66 33.91

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Derivative Assets (Net) 237.23  -
Advances to Employees 42.76 17.10
Total 279.99 17.10

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Advances to Suppliers 323.06 913.92
Employees Benefit Fund* 166.01 406.59
Prepaid Expenses 306.80 345.96
Amount Receivable under RIPS 2988.01 731.96
Income Tax Refundable 0.29  -

Note 7 : Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables (Contd..)

Note 7.1 Ageing and other information has been depicted in Note no. 36

Note 8 : Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 8A : Current Financial Assets - Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

1) The year wise details of Unclaimed Dividend is given in Note No. 40.

2) Fixed Deposit of H 6.83 lacs are pledged with bank against Bank Guarantees and H 210.19 Lacs towards for CSR ongoing project 

matured with in one year.

Note 9 : Other Current Financial Assets

Note 10 : Other Current Assets
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

GST Credit Receivables 1284.64 2956.31
GST Refundable 996.13 1877.72
Other Receivables** 1520.48 2846.55
Total 7585.42 10079.01

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Authorised : 

6,00,00,000 (Previous Year : 6,00,00,000) Equity Shares of H 10/- Each

6000.00 6000.00

Total 6000.00 6000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up : 

5,62,20,000 (Previous Year : 5,62,20,000) Equity Shares of H 10/- Each fully paid up 

ranking pari passu

5622.00 5622.00

Total 5622.00 5622.00

Note 10 : Other Current Assets (Contd..)

* Denoted fund contributed in excess of Net Liabilities to Gratuity Fund Refer Note No. 35

** Other receivables includes amount of Export Incentive and Duty drawback etc.

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Note 11 : Share Capital

a. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares are as under :
(H In Lacs)

Name of Shareholders
 No. of Shares 

(% of Holding)

 No. of Shares 

(% of Holding)

Redial Trading & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 18040000 (32.09%) 17990000 (32.00%)
Smt. Sushila Devi Nolkha 7800000 (13.87%) 7800000 (13.87%)
Bandhan Small Cap Fund 2887908 (5.14%) 1895375 (3.37%)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
 No. of Shares 

(% of Holding)

 No. of Shares 

(% of Holding)

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 56220000 56220000
Add : Shares issued during the year  -  -
Equity Shares at the end of the year 56220000 56220000

b. Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding is set out below :

c. The company has not issued, any Shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in Cash, Bonus Shares 
and has not bought back any Shares

d. Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:

 The company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of H10/- per share. The holders of the equity shares are 

entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share holding at the 

meetings of shareholders.
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e. Shares held by promoters at the end of year

Note 11 : Share Capital (Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

S. 

No.
Promoter Name

No. of Shares
% of Total 

Shares

% Change during 

the year
As on 

31st March 2025

As on 

31st March 2024

1 Dinesh Nolkha 1190000 1162000 2.12% 2.41%
2 Nitin Nolakha 1850000 1850000 3.29%  -
3 Sushila Devi Nolkha 7800000 7800000 13.87%  -
4 Ratan Lal Nolkha HUF 1664000 1651000 2.96% 0.79%
5 Krishna Nolkha 270000 270000 0.48%  -
6 Dinesh Nolkha HUF 360000 360000 0.64%  -
7 Ranjeeta Nolkha 190000 190000 0.34%  -
8 Nitin Nolakha HUF 205000 205000 0.36%  -
9 Pratyush Nolkha 260000 260000 0.46%  -
10 Prasham Nolakha 1000 1000 0.002%  -
11 Ananya Nolkha 2000 1000 0.004% 100.00%
12 Redial Trading and Investment Pvt Ltd 18040000 17990000 32.09% 0.28%

Note 12 : Other Equity
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Capital Redemption Reserve 150.00 150.00
Securities Premium 13727.12 13727.12
General Reserve 5000.00 5000.00
Other Reserve - Cash Hedge Reserve 177.52  (18.89)
Retained Earnings 106443.30 90152.59
Total 125497.94 109010.82

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

a. Capital Redemption Reserve
 Opening Balance 150.00 150.00
 Additions during the year  -  -
 Deductions during the year  -  -
 Net Balance 150.00 150.00
b. Securities Premium
 Opening Balance 13727.12 13727.12
 Additions during the year  -  -
 Deductions during the year  -  -
 Net Balance 13727.12 13727.12
c. General Reserve
 Opening Balance 5000.00 5000.00
 Additions during the year  -  -
 Deductions during the year  -  -
 Net Balance 5000.00 5000.00
d. Other Reserve - Cash Hedge Reserve
 Opening Balance  (18.89)  84.71
 Additions/(Deductions) during the year 196.41  (103.60)
 Net Balance 177.52  (18.89)

Note 12.1 : Particular of Other Equity
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

e. Retained Earnings
 Opening Balance 90152.59 78306.28
 Add: Profit for the year 17542.63 13151.82
 Less : Allocation / Appropriation
 Dividend Paid 1405.50 1405.50
 Transfer to General Reserve  -  -
 Actuarial Loss/(Gain)  (153.58)  (99.99)
 Sub Total 1251.92 1305.51
 Net Balance 106443.30 90152.59
 Total (a to e) 125497.94 109010.82

Note 12 : Other Equity (Contd..)

Note 13 : Non Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Term Loans from Banks
Term Loans from Banks 81062.17 95603.13
Less: Taken to Short Term Borrowings being Current Maturities 17392.50 14540.00
Total 63669.67 81063.13

 -

13.1 Security

 Term Loans of H 81062.17 Lacs (Previous Year H 95603.13 Lacs) are secured by way of first charge on all immovable and movable 

Property, Plant & Equipment (both present and future) situated at Hamirgarh unit & Begun unit and site situated at Badi ka 

Kheda Tehsil Begun dist. Chittorgarh or anywhere else ranking pari-passu with all term lenders and second charge on entire 

current assets i.e. Stock of Raw Material, Consumable Stores, Semi Finished & Finished Goods & Book Debts of Hamirgarh unit & 

Begun unit and or anywhere else ranking pari-passu with all term lenders. The term loans are also secured by way of personal 

guarantee of two executive directors namely Shri Dinesh Nolkha & Shri Nitin Nolakha.

13.2 Terms of Repayment

 Term loans of H 19492.54 Lacs in 9 variable quarterly installments upto June 2027 and H 61569.63 Lacs in 26 variable quarterly 

installments upto September 2031.

Note 14 : Non Current Liabilities - Provisions
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Provision for Employee Benefits 771.51 633.16
Total 771.51 633.16

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

A. Deferred Tax Liability
 - Depreciation 12104.14 11224.51
 - Deferred Transaction Cost 24.96 34.98
Total (A) 12129.10 11259.49

Note 15 : Deferred Tax Liability
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

B. Deferred Tax Assets
 - Employee Benefits Expenses 448.90 333.24
 - Provision for Doubtful Debts 21.12 21.12
Total (B) 470.02 354.36
Total (A-B) 11659.08 10905.13
Add : Deferred Tax related to OCI 350.18 232.47
C. Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 12009.26 11137.60

Note 15 : Deferred Tax Liability (Contd..)

Note 15.1 Further information has been disclosed in Note No. 31

Note 16 : Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Working Capital Loan from Banks (Secured) 35409.01 38307.74
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 17392.50 14540.00
Total 52801.51 52847.74

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

For Goods Purchased
 Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 952.31 473.33
 Due to Others 2178.70 1514.36
For Services & Others
 Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 0.85  0.03
 Due to Others 5792.30 5413.70
Total 8924.16 7401.42

16.1 Security

 Working capital loans of H 35409.01 Lacs (Previous Year H 38307.74 Lacs) are secured by way of first charge on entire current 

assets i.e. Stock of Raw Material, Consumable Stores, Semi Finished & Finished Goods & Book Debts of Hamirgarh unit & Begun 

unit or anywhere else ranking pari-passu with all lenders and second charge on all immovable and movable Property, Plant & 

Equipment (both present and future) situated at Hamirgarh unit & Begun unit and site situated at Badi ka Kheda Tehsil Begun dist 

Chittorgarh or anywhere else ranking pari-passu with all lenders. The working capital loans are also secured by way of personal 

guarantee of two executive directors namely Shri Dinesh Nolkha & Shri Nitin Nolakha.

16.2 Terms of Repayment

 Working Capital Loans are repayable on Demand.

Note 17 : Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payable

Note 17.1 Ageing of Trade Payable has been depicted in Note no. 41

Note 17.2 Refer to Note No. 42 for disclosure related to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
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Note 18 : Other Current Financial Liability
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Derivative Liability  - 25.24
Unclaimed Dividend 26.51 27.88
For Capital Goods
 Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 1.02  -
 Due to Others 300.41 566.35
Security Deposit 9.65 7.58
Other Payable 1896.21 1833.68
Total 2233.80 2460.73

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Advances From Customers 240.65 389.25
Statutory Dues 363.81 388.48
Security Deposit 116.64 97.90
Total 721.10 875.63

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Provision for Employee Benefits 75.33 61.72
Provision for Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 39) 512.28 284.90
Total 587.61 346.62

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax, TDS & TCS)  393.41 266.41
Total  393.41 266.41

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Revenue from Contract with Customers
 Sale of Products
  Yarn 237966.41 199552.41
  Fabrics 72967.05 71633.70
  Others 17343.94 16920.79
 Sale of Services 13.56 4.36
Other
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 2274.46 2453.67
Total 330565.42 290564.93

Note 18.1 Refer to Note No. 42 for disclosure related to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

Note 19 : Other Current Liabilities

Note 20 : Current Liabilities - Provisions

Note 21 : Current Tax Liabilities

Note 22 : Revenue from Operations
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Note 23 : Other Income
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Interest Received  285.09 126.27
Insurance Charge Collected  56.55 62.79
Profit on Sale of PPE  1.01  8.18
Miscellaneous Income  17.01  27.69
Total 359.66 224.93

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Inventory at Opening
 Cotton 34690.11 26159.91
 Yarn 41.02 34.32
 Polyester & Other Fibers  467.76 172.14
 Dyes & Chemicals  262.33 289.86
Total 35461.22 26656.23
Add : Purchases & Expenses
 Cotton 196044.68 183240.90
 Yarn 2101.67 1775.75
 Polyester & Other Fibers 12193.90 8652.55
 Dyes & Chemicals 4001.87 3816.27
Total 214342.12 197485.47
Total 249803.34 224141.70
Less : Inventory at Closing
 Cotton 40105.48 34690.11
 Yarn 92.63 41.02
 Polyester & Other Fibers  486.05 467.76
 Dyes & Chemicals  318.84 262.33
Total 41003.00 35461.22
Total Consumption 208800.34 188680.48

Note 24 : Cost of Material Consumed

Note 25 : Purchase of Stock in Trade
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Purchase of National Flag  83.79 316.60
Purchase of Garments  4.68 4.56
Total 88.47 321.16

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Inventory at Closing
 Finished Goods 12562.61 13049.73
 Work-In-Progress 5477.84 6328.15
Total 18040.45 19377.88

Note 26 : Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Inventory at Opening
 Finished Goods 13049.73 16432.42
 Work-In-Progress 6328.15 4875.75
Total 19377.88 21308.17
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 1337.43 1930.29

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Salary & Wages 16899.89 14862.98
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1580.83 1403.87
Gratuity and Leave Encashment Expenses 740.33 639.40
Staff Welfare Expenses 834.84 777.79
Total 20055.89 17684.04

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Interest Expenses
 On Term Loans 4986.17 4402.72
 On Others 3256.96 3334.93

8243.13 7737.65
Other Borrowing Costs 794.95 592.63
Total 9038.08 8330.28

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

(a) Manufacturing Expenses
 Power & Fuel 28101.64 25829.74
 Stores & Spares Consumed 6669.17 5437.22
 Packing Expenses 3870.25 3227.28
 Job Charges Paid 170.89 82.88
 Repair to :-
  Machinery 260.87 251.46
  Building 116.41 77.18
  Others 204.96 134.89
Total (a) 39394.19 35040.65
(b) Administrative and Other Expenses
 Printing & Stationary 50.31 50.39
 Postage & Communication 36.55 30.59
 Subscription & Membership Fees 8.90 13.74
 Director's Sitting Fees 13.25 12.75
 Rates & Taxes 19.41 24.14
 Listing Expenses 9.73 10.58

Note 26 : Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade (Contd..)

Note 27 : Employee Benefit Expenses

Note 28 : Finance Cost

Note 29 : Other Expenses
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

 Travelling Exp - Directors 15.57 10.68
     - Others 63.96 54.34
 Vehicle & Conveyance 228.35 211.52
 Charity & Donation 1.18 3.34
 CSR Expenditure 572.26 522.21
 Legal & Professional 73.36 60.55
 Insurance Charges 352.62 359.85
 Payment to Auditors 15.44 15.01
 Cost Audit Fees 1.08 0.83
 Advertisement 11.96 15.92
 Software Expenses 62.11 60.13
 Provision for Doubtful Debts  - 14.49
 Miscellaneous Expenses 15.63 15.16
Total (b) 1551.67 1486.22
(c) Selling and Distribution Expenses
 Sales Promotion Expenses 318.90 249.17
 Sales Commission 3432.22 2467.80
 Rebate, Claims & Discount 539.08 345.58
 Freight & Forwarding 7888.45 4645.82
 Hank Yarn Obligation Expenses 16.90 7.88
Total (c) 12195.55 7716.25
Total (a to c) 53141.41 44243.12

Note 29 : Other Expenses (Contd..)

Note 29.1 : Payment to Auditors
(H In Lacs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Audit Fees 12.50 12.50
Tax Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
Legal Services 1.00 0.61
Certification & Others 0.35 0.10
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.09 0.30
Total 15.44 15.01

(H In Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

a. Disputed Liabilities not acknowledged as debts
- Cenvat, Goods & Service Tax and Custom Duty 44.65 1446.26

b. Guarantees
- Outstanding Bank Guarantees  14.35  90.20

c. Other money for which the company is contingently liable
- Bills negotiated with Banks (against goods sold under Letter of Credit) 12248.80 15862.86

Disclosures and Additional Informations

Note 30 – Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

1 Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
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2 Commitments

 a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances)  

H 7122.66 Lacs (Previous Year – H 437.13 Lacs).

 b) The company has an outstanding export obligation of approx. H 100195.76 lacs (Previous Year – H 99280.46 lacs), in respect 

of capital goods imported at the concessional rate of duty under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme, which is required 

to be met at different dates on or before 31st March, 2031 and export obligation of approx. H 50392.61 lacs (Previous Year – 

H 11584.09), in respect of cotton imported at the concessional rate of duty under Advance Licence scheme, which is required 

to be met at different dates on or before 23th March, 2026.

Note 31 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

(a) Reconciliation of Tax Expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s Tax Rate:

Note 30 – Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Accounting Profit Before Tax 23693.91 17753.28
Tax using Company's Domestic Tax Rate for respective year 5963.28 4468.15
Effect of Non-Deductible Expenses  297.59  140.57
Effect of Depreciation (9.77)  (7.23)
Tax in respect of Earlier Years  (99.82)  (0.03)
Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 6151.28 4601.46

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

[A] Current Tax expense:
 Current Year 5497.15 2734.14
 Adjustment for Earlier Years  (99.82)  (0.03)
Total [A] 5397.33 2734.11
[B] Deferred Tax Expense
 Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 753.95 1867.35
Total [B] 753.95 1867.35
Total Income Tax [A+B] 6151.28 4601.46

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Net Actuarial Gain/ (Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans  205.24  133.62
Tax Expenses in current year  51.65  33.63
Net Tax on Defined Benefit Plans  51.65  33.63
Net Gain/ (Losses) on Cash Flow Hedge  262.47  (138.44)
Tax Expenses in current year  66.06  (34.84)
Net Tax on Cash Flow Hedge  66.06  (34.84)

 (b) Income Tax Expenses

  i. Income Tax recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

  ii. Income Tax recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
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(c) Movement in Deferred tax Asset/ Liability

Note 31 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” ( Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

1st April 2024

Recognised in 

P&L A/c

As at 

31st March 2025

(A) Deferred Tax Assets
 - Provision for Employee Benefits 333.24 115.66 448.90
 - Provision for Doubtful Debts 21.12  - 21.12
Total (A) 354.36 115.66 470.02
(B) Deferred Tax Liability
 - Impact of Temporary Difference in Depreciation 11224.51 879.63 12104.14
 - Amortised Value of Financial Assets 34.98 (10.02)  24.96
Total (B) 11259.49 869.61 12129.10
Net Deferred Tax Liability (B-A) 10905.13 753.95 11659.08
Add: Deferred Tax Related to OCI 232.47 117.71 350.18
Net Deferred Tax Liability 11137.60 871.66 12009.26

(d) Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(H In Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year 11137.60 9271.46
Deferred tax (Income)/ Expenses during the year recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss

753.95 1867.35

Deferred tax (Income)/ Expenses during the year recognised in Other 

Comprehensive Income

117.71 (1.21)

Deferred tax liability at the end of the year 12009.26 11137.60

Note 32 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

1. List of Related Parties with whom Transactions have taken place:-

 (a) Key Management Personnel:-

Name of Person Relationship

Shri Dinesh Nolkha Chairman & Managing Director
Shri Nitin Nolakha Managing Director
Shri Pratyush Nolakha Executive Director (Since 22th July 2024)
Shri P. Maheshwari Chief Financial Officer
Shri Sudhir Garg Company Secretary & Vice President (Legal)

Name of Person Relationship

Smt. Sushila Devi Nolkha Mother of Chairman & Managing Director and Managing 

Director
Ratan Lal Nolkha HUF Director's Relative
Krishna Nolkha Director's Relative
Dinesh Nolkha HUF Director's Relative
Ranjeeta Nolakha Director's Relative
Nitin Nolakha HUF Director's Relative
Pratyush Nolakha Director's Relative (Till 21st July 2024)
Prasham Nolakha Director's Relative
Ananya Nolkha Director's Relative
Smt. Pallavi Rohit Mehta Independent Director's Relative

 (b) Relatives:-
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 (c) Related Companies:-

Note 32 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” (Contd..)

Name of Person Relationship

Redial Trading & Investment Pvt. Ltd. Holding 32.09% shares of the Company

Name of Person Relationship

Shri R. Chattopadhyay Independent Director (Till 27th July 2024)
Shri Rohit Swadheen Mehta Independent Director
Shri Rishabh Chand Lodha Independent Director
Smt. Vibha Aren Independent Director (Since 22th July 2024)
Smt. Aditi Mehta Independent Director (Till 27th July 2024)

Name of Person Relationship

Nitin Spinners Employees Gratuity Trust Fund Promoter Directors are Trustee
Shri Sojiram Ratanlal Nolakha Charitable Trust Promoter Directors are Trustee

 (d) Independent Directors

 (e) Other Related Parties

2. Details of Transactions with related parties:-
(H In Lacs)

S. 

No.
Nature of Transactions

For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

1 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Shri Dinesh Nolkha 315.67 247.90
Shri Nitin Nolakha 298.14 234.46
Shri Pratyush Nolakha 18.64  -
Shri P. Maheshwari 48.93 44.08
Shri Sudhir Garg 33.60 29.74

2 Remuneration to Others
Shri Pratyush Nolakha 7.38 2.08

3 Sitting Fees Paid to Directors
Shri R. Chattopadhyay 2.00 4.00
Shri Rohit Swadheen Mehta 3.75 4.00
Lt. Shri R. L. Nolkha  - 0.50
Shri Rishabh Chand Lodha 3.00 1.00
Smt. Vibha Aren 2.25  -
Smt. Aditi Mehta 2.25 3.25

4 Dividend Paid*
Shri Dinesh Nolkha 29.13 28.88
Shri Nitin Nolakha 46.25 46.25
Smt. Sushila Devi Nolkha 195.00 195.00
Shri R. L. Nolkha HUF 41.38 41.25
Smt. Krishna Nolkha 6.75 6.75
Shri Dinesh Nolkha HUF 9.00 9.00
Smt. Ranjeeta Nolakha 4.75 4.75
Shri Nitin Nolakha HUF 5.13 5.13
Shri Pratyush Nolakha 6.50 6.50
Shri Prasham Nolakha 0.03  -
Miss Ananya Nolkha 0.03  -
Redial Trading & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 449.75 449.38
Shri Rohit Swadheen Mehta 0.55 0.55
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(H In Lacs)

S. 

No.
Nature of Transactions

For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Smt. Pallavi Rohit Mehta 0.70 0.70
Shri P. Maheshwari 0.04 0.04

5 Contribution for CSR Project
Shri Sojiram Ratan Lal Nolakha Charitable Trust 111.45 4.40

6 Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Plans
Nitin Spinners Employees Gratuity Trust Fund 111.32 200.11

(H In Lacs)

S. 

No.
Particulars

For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

a) Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders 17542.63 13151.82
b) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of H 10 each outstanding during 

the year (In lacs)

562.20 562.20

c) Basic/Diluted Earning per share (In H) 31.20 23.39

d) Face Value of each Equity Share (In H) 10 10

Note 32 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” (Contd..)

 * Dividend of H 247.50 (Previous Year – H 247.50) & H 250.00 (Previous Year – H 250.00) paid to Shri R. Chattopadhyay & Shri Sudhir Garg respectively 

in current year.

Note 33- Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 "Earning Per Share (EPS)"

i) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (in J)

ii) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Opening Balance of issued Equity Shares 56220000 56220000
Effect of Shares issued during the year  -  -

Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares J 10 each 56220000 56220000

(H In Lacs)

Particulars Year 2024-25 Year 2023-24

(i) Dividend Declared and paid during the year

 Final Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2024 of H 2.50 (31st March 2023- 

H2.50) per fully paid Equity Share

1405.50 1405.50

Total 1405.50 1405.50

Note 34 - Dividend on Equity Shares

(ii) Dividend not recognised at the end of reporting period

 The company's Board of Directors have proposed the payment of Final dividend of H 3.00 (31st March 2024- H2.50 per share) per 

fully paid Equity Share. This proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders in Annual General Meeting. 

The total outgo towards the same will be H 1686.60 Lacs.
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Note 35 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits"

a) Defined Contribution Plan

 The Company makes contributions towards Employees Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund for qualifying employees. The 

Fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The amount of contribution is recognised as expense for defined 

contribution plans.

 Total contribution made by the employer to the Fund during the year is H 1212.65 lakhs (Previous Year H 1070.45 Lakhs).

b) Defined Benefit Plan & Other Long Term Benefits

 (i) Gratuity

  The Company makes payment to vested employees at retirement, disability or termination of employment as per provisions 

of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The provision of Gratuity liability as on the Balance Sheet date is done on actuarial 

valuation basis for qualifying employees and the same is funded in the funds held under the Gratuity Plan by Trust. 

Trust is incorporated on 28-09-2021 and 100% management of funds for gratuity is entrusted with HDFC Life Insurance 

Company Limited.

  The present value of the Defined Benefits obligation and the related current service cost is measured using the Projected 

Unit Credit Actuarial Method at the end of Balance Sheet date by the Actuary.

 (ii) Leave Encashment

  The company provides benefit of leave encashment to its employees as per defined rules. The provision for liability for 

leave encashment as on date of Balance Sheet is recognised on the basis of Actuarial certificate.

 (iii) The following table set out the status of Gratuity and Leave encashment plans as required under Ind AS-19 :

  (a) Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations :-
(H In Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended 31st March 2025 For the year ended 31  March 2024

 Gratuity
Leave 

Encashment
 Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment

Defined Benefit obligation at the 

beginning of the year

2279.50 681.07 1823.45 552.53

Interest cost  165.26 49.38  134.75 40.83
Current service cost  586.62 277.08  514.38 228.00
Benefits directly paid  (111.26)  (29.89)  (97.86)  (30.16)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation & 

Assets

 (190.14)  (143.27)  (95.22)  (110.13)

Present value of obligation at the end 

of year

2729.98 834.37 2279.50 681.07

(H In Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended 31st March 

2025

For the year ended 31st March 

2024

 Gratuity
Leave 

Encashment
 Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment

Current service Cost 586.62 277.08 514.38 228.00
Interest Cost  (29.48) 49.38  (33.68) 40.83
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the 

period

 - (143.27)  -  (110.13)

Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss 

statement

557.14 183.19 480.70 158.70

  (b) Net Defined Benefit Cost/(Income) included in the-:

   1. Statement of Profit and Loss
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   2. Other Comprehensive Income :-

Note 35 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits"

(H In Lacs)

Particulars

 Gratuity

For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year on Projected Benefit Obligations  (205.24)  (133.62)
Unrecognised actuarial (Gain)/Loss at the end of the year  (205.24)  (133.62)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars

 Gratuity

For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

For the Year ended 

31st March 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 2686.09 2279.15
Expected Return on Plan Assets 209.84 206.83
Employer Contribution 111.32 265.78
Benefit Paid  (111.26)  (65.67)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 2895.99 2686.09

  (c) Changes in Plan Assets

  (d) Reconciliation of the Present value of Defined Obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:
(H In Lacs)

Particulars

Year 2024-25 Year 2023-24

 Gratuity
Leave 

Encashment
Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment

Present value of obligation as at the end of 

year

2729.98 834.37 2279.50 681.07

Fair value of Plan Assets (2895.99)  - (2686.09)  -
Liability (Assets) recognised in Balance 

Sheet*

 (166.01) 834.37  (406.59) 681.07

   * Refer Note No. 10

  (e) The assumptions used in Actuarial Valuation:-
(H In Lacs)

Particulars Year 2024-25 Year 2023-24

Financial Assumptions used to determine the Profit & Loss Charge
a) Discounting Rate 7.04% p.a. 7.25% p.a.
b) Salary Escalation Rate 8.00% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
Demographic Assumptions Used to determine the Defined Benefit
a) Retirement Age 62 Years 62 Years
b) Mortality Table 100% IALM 

(2012-2014)

100% IALM 

(2012-2014)
c) Employee Turnover/Attrition Rate
 18 To 30 Years 3.00% 3.00%
 31 to 44 Years 2.00% 2.00%
 Above 44 Years 1.00% 1.00%

  (f) Sensitivity Analysis as at 31st March, 2025:-
(H In Lacs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

Defined benefit Obligation - Discount Rate+50 Basis points  (203.30)  (65.99)
Defined benefit Obligation - Discount Rate-50 Basis points  227.99  74.47
Defined benefit Obligation – Salary Escalation Rate+50 Basis points  207.84  73.41
Defined benefit Obligation – Salary Escalation Rate-50 Basis points  (190.01)  (65.73)
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  (g) Expected Cash Flows as at 31st March, 2025:-

Note 35 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" (Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

Within 1 Year 119.25 62.85
1-5 Years 302.91 86.58
Beyond 5 Years 2307.82 684.94
Total Expected Payments 2729.98 834.37

  (h) The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 

promotions and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

  (i) The discount rate is based on prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds, as at the balance sheet date, 

consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post employment benefit obligations.

Note 36 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 107 “Financial instrument disclosure”

i. Capital Management

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves 

attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that 

it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

 The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to 

shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs 

with a focus to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence. The management and the Board of Directors monitors the 

return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, 

or if necessary adjust, its capital structure, in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial Covenants.

 The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing Net Debt from the Equity. The Company 

includes within Net Debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-term deposits (including other bank balance) 

and under Equity, the Equity Share Capital plus other Equity (excluding Preference Share Capital) is considered.
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Long Term Borrowings 63669.67 81063.13
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 17392.50 14540.00
Short Term Borrowings 35409.01 38307.74
Gross Debt 116471.18 133910.87
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents  (707.60)  (6.63)
Net Debt (A) 115763.58 133904.24
Total Equity (B) 131119.94 114632.82
Gearing Ratio (A/B)  0.88  1.17

ii. Financial Risk Management

 The Company's Financial Risk Management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's 

financial risk management is set by the Managing Board. The Board of directors has established the risk management committee, 

which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Committee reports regularly 

to the board of directors on its activities.

 Company is exposed to following risk from the use of its financial instrument:

 - Credit Risk

 - Liquidity Risk

 - Market Risk
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 (a) Credit Risk

   Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment 

plan with the Company. The Company categorise a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments 

greater than 2 years past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement 

activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

  Provision for Expected Credit or Loss

  (a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses:

   The Company has assets where the counter-parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the 

risk of default is very low. Accordingly, no loss allowance for impairment has been recognised.

  (b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses:

   The Company provides loss allowance on trade receivables using life time expected credit loss and as per 

simplified approach.

   Ageing of Trade Receivables
(H In Lacs)

Particulars Not Due
Less Than 

6 Months

6 Months - 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 

3 years
Total

As on 31.03.2025
Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- Considered Good 

(Unsecured)

38490.98 4383.44 85.59  -  -  - 42960.01

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- Which have significant 

increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  -  14.49  69.42  83.91

Impairment loss recognised  -  -  -  -  14.49  69.42  83.91
As on 31.03.2024
Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- Considered Good 

(Unsecured)

28303.47 3768.23 65.82 0.87  -  - 32138.39

Undisputed Trade Receivable 

- Which have significant 

increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  14.49  -  69.42 83.91

Impairment loss recognised  -  -  -  14.49  -  69.42 83.91

 (b) Liquidity Risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company's 

finance department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and 

policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity 

position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

  The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual 

undiscounted payments:

  As on 31.03.2025
(H In Lacs)

Contractual Maturities of Financial 

Liabilities

Contractual cash flows

Total3 Months 

or less

3-12 

Months
1-2 Years 2-5 Years

More than 

5 Years

Term Loans from Banks* 5877.98 18072.85 22951.85 39057.20 15865.82 101825.70
Trade and other Payables 8924.16  -  -  -  - 8924.16

Note 36 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 107 “Financial instrument disclosure” (Contd..)
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Note 36 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 107 “Financial instrument disclosure” (Contd..)

  As on 31.03.2024
(H In Lacs)

Contractual Maturities of Financial 

Liabilities

Contractual cash flows

Total3 Months 

or less

3 Months 

or less
1-2 Years 2-5 Years

More than 

5 Years

Term Loans from Banks* 4798.18 17526.43 23798.21 50075.30 27442.42 123640.54
Trade and other Payables 7401.42  -  -  -  - 7401.42

  *Includes contractual interest payment based on interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period over the tenure of the borrowing.

  The Company has access to the following undrawn facilities at the end of reporting period:
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Fixed Rate Borrowings  -  -
Floating-rate Borrowings 22490.99 16692.26
Total- Undrawn Facilities 22490.99 16692.26

 (c) Market Risk

  Considering the Company's existing foothold/experience in the Textile sector, established & diversified client base, 

association with various international/domestic agents, it's competent sales team and an established marketing setup in 

India and International Market, it does not foresee any problem in marketing its production.

  Market Risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price 

of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, 

foreign currency exchanges rates, equity prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. 

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, and other 

market changes.

  The Company manages market risk through a finance department, which evaluates and exercises independent control 

over the entire process of market risk management. The finance department recommends risk management objectives and 

policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department include 

management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures, borrowing strategies, 

and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

  i) Interest Rate Risk

   It is the risk where changes in market interest rates might adversely affect the company's financial condition. The short 

term/immediate impact of changes in interest rates are on the Company's net interest income/expenses. On a longer 

term, change in interest rate impact the cash flows on the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, giving rise to a 

risk to the net worth of the Company arising out of all reprising mismatches and other interest rate sensitive positions.

   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rate. In order to optimize the Company's position with regards to interest income and 

interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk 

management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

   At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Annual Report 2024-25

140

NITIN SPINNERS LTD



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March 2025

   Detail of financial instrument bearing interest rate risk

   At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instrument is at its fair value:

Note 36 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 107 “Financial instrument disclosure” (Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Variable Rate Instruments
Long Term Borrowings 63669.67 81063.13
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 17392.50 14540.00
Short Term Borrowings 35409.01 38307.74
Total 116471.18 133910.87

   Interest rate sensitivity

   The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of 

loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected 

through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
Effect of Profit or Loss

50 BP decrease 50 BP increase

31st March 2025
Term Loans 405.31  (405.31)
Loan repayable on demand 177.05  (177.05)
Total 582.36  (582.36)
31st March 2024
Term Loans 478.02  (478.02)
Loan repayable on demand 191.54  (191.54)
Total 669.56  (669.56)

  ii) Foreign Exchange Risk

   It is the risk that the company may suffer losses as a result of adverse exchange rates movements during a period 

in which it has an open position in an individual foreign currency. In addition, the company may also expose to the 

following risks on account of foreign exchange exposures as applicable.

   Interest Rate Risk - Which arises from the maturity mismatches of foreign currency position

   Settlement Risk - On account of risk of default of the counter parties.

   Exposure to Foreign Currency :
(Foreign Currency In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Exposure on account of Financial Assets
Trade Receivables (Net of Bill Discounted) (A)
 In USD 355.10 246.81
 In Euro 1.35 1.98
 In GBP  - 0.17
 In CHF  -  -
Amount hedged through Forward Contracts (B)
 In USD 355.10 246.81
 In Euro 1.35 1.98
 In GBP  -  -
 In CHF  -  -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Assets (C = A-B)
 In USD  -  -
 In Euro  -  -
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Note 36 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 107 “Financial instrument disclosure” (Contd..)
(Foreign Currency In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

 In GBP  - 0.17
 In CHF  -  -
Exposure on account of Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables (D)
 In USD 10.56 6.46
 In Euro 0.32 0.80
 In GBP  - 0.01
 In CHF 0.11 1.14
Amount hedged through Forward Contracts (E)
 In USD  -  -
 In Euro  -  -
 In GBP  -  -
 In CHF  -  -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Liabilities(F = D-E)
 In USD 10.56 6.46
 In Euro 0.32 0.80
 In GBP  - 0.01
 In CHF 0.11 1.14
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Assets/Liabilities (C-F)
 In USD  (10.56)  (6.46)
 In Euro  (0.32)  (0.80)
 In GBP  -  0.16
 In CHF  (0.11)  (1.14)

   The Company uses forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with fluctuation in foreign currency relating to 

foreign currency assets and liabilities, firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. The use of the 

aforesaid financial instruments is governed by the Company’s overall Risk Management Strategy. The Company does 

not use forward contracts and options for speculative purposes. The details of the outstanding forward contracts and 

unhedged currency exposure as at 31st March, 2025 is as under :
(H In Lacs)

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Foreign 

Currency
INR

Foreign 

Currency
INR

Forward Contracts Outstanding (For 

Hedging)
USD (Sale) 557.93 48358.14 539.41 45017.34
EURO (Sale) 4.59 421.38 5.02 459.08
GBP (Sale)  -  -  -  -
Total 562.52 48779.52 544.43 45476.42
Unhedged Forex Exposure
Payable – USD 10.56 903.74 6.46 538.60
Payable – EURO 0.32 29.54 0.80 72.17
Payable – GBP  -  -  0.01 1.05
Payable – CHF 0.11 10.65 1.14 104.91
Total 10.99 943.93 8.41 716.73

   Hedge Accounting Disclosures

   The Cash Flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on charges in fair 

value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising 

on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated 

under the heading of cash flow reserve will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss only when the hedged 

transaction affects the profit or loss or included as a basic adjustment to the non financial hedged item.
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   Foreign Currency sensitivity:

   The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EURO, GBP and CHF rates 

to the functional currency of respective entity, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to 

foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due 

to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Note 36 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 107 “Financial instrument disclosure” (Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

1% Appreciation in INR
Impact on Equity 9.44 7.17
Impact on P&L 9.44 7.17
1% Depreciation in INR
Impact on Equity  (9.44)  (7.17)
Impact on P&L  (9.44)  (7.17)

Note 37 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers"

The company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" which is mandatory for reporting periods beginning 

on or after 01st April 2018. The Company has adopted the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not 

completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with this method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. Application 

of Ind AS 115 does not have any material impact on the financial results of the company.

Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2025 by contract-type. 

The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash 

flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March 2025

Revenues on the basis of Geographical area
- Domestic Sales 119458.21
- Export Sales (Including Export Incentives) 211107.21
Total 330565.42

Trade receivables and Contract Balances

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables either as a receivable or as unbilled revenue. A 

receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenues in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled 

revenue and is classified as a financial asset for these cases as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time. This 

would result in the timing of revenue recognition being different from the timing of billing the customers.

Company classifies amount received as advance from customers against sales as contract liability.

Trade receivable and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

During the year ended 31st March 2025, the company recognizes revenue of H 389.25 Lacs arising from opening contract liabilities 

as of 1st April, 2024.

The remaining contract liability as on 31st March 2025 is H 240.65 Lacs (Previous Year H 389.25 Lacs) which is to be satisfied within 

1 year or less.

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at 

the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying 
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the practical expedient as given in para 121 of Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related 

disclosures for contracts as the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of less than 1 year.

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile IndAS 18 Revenue instead of IndAS 115 Revenue from contract with customers on the 

financials results of the Company for the year ended as at March 31, 2025 is insignificant.

Note 38 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments"

The Company is engaged in Business of Textiles. Hence there is no separate business segments.

Details of Export outside country and Domestic sales within country are as under:

Note 37 - Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers" (Contd..)

(H In Lacs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Revenue
- Within India (Domestic Sales) 119458.21 120135.75
- Outside India (Exports - Including Export Incentives) 211107.21 170429.18
Total 330565.42 290564.93

(H In Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Opening Balance of Liability 284.90  -
Add: Current year Liability 572.26 524.67
Add: Interest Income on Fixed Deposit with Bank 16.99  -
Total CSR Liability  874.15  524.67
Less: Brought forward from Earlier year (Excess spent in earlier year)  - 2.46
Less: Amount spent during the year from Current year Liability 272.02 237.31
Less: Amount spent during the year from Earlier year provision 89.85  -
Closing Balance of Liability  512.28  284.90

Note 39 - Disclosure of Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

(a) As per section 135 of Companies Act the company is required to spend in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net 

profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial year in accordance with its CSR policy.

(b) The movement of CSR Liability is as under:

(c) The unspent CSR amount of H 300.24 Lacs has been accounted for as a provision which is towards ongoing project and 

transferred to a special bank account on 22-04-2025 & 28-04-2025 in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the 

Companies Act 2013 and will be spent in accordance with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 

and amendments thereunder.

(d) As on 31st March 2025, The amount of H 210.33 Lacs lying in special bank account against the previous year liability.

 CSR Expenditure Details during the financial year 2024-25

(H In Lacs)

CSR Project Nature

Actual 

Amount 

Spent

Amount yet 

to be Spent
Total

Reason for 

Amount Unspent

Related Party 

Transaction 

(If Involved)

Animal Welfare 5.00  - 5.00  -  -
Conservation of Natural Resources 0.77  - 0.77  -  -
Drinking Water 0.96  - 0.96  -  -
Empowering Women 5.00  - 5.00  -  -
Enhancing Vocal Skill among Children 100.00  - 100.00  -  -
Ensuring Environment Sustainability 0.31 0.31  -  -
Har Ghar Tiranga 6.94  - 6.94  -  -
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(H In Lacs)

CSR Project Nature

Actual 

Amount 

Spent

Amount yet 

to be Spent
Total

Reason for 

Amount Unspent

Related Party 

Transaction 

(If Involved)

Promotion of Education 41.81 300.24 342.05  Amount 

pertained to 

ongoing Capital 

Project

 21.60

Promotion of Health including Preventive 

Health Care

25.29  - 25.29  -  -

Promotion of Nationally recognised Sports 1.22 1.22  -  -
Rural Development 2.72 2.72
Setting up of Old Ages Homes 82.00  - 82.00  -  -
Total 272.02  300.24 572.26  -  21.60

 CSR Expenditure Details during the financial year 2023-24
(H In Lacs)

CSR Project Nature

Actual 

Amount 

Spent

Amount yet 

to be Spent
Total

Reason for 

Amount Unspent

Related Party 

Transaction 

(If Involved)

Drinking Water 4.15  - 4.15  -  -
Empowering Women 5.00  - 5.00  -  -
Enhancing Vocal Skill among Children 101.50  - 101.50  -  -
Ensuring Environment Sustainability 0.51  - 0.51  -  -
Har Ghar Tiranga 32.40  - 32.40 -  -
Promotion of Education 18.13  284.90 303.03  Amount 

pertained to 

ongoing Capital 

project

 4.40

Promotion of Health including Preventive 

Health Care

2.51  - 2.51  -  -

Promotion of Nationally recognised Sports 0.27  - 0.27  -  -
Rural Development 2.84  - 2.84  -  -
Setting up of Old Ages Homes 70.00 70.00  -  -
Total 237.31 284.90 522.21  4.40

Note 39 - Disclosure of Corporate social responsibility (CSR) (Contd..)

Note 40 : Details of Unclaimed Dividend

The year wise details of Unclaimed dividend lying in separate bank account is as under :
(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

Final Dividend Accounts
- Year 2016-17*  -  4.86
- Year 2017-18  6.77  6.78
- Year 2018-19  3.57  3.57
- Year 2019-20  1.62  1.62
- Year 2020-21  3.23  3.24
- Year 2021-22  3.30  3.33
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(H In Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

- Year 2022-23  2.52  2.56
- Year 2023-24  3.59  -
Interim Dividend Accounts
- Year 2021-22  1.91  1.92
Total 26.51 27.88

Note 40 : Details of Unclaimed Dividend (Contd..)

*Amount of H 4.86 Lacs of unclaimed dividend has been transferred to "Investor Education and Protection Fund" during the current financial year 2024-25 on 

completion of 7 years.

Note 41 : Trade Payable ageing schedule
(H In Lacs)

Particulars Not Due
Less than 1 

Year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 

Years
Total

As on 31st March 2025
(i) MSME 953.16  -  -  -  - 953.16
(ii) Others* 7619.14 340.27 8.73 2.86  - 7971.00
As on 31st March 2024
(i) MSME 473.36  -  -  -  - 473.36
(ii) Others* 6670.78 244.96 9.45 2.87  - 6928.06

*Other Trade payable showing in not due include unbilled transactions of H 249.62 Lacs (Previous Year - H 397.07 Lacs).

Note 42 : Disclosure related to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

A. Trade Payables include Principal amount H 953.16 Lacs (Previous Year H 473.36 Lacs) and Creditors for Capital Goods include 

principal amount H 1.02 (Previous Year H Nil) and Interest amount H Nil (Previous Year H Nil) due to Micro & Small Enterprises as 

at 31st March 2025. The figures have been disclosed on the basis of informations received from suppliers who have registered 

themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and/or based on the 

information available with the company. Further, no interest during the year has been paid or payable under the provisions of 

the MSMED Act, 2006.

B. No Interest has been paid under section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 

along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

C. No Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

D. No Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

E. No further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 

actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductable expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note 43 : Disclosure of Additional Regulatory Information - Ratios

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

% 

Change

Basis of Ratio 

Calculation
Reason for Change

Current Ratio (Including current 

maturities of Long term Borrowing)

1.71 1.54 11.04% Current Assets/

Current Liabilities

Improved due to 

surplus generated 

during the year
Debt Equity Ratio 0.62 0.83 -25.30% Long Term Borrowing 

& Current Maturities of 

long term borrowing/

Total Equity

Decreased due to 

repayment of Term 

Loan
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Particulars
As at 

31st March 2025

As at 

31st March 2024

% 

Change

Basis of Ratio 

Calculation
Reason for Change

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

(In times)

1.91 1.96 -2.55% PAT+Depreciation & 

Interest on Term Loan/

Repayment of Term 

Loan & Interest on 

Term Loan

Decreased due to 

higher repayment of 

Term Loan

Return on Equity Ratio 14.28% 12.09% 18.10% Profit After Tax/Total 

Average Equity

Increased due to 

higher operating & net 

profit
Inventory Turnover Ratio (In times) 5.64 5.50 2.55% Revenue from 

Operations/ Average 

Inventories

Marginally Improved

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 

(In times)

8.80 10.68 -17.61% Revenue from 

Operations/ Average 

Trade Receivables

Average credit period 

increased due to 

challenging market 

conditions
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 

(In times)

27.90 33.17 -15.89% Purchases*/ Average 

Trade Payables

Average payment 

period increased 

marginally
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 

(In times)

1.34 1.17 14.53% Revenue from 

Operations/Total 

Equity, Long Term 

Borrowing & Short 

Term Borrowing

Improved due to full 

operations of last year 

expansion

Net Profit Ratio 5.31% 4.53% 17.22% Profit After Tax/

Revenue from 

Operations

Increased due to 

higher operating & net 

profit
Return on Capital Employed 13.19% 11.61% 13.70% EBIT/Average of Total 

Equity, Long Term 

Borrowing & Short 

Term Borrowing

Increased due to full 

impact of last year 

expansion

Return on Investment  -  -  - Not Applicable 

due to there are no 

investment

Note 43 : Disclosure of Additional Regulatory Information - Ratios (Contd...)

*Purchases include Purchase of Raw Material, Store & Spares, Packing Material, Printing & Stationary and Coal.

Note 44 : Additional Regulatory Requirements as Required under Shedule III of The Companies Act 2013

(a) The Company does not have any transactions with the companies which have been strucked off.

(b) The Company has borrowed funds from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The company has filed quarterly 

statements with the banks or financial institution that are in principle in agreement with the books of accounts. 

(c) The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 

made there under and no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company.

(d) The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as search or survey or any other relevent 

provisions of The Income Tax Act, 1961.

(e) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(f) The company has not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or any financial institution or any other lender at any time 

during the financial year.
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(g) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

  (i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner what so ever by or on behalf of the 

company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

 (ii) Provide any Gurantee, Security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries."

(h) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (funding party) with the 

understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the company shall:

 (i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

 (ii) Provide any Gurantee, Security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(i) The Company has filed all type of applicable charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) in time, So there are no 

charges or satisfaction of charges which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

( j) The company is neither a holding company of any subsidiaries companies not a subsidiary company of any holding company, 

hence The company is not covered under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act along with the Companies (Restriction 

on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(k) The Company has not entered in any Scheme of Arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms 

of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

(l) The title deeds of all immovable properties are in the name of Company.

Note 44 : Additional Regulatory Requirements as Required under Shedule III of The Companies Act 2013 
(Contd..)

In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For KALANI & CO LLP DINESH NOLKHA NITIN NOLAKHA

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

(Firm Reg. no. 000722C/C400390) (DIN - 00054658) (DIN - 00054707 )

S. P. JHANWAR P. MAHESHWARI SUDHIR GARG

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

M. No. 074414 (PAN - ABAPM8005C) Vice President (Legal)

  (PAN - ABBPK6037F)

Place : Hamirgarh, Bhilwara

Date : 13.05.2025
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